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ﬁAGEUI\}\l;:MORIAL HOSPITAL HEALTHCARE QUALITY

This quality manual describes Sage Memorial Hospital's quality management
system, the processes involved in the operation of our quality management system,
and the interaction of these processes within the system. The interaction of
processes have been defined to demonstrate how a change in one process may
have an impact on other processes that in the long term could result in sub-optimal
patient outcomes within our organization. Our quality management system is
focused on improving processes within our facilities. Through the development of
this manual, we have identified critical core processes/procedures and have
determined how to monitor and measure these processes to ensure optimal
outcomes. Review of data from these measurements in the Quality Cauncil (QC)
enables us to make informed decisions on correcting and preventing defects and
provides opportunities for continual improvement of the quality management
system.

“Quality is never an accident; it is afways the result of high
intention, sincere zﬁ%rt, inteﬂi’genr direction and sk'i(gfu(
execution; it represents the wide choice of many afternatives”
William A. Foster
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BOARD MEMBER COMMITMENT TO QUALITY STATEMENT

The Governing Board of Sage Memorial Hospital is committed to supporting the ongoing efforts
to improve the quality of care in the organization. To that end, the leadership team at the hospital
has developed an ongoing Performance Improavement Plan to ensure the provision of an optimal
quality, cost effective continuum of healthcare services to all patients and visitors of the hospital,
as well as an environment of respect, compassion, and dignity.

The Governing Board commits to the following statements:

1. We strive to provide our customers with services which meet and even exceed their
expectations.

2. We are committed to cantinuous improvement and have established a Quality
Management System which provides a framework for measuring and improving our
performance.

3. We have the following systems and procedures in place to support our leaders/staff in
our aim of total customer satisfaction and continuous improvement throughout our

organization:

regular gathering and monitoring of customer feedback

a customer complaints procedure

selection and performance monitoring of vendors against set criteria
training and development for our employees

regular audit of our internal processes

measurable guality objectives which reflect our business aims
management reviews of audit results, customer feedback, and complaints

4, Ourinternal procedures are reviewed regularly and are documented in a Quality
Manual.
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CULTURE

If you have ever been in a top performing hospital, one thing that you go away with is
a sense of teamwork and engagement. The Sage Memorial Hospital's Governing
Board and its Leadership believes in providing the best possible care. At all levels of
the organization, the people believe that they impact patient care.

Our Strategic Priorities are culture,
people, processes, and tools. Doing the
RIGHT thing, at the RIGHT time, the FIRST
time, EVERY time is of utmost importance to
ensure that the patient receives the highest
level of care possible.
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PEOPLE

High quality staff produce high quality results and effective quality management
programs. S5taff at all levels are important, including physicians, nurses, ancillary
staff, support staff, and administrators. Selective hiring and programs that promote
staff stability are key. Respect for all staff throughout the organization is a vital
element of the culture in high performing organizations.

PROCESSES

The best organizations collect data on outcomes and cost. They also proactively
collect data to identify deficiencies in their processes before problems develop. The
mindset is a proactive one with Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) embedded in
the culture of the organization. Errors and deficiencies are not hidden or ignored in
high performing organizations, nor is blame assigned, they are looked at as an
opportunity to improve. Mistakes are analyzed through processes like Root Cause
Analysis (RCA) and corrective action plans are implemented based on the results of
the investigations, and there is accountability for implementing the new process.
One process that has been shown to be very useful in improving quality and culture
is a "daily huddle.” This process is then utilized at the unit level so that safety
concerns can be raised, and issues quickly resolved.

TOOLS

High performing organizations give their team members the tools and support that
they need to provide safe, high quality care. And as such, a robust IT system is a
necessary component from which to draw data that is utilized for CQI. Other tools
include: training, networlting with peers in the industry, and attending professional
development conferences.

“Systems that focus on identifying bad outputs AFTER they have occurred, and that
fail to specifically associate output failures with variation in the process (usually
because they fail to monitor the process for every case) do not improve quality as
effectively as systems that prevent quality failures BEFORE they happen. Quality is
built in during the process, not added on at the end" (James, 1989). Therefore, a
proactive approach emphasizes that quality should be built into processes, not
added on after failure is detected.
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. Sample Core Measures S5core Card*

Mortality Rate (Acute M1, Heart Failure, Pneumonia)

OP-1 Median Time to Fribrinolysis
gﬁ—fi:lﬁbrinotytkmﬂapy Received within 30 minutes of ED
OF-3 Median Timeto Transfer to Another Facility for Acute
Coronary Intervention

OP-4 Aspirin at Arrival

OP-5 Median Timeto ECG

OP-18 Median Time ED Anrival to ED Departure for
Discharged ED Patiens

OP-20 Door to Diagnostic Evaluation by Qualified Medical
Provider

0P-21 Median Timeto Pain Management for LongBone
Fractures
OP-23 Head CT or MRI Scan Results of Acute or Hemorrhagic
Stroke Patlents within 45 Minutes of ED Arrival

Emergency Department Transfer Communication

IMM-2 | nfluenze Immunization

|Communication with Nurses
Responsiveness of Hospital Staff
Pain Management
[Communication about Medication
Cleantiness of Hospital

Quietness of Hospital

Discharge Information

Care Transition

Overall Rating of Hospital(3 or 10

1 This is an example only, and the regulatory requirements may change periodically, according to the regulatory agency. Check the
actual regulations for current information.
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» How well they perform on each measure compared to other hospitals’ performance
. during a baseline period
* How much they improve their performance on each measure compared to their
performance during a baseline period. The performance information is reported
through QualityNet, the secure extranet portal supporting Center for Clinical
Standards and Quality (CC5Q) quality reporting programs for health care providers
and vendors supporting providers (CMS.gov).

What are the VBP Domains and how are they weighted?
Hospital VBP Domains and Relative Weights for Fiscal Year (FY] 2018 and Subsequent Years

Domain Weight

Safety 25%
Clinicat Care » 8 | 25%
Efficiency and Cost Reduction 25%
Patient and Caregiver-Centered Experlence of CarefCare Coordination* |  25%

‘Beginning with F¥ 2019, CMS will rename the *Patlent and Caregiver-Centered Experience of Care/ Care Coordination” damain to “Person and
Community Engagement.”
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ENSURING PATIENT SATISFACTION

Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and Systems (HCAHPS) is a
standardized survey used to collect and measure patient experience in hospitals.
HCAHPS scores were the first national standard for measuring patients’ perspective
of care across all hospitals. When the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid (CMS)
implemented HCAHPS, their goal was to introduce a system of measurement to help
consumers make well-informed healthcare decisions.

CMS defined three goals when developing the HCAHPS survey:

1.

W N

To create a standardized survey and implementation protocol to allow
objective and meaningful comparisons of hospitals on topics that are
important to patients;

To add new incentives for hospitals to improve quality of care;

To enhance accountability in healthcare by increasing transparency of the
quality of care provided in return for the public investment.

There are 21 HCAHPS survey questions that cover nine question areas:

1!

@NOWERUDN

9.

Communication with doctors
Communication with nurses
Responsiveness of hospital staff

Pain management

Communication about medicines
Discharge information

Cleanliness of the hospital environment
Quietness of the hospital environment
Transition of care

The patients are also asked to answer four screening questions and seven questions
about demographics. Including these questions, the survey is 32 questions long.

17
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Roles and Responsibilities

As stated previously, the body that is ultimately responsible for quality in the
organization is the Governing Board. The Board ensures the quality of all care
provided within the healthcare facilities. The responsibility for the development and
implementation of the Quality Management Program is delegated to the
organization’s leadership by the Governing Board. Strong, accountable leadership is
vital to the success of the quality program. The CEQ approves the Quality
Management Program and appoints a designee to oversee the program. However, the
Healthcare Quality Management Program requires the participation, support, and
cooperation of the entire leadership team. All members of the staff and physicians
share the responsibility for the safety and well-being of the patients that utilize our
services,

“The key to successful leadership today is influence, not authority.”
Kenneth Blanchard

QUALITY COUNCIL

The QC is made up of a member of the Board and a designated Administrative Officer,
Administrator, CNO, CMO, and a manager (or designee) from each department as
appropriate and at the discretion of the CEOQ (see figure 9). The QC will:

» Coordinate and oversee the hospital wide quality program;

* Provide a framework for a planned, continuous, systematic and organization
wide approach to designing, measuring, assessing and improving performance;

» Ensure education and training of staff for the Pl process and for QAPI activities;

* Assure adequate resources for PI;

* Prioritize Pl activities;

* ldentify organization trends and opportunities for improvement identified from
reports generated throughoutthe organization;

» Request additional Pl projects;

» Ensure the integration of the Pl process with the daily work of the facility.

18
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. PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT (PI)

A general guide for focus on the Pl projects is as follows:
= High-risk areas
* Low volume areas

* Problem-prone areas
* Regulatory requirements

& Powvo=zx

device)

. Patient Grievances

. Disclosure of Medical Errors
. Case Management

. Serious Safety Events (SSE)

Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Services (CMS)

. Medicare Beneficiary Quality

Improvement Project (MBQIP)

The process for goal setting will follow

The HQMP consists of the
following elements: the S.M.A-\._R.T. process. S.M.A:R.T GOALS
A. Performance Improvement (Pl) are specific, m.easurable, attainable,
B. Confidentiality of Data relevant, and timely. It cannot be
C. Program Evaluation emphasized enough how important the
D. Safety “measurable” dimension of this process
E. Utilization Management is when developing goals. Without
F. Medical Records measurement, there is no objective way
G. Infection Control to determine progress on a goal or to
H. Efnployee Health even determine if a plan is working. An
; E::wplian ce example of a measurable goal is:

. K. Occurrence/Incident Reporting decreasing the room turnaround time for
L. External Reporting (medical major Operating Room cases by 5

minutes within three months. An example
of a goal that is not measurable is:
improving communication. While
communication is very important, there is
no real way to objectively measure
improved communication. To
demonstrate progress on a goal, an
objective measurement is needed. A
S.M.A.R.T. Goal illustration is depicted on
the following page:
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COMMUNICATION

The HQM department provides oversight and responsibility for the quality data
collected throughout the organization. Data from the departmental reports will be
tracked, trended, and aggregated for the distribution to the Governing Board.
Minutes will be taken in the QC with the purpose of tracking team progress on P!
activities and core measures, utilizing the CRAF method. CRAF is an acronym that
stands for Conclusions, Recommendations, Actions, and Follow-up.

« Conclusions of the group’s discussion;

» Recommendations made by the committee or team;

« Actions that the committee, team, or individual members decide to take;

» Follow-up actions required.
Extraneous information and comments not relevant to the discussion should be
avoided. This system will help the individual taking notes focus on the important
aspects of the conversation. As stated previously, regular reports from the
departments to the QC will be completed on at least a quarterly basis, however,
data on the Pl plans from all departments will be collected monthly . A reporting
calendar has been developed for this process.

Program Evaluation

A yearly evaluation of the P! program will occur and will be completed by the HQM
department. The goals and objectives of the individual departments and the
organization will be evaluated. A report will be generated outlining the activities of
the year and the effectiveness of the program. This assessment of program
effectiveness will be developed by the QC and presented to the Governing Board
and will include the results of the Pl program improvement efforts as well as
recommendations for improvement to the program.
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CONFIDENTIALITY OF DATA: HIPAA, HITECH, PHIPA,
FIPPA

At times, highly sensitive and/or confidential data may be examined by the QC. The
appropriate safe guards have been put into place to restrict access to this data,
including a policy covering privacy as well as yearly privacy training for all staffin
the organization.

Individuals have an ethical and legal right to privacy. This right to privacy is based on
respect for person and the principle of autonomy. Autonomy is defined as "freedom
from external control orinfluence.” Individuals have a right to know who has
information about them and why and to whom the information is disclosed. To that
end, the health care organization recognizes the following obligations:

» The organization recognizes its obligation to protect the privacy of individuals
with respect to personal health information and personal information about
themselves that resides in the custody or the control of the organization;

o The organization is committed to maintaining the confidentiality of patient,
person, worker, and hospital information, whether written, verbal, electronic,
photographic, or stored in any other medium;

e The organization also has an obligation to ensure access to information by
authorized individuals. Individuals have the right to access their own personal
health information as outlined in the Health Information Management (HIM)
department policy and procedure manual, and to personal information about
themselves in the custody or the control of the organization.

e The organization has a responsibility to ensure confidentiality is maintained by
its staff and affiliates.

One of the key principles in both the Freedom of Information Privacy Protection Act
(FIPPA) and the Personal Health Information Privacy Act (PHIPA) is to protect the
privacy of individuals with respect to personal information about themselves held
by institutions and health information custodians. As 3 member of a healthcare
organization, all staff are custodians of Protected Health Information (PHI).
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General Rules (adapted from HHS.gov, 2013 and Federal Register Ve, 74, No. 209)

The Security Rule requires covered entities to maintain reasonable and appropriate
administrative, technical, and physical safeguards for protecting electronic
Protected Health Information (e-PHI).

Specifically, covered entities must:

1. Ensure the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of all e-PH! they
create, receive, maintain or transmit;

2. Identify and protect against reasonably anticipated threats to the
security or integrity of the information;

3. Protect against reasonably anticipated, impermissible uses or
disclosures; and,

4. Ensure compliance by their workforce.

The Security Rule defines “confidentiality” to mean that e-PHI is not available or
disclosed to unauthorized persons. The Security Rule's confidentiality
requirements support the Privacy Rule's prohibitions against improper uses and
disclosures of PHI. The Security rule also promotes the two additional goals of
maintaining the integrity and availability of e-PHI. Under the Security Rule,
“integrity” means that e-PHl is not altered or destroyed in an unauthorized manner.
“Availability” means that e-PHI is accessible and usable on demand by an
authorized person.”

Lastly, the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act
(HITECH Act), part of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA),
strengthened privacy protection for healthcare consumers because this act
anticipated a massive expansion in the exchange of electronic protected health
information (ePHI). The HITECH ACT also widens the scope of privacy and security
protections available under HIPAA: it increases the potential legal liability for non-
compliance, and it provides for more enforcement (HHs.gov). ARRA contains incentives
related to health care information technology in general (e.g. creation of a national
health care infrastructure) and contains specific incentives designed to accelerate
the adoption of electronic health record (EHR) systems among healthcare providers
{HHS.gov).
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equipment, recalls, and the purchase of new equipment. As we move towards
enhancing our IT systems, the SO must be involved with the tailoring of these tools
and the deployment of the system. Lastly, the SO must have a sound working
relationship with the Patient Advocate, which provides a view into what is really
going onin the facility (aHRQ, 2008).

Sentinel Events (SE)

“In support of its mission to continuously improve the safety and quality of health
care provided to the public, The Joint Commission (TJC) in its accreditation process
reviews hospitals’ activities in response to Sentinel Events (5E). The accreditation
process includes all full accreditation surveys and, as appropriate, for-cause surveys,

and random validation surveys specific to Evidence of Standards Compliance (ESC)"
(TIC, 2012).

“A sentinel event is an unexpected occurrence involving death or serious physical or
psychologicalinjury, or the risk thereof. Serious injury specifically includes loss of
limb or function. The phrase "or the risk thereof” includes any process variation for
which a recurrence would carry a significant chance of a serious adverse outcome.
Such events are called "sentinel” because they signal the need for immediate
investigation and response. The terms “sentinel event” and “error” are not
synonymous; not all sentinel events occur because of an error, and not all errors
result in sentinel events” (11c, 2012).

Types of Sentinel Events (adapted from TIC, 2012)

» Suicide of any patient receiving care, treatment, and services in a staffed
around-the clock care setting or within 72 hours of discharge, including from
the hospital's emergency department (ED);

» Unanticipated death of a full-term infant;
* Discharge of an infant to the wrong family;
* Abduction of any patient receiving care, treatment, and services;

» Any elopement (that is, unauthorized departure) of a patient from a staffed
around- the-clock care setting (including the ED), leading to death, permanent
harm, or severe temporary harm to the patient;
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= Hemolytic transfusion reaction involving administration of blood or blood
. products having major blood group incompatibilities (ABO, Rh, other blood
groups);

» Rape, assault (leading to death, permanent harm, or severe temporary harm),
or homicide of any patient receiving care, treatment, and services while on
site at the hospital;

« Fire, flame, or unanticipated smoke, heat, or flashes occurring during an
episode of patient care;

« Any intrapartum (related to the birth process) maternal death;

. Severe maternal morbidity.

50% to B0% of reports are made
by nurses, who consider reporting to be one of their
duties. Consequently, many reports address {ssues
pertinent to nursing care, such as medication
administration errors, falls, IV infiltrations, and pressure
sores. Pharmacists, clerks, respiratory technicians, and
other non-physician providers arealsoinvolved in
reporting to some degree. Physicians file only 1%-3%
of incident reports. Thus, incident reporting is most

. useful for improving hospital systems and care by
hospital employees. The problem is that, in a landmark

Incident and sentinel event reporting is an important part of error prevention. Sage
Memorial Hospital's platform utilizes the "Lesson’s Learned” approach to patient
safety events to promote education, process improvement, and prevent and mitigate

further error.

The purpose of the Incident Reporting Policy is to outline the requirements for
reporting and sentinel event management.
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additional major surgery, procedure, or treatment to resolve the condition
(Throop and Stackmeier, 2014),

Errors-Definitions (adapted from TIC, 2017)

No-harm Event: A Patient Safety Event that reaches the patient but does not
cause harm;

Near Miss (Close Call or Good Catch): A patient safety event that did not reach
the patient;

Medication Event: Any Patient Safety Event in which use of a medication
resulted in or could have resulted in an adverse outcome in a patient; includes
drug administration errors, drug incompatibility and adverse drug reactions;
Drug Administration Error: Any preventable event that may cause or lead to
inappropriate medication use or patient harm while the medication is in the
control of the health care professional, patient, or consumer. Such events may
be related to professional practice, health care products, procedures, and
systems, including: prescribing; order communication; product labeling,
packaging, and nomenclature; compounding; dispensing; distribution;
administration; education; monitoring; and use;

Drug Incompatibility: Occurs when drugs interfere with one another chemically
or physiologically. A drug incompatibility error occurs when two drugs known
to be incompatible with one another are mixed, administered together, or
administered in a timeframe known to interfere with one another;

Adverse Drug Reaction (ADR): A non-preventable event that includes any
unexpected, unintended, undesired, or excessive response to a drug that:
Requires discontinuing drug (therapeutic or diagnostic);

Requires changing therapy;

Requires modifying the dose (except for minor dosage adjustments);
Necessitates admission to the hospital;

Prolongs stay in a health care facility;

Necessitates supportive treatment;

Significantly complicates diagnosis;

Negatively affects prognosis;

Results in temporary or permanent harm, disability, or death consistent with
the definition, an allergic reaction (an immunologic hypersensitivity
occurring as the result of unusual sensitivity to a drug) and an idiosyncratic

0O 0O0OOOOOO OO
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reaction (an abnormal susceptibility to a drug that is peculiar to the
individual) are also considered ADRs.

Reporting a Safety Event

Only people who witness the incident should fill out and sign the incident report.
Each witness should file a separate report. Once the report is filed, the nursing
supervisor, department heads, administration, the facility's attorney (as appropriate
and initiated by administration), and the insurance company may review it. Because
incident reports will be read by many people and could even turn up in court, you
must follow strict guidelines when completing them. If an incident report form does
not leave enough space to fully describe an incident, attach an additional page of
comments. Document the incident as it occurred in the patient’s medical record,
“Incident Report Completed” should never appear in the patient’s record. The

incidentreportshould never be referred to in any way in the medical record {(adapted
from Kentuclcy Public Health Practice Reference, 2008).

Employee Responsibility

All employees are responsible for preparing an incident report as soon as possible
and reporting immediately to their supervisor, or in the supervisor’s absence,
reporting to the administration any incident or injury, including “near misses.”
Recommendations and appropriate changes shall be discussed with the supervisor

and necessary corrections implemented to prevent further accidents (adapted from
Kentucky Public Health Practice Reference, 2008).

Supervisor Responsibility

Upon receiving a report of an incident, written or oral, the supervisor shall
investigate. Following the investigation, supervisors are to review and complete the
Iincident Report and initiate the Worker’s Compensation Report, if indicated, for the
hospital’s insurance carrier. The supervisor shall act to implement corrective

measures immediately when the investigation reveals such actions are necessary
(adapted from Kentucky Public Health Practice Reference, 2008).

The supervisor shall provide a copy of the Incident Report and the Worker's
Compensation Report (if necessary) to the Safety Officer within five (5) working days
of the accident. ’
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Reports of all incidents and near misses should be discussed during meetings with
employees of the work unit to prevent problems of the same nature in the future.
“Patient safety event reporting systems are ubiquitous in hospitals and are a
mainstay of efforts to detect patient safety events and quality problems. Incident
reporting is frequently used as a general term for all voluntary patient safety event
reporting systems, and rely on those involved in events to provide detailed
information. Initial reports often come from the frontline personnel directly involved
in an event or the actions leading up to it (e.g., the nurse, pharmacist, or physician
caring for a patient when a medication error occurred), rather than management or
patient safety professionals” (AHRQ, 2017).

An incident report is not part of the patient’s chart, but it may be used later in
litigation. A report has two functions:
¢ Itinforms the administration of the incident, so management can prevent
similar incidents in the future;
- » |t alerts administration and the facility’s insurance company to a potential
claim and the need for investigation (Risk Management in Healthcare, 2017),

What to Report
Incidents that must be reported and documented include:

» Exposure Incidents: skin, eye, mucous membrane or parental contact with
blood or other potentially infectious materials that may result from the
performance of an employee's duties.

« Accident, Injury: patient, visitor, employee slips or falls, or other incident,
which results or may result in injury.

- Event, Behaviors, or Actions: incidents that are unusual, contrary to agency
policy or procedure or which may result in injury.

« Vaccine Adverse Event Reporting System: reaction to vaccine administered at
the organization.

« Maedication Reaction: reaction to any drug administered at or provided by the
organization.

« Property damage or missing articles.

« Administration of wrong medication or vaccine.

« Improper administration of medication or vaccine (Risk Management in Healthcare, 2017).
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OSHA Recordkeeping Requirements

Note: Regulatians issued under OSHA require all employers with more than ten employees at any time during the previous
calendar year to maintain records of recordable occupational injuries and illnesses.

OSHA 300 Log-recordable and non-recordable injuries are distinguished by the
treatment provided; i.e., if the injury required medical treatment, it is recordable; if
only first aid wasrequired, it is not required, it is not recordable. However, medical
treatment is only one of several criteria for determining record ability. Regardless of
treatment, if the injury involved loss of consciousness, restriction of work or motion,
transfer to another job or termination of employment, the injury is recordable. An

explanation, with examples, is included on the backside of the OSHA 300 Form (0sHA-
Business Case for Safety and Healith).

Tips for incident Reporting

* Include only essential information, such as identity of the person involved in
the incident, the exact time and place of the incident and the name of the
doctor you notified. Do not include extraneous information or opinions.

» Document anything unusual that you witnessed with this incident.

» Record the events and the consequences for the patient in enough detail that
administrators can decide whether to investigate further.

» Write objectively, avoiding opinions, judgments, conclusions, or assumptions
about who or what caused the incident. Provide suggestions to your supervisor
at a later date.

» Describe only what you saw and heard and the actions you took to provide care
at the scene and prevent the incident from occurring again. Unless you saw a
patient fall, write “found patient lying on the floor” or “heard a loud noise.”

» The Incident Report s not part of the medical record. It should be sent to the
person designated to review it according to your facility’s policy.

» Do not admit fault or blame someone else. Do not make statements like
“better staffing would have prevented this incident” or “the right equipment
would have prevented this.”

* Do not offer suggestions about how to prevent the incident from happening
again.

» Statements from witnesses and descriptions of remedial action should not be
included; as these are normally part of an investigative follow-up (Incident
Reports) (adapted from Kentucky Public Health Practice Reference, 2008).
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Review Process (adapted from van Wert Hospital Utilization Review Plan, 2014)
Admission review shall be conducted on predetermined patients within one working
day (24 hours) of admission {(Monday-Friday). The determination of the need for
admission is based on written criteria and standards. The following criteria sets will
be used:

 Severity of lllness; Intensity of Service

» Surgical Necessity Criteria

* Outpatient Procedures

* Levels of Care

* EHR
Information used to certify admission shall include, but not limited to:

» ldentification of the patient

« Admission date

« Surgery date (if applicable)

« Admitting physician

« Reason for admission (diagnosis/symptoms)

» Physicians’ plan of care

« Documentation of emergency admission

o Payer

« Anticipated Length of Stay

*Extended stay review will be performed at least every 2-3 days until discharge,
unless authorized for longer periods of time by payer.

The Case Manager or designee will screen all admissions and extended stay reviews
for medical necessity and appropriateness and will document same on the Utilization
Review Form. All decisions by the Case Manager or designee will be based on
approved Medical Staff criteria and nursing judgment.

Whenever the Case Manager or designee is unable to determine the medical
necessity for admission certification or extended stay, a note may be placed in the
medical record or a discussion with the attending physician should occur stating
there is insufficient documentation of medical necessity for the admission and/or
continued stay.
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In addition, the Case Manager or designee will refer the review to an outside
reviewer as appropriate.

If the admission certification or extended stay is disapproved by the outside
reviewer, the outside reviewer will contact the attending physician for clarification of
his/her treatment plan to continue the acute care hospitalization and/or to assist
with the recommendation of the appropriate level of care.

If the determination that an admission or continued stay is not medically necessary,
the determination may be made by:

* One member of the UR committee if the practitioner or practitioners
responsible for the care of the patient concur with the determination or fail to
present their views when afforded the opportunity; and,

» Must be made by at least two members of the UR committee in all other cases.

Before deciding that an admission or continued stay is not medically necessary, the
UR committee must consult the practitioner(s) responsible for the care of the patient
and afford the practitioner(s) the opportunity to present their views. If the committee
decides that admission to or continued stay in the hospital is not medically
necessary, written notification must be given, no later than 2 days after the
determination, to the hospital, the patient, (the single stateagency in the case of
Medicaid) and the practitioner{s) responsible for the care of the patient. In no case
may a non-physician make a final determination that a patient’s stay is not medically
necessary or appropriated.

If the outside reviewer has conferred with the attending physician and still wishes to
deny the case, and if the disapproved case is a Medicare, Medicaid, Indian Health
Services or other contracted third-party payer patient, a letter of denial will be issued
per the payer’s rules and regulations. The Case Manager will deliver the denial
notice to the patient. If the patient is incompetent, the denial notice will be sent by
certified mail to the legal representative and the Case Manager will attempt to
contact the legal representative by phone. Copies of the written denial will be sent
to the attending physician and the appropriate review agency. If at any time
thereafter the patient meets the criteria for medical necessity, the patient’s
insurance coverage will be reinstated per payer’s rules and regulations.
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All utilization review forms and reports are considered confidential material.

Through the analysis of data profiles generated by any peer review agency and other
external review groups, documented utilization review experience and review of Pl
studies, the UR or Peer Review Committee shall identify problems for focus review.
These problems may be associated with over and underutilization of services by
questionable patterns of care.

Identified utilization-related issues will be referred to the Medical Staff Peer Review
Committee. The Committee may assign a study of those utilization-related issues
identified through concurrent and retrospective studying by the Medical Staff
Committees and/or hospital departments. This will be carried out by using in-depth
criteria and standards during concurrent review and/or retrospective study.
Conversely, analysis of data profiles, documented utilization review experience, and
Pl studies should result in identification of appropriate diagnosis problems,
physicians, and/or classes of patients for which it can be documented that routine
review is not required. The identification of the area of excellent utilization for
services and facilities will result in focusing out those areas from continuous review.

MEDICAL RECORDS (HIM)

Health Information Management (HIM) is defined as information management
applied to healthcare. It is the practice of acquiring, analyzing, and protecting
medical information vital to providing quality patient care, and is a combination of
business, science, and information technology. Health information is the information
related to a person’s medical history, including symptoms, diagnoses, procedures,
and outcomes. Health information records includes many things such as patient
histories, lab results, x-rays, clinical information, and provider notes. Medical records
(HIM) is responsible for the quality, integrity, and protection of patient’s health
information (adapted from AHIMA-What Is Health information).

Medical Records Policy elements
Include:
» General Principles for * Responsibility for the

Medical Records Medical Record
* Confidentiality of the

Medical Record
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» |nformation Regarding

Health Information
Management Policies
Designation of the
Attending Physician
Referring Physician
Admitting H&P (adapted from
AHIMA)

Other elements of the medical record
policy should include the following
information regarding completion of
the medical record:

Timely Completion of the
Medical Record

Dealing with Incomplete
Medical Records

Action for Non-Timely
Completion of Medical
Record

Entries in the Medical
Record

Who Can Record Entries
Verbal Orders-When are
they appropriate and how to
document

Signatures - Authentication
Recording Entries in the
Medical Records
Abbreviations and Symbols

Errors and Corrections

Medical Record Contents to include in
policy regarding the patient:

The Inpatient Record
Identification sheets

Initial diagnosticimpression
History and physical {(H&P)
examination

Organ Donor

Consultation Requests and
Reports

Other sheets as required by
facility policy

Progress notes

Physician’s Pre-Op Invasive
Procedure Checklist & Post-
Op Invasive Procedure Note
Operative reports
Anesthesia record

Notes and reports

Vital Sign Sheet

Restraint record

Tests and reports

Discharge Summary
Face-Sheet

Consent Forms

Outpatient Records
Emergency Department
Records

Note: The Patient’s medical record must contain sufficient information to identify the
patient, support the diagnosis, justify the treatment and length of stay, document the
course of treatment as well as the results of treatment, and promote continuity of care.
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Availability of Records information that may be included in the Medical Record
Policy:
» Patients requesting access;
» Health Information may not be disclosed;
* Release of Information from the Health Information Management
Department to parties outside the hospital;
* Information Pertaining to Mental Health or Alcohol or Drug Abuse
Treatment;
* Removal of medical records from the Health Information Management
Department.

INFECTION PREVENTION

Infection prevention (IP) (previously referred to as infection control) is the discipline
concerned with preventing nosocomial (healthcare associated infections-HAl)
infections. When people go to the hospital, they should not contract a preventable
healthcare-associated infection (HAI). Unfortunately, HAls affect 5 to 10 percent of
hospitalized patients in the U.S. per year. Approximately 1.7 million HAls occur in
U.S. hospitals each year, resulting in 99,000 deaths and an estimated $20 billion in
healthcare costs (coc). The most common HAls are:

= Central line-associated blood stream infections (CLABIs)

» Catheter-associated urinary tract infections (CAUTIs)

= Surgical Site Infections (SSIs)

» Clostridium difficile infections (C-diff) (cDC-Preventing Healthcare Assoclated
Infections)

The facility infection prevention programs must be geared towards addressing
facility specific areas of concern and a mechanism needs to be in place (surveillance
and best practice) to determine areas of strengths and weakness in the existing
program. For example, if SS5is are determined to be a problem through the local
surveillance program, a plan should be developed to address this issue.
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There are ten (10) components that are necessary for a strong and effective infection
prevention program and includes the following:

1.

Leadership support - support from the top levels of leadership is vital to the
success of a high - quality infection prevention program

. Multi-disciplinary team involvement - involvement from all levels and

disciplines of the organization are required. Clear lines of accountability and
responsibility must be established for all team members. Infection
prevention is a facility effort, not an individual or committee effort.

. A trained infection preventionist - resources need be dedicated to the IP

program and the leader of the program must have formal training to perform
the duties of the position and improve the performance of the facility.
Depending on facility size, this position can vary from a part-time one to a
department with two or more full time equivalents (FTEs).

. Staff and patient education - annual IP education should be a requirement in

each facility. Patients should be educated, as well, on the expected practice
of the hospital staff. Patients with communicable diseases, such as C-diff,
should receive disease specific education on theirrole in preventing disease
transmission.

. Evidence - based policies and practices-written policies and procedures

based on evidence and best practice must be utilized. Special areas of focus
should include hand hygiene, care of invasive devices (catheters), protocols
for sterilization and disinfection as well as environmental cleaning. Isolation
policies should be written, and yearly competencies required of clinical staff
in the purpose, benefit, and use of isolation equipment.

. Surveillance - the outcomes from surveillance programs and processes

within the facility must be communicated to staff, physicians, leadership, and
the Governing Board. A system must be established that identifies high risk
patients and those that require isolation. Monitoring must be continuous and
ongoing.

. Outbreak management - rapid identification of organisms such as C-diff is

vital for prevention.

. Employee health policies mustarticulate the evidence-based

recommendations for staff with communicable diseases. The goal of these
policies is the protection of patients, staff, and visitors. A screening program
must be in place for new hires so that immunity for mumps, measles, rubella,
and hepatitis B can be assessed. The guidelines from the CDC must be
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followed with regards to these items. Lastly, a program that provides facility-
sponsored flu vaccinations to staff must be putinto place and staff must
understand and adhere to the policies set by the organization.

9. Antibiotic stewardship - monitoring of antibiotic selection and
administration across the organization must occur with the purpose of
ensuring that the correct pharmacological plan is followed, and patterns of
over-use are identified.

10.Public health reporting - the IP department must understand public health

reporting requirements at the local, state, and federal levels, (adapted from WHO,
2009)

EMPLOYEE HEALTH

Statistics show that work-related illnesses and injuries cost employers approximately
$1 billion per week in worker's compensation costs (OSHA, Business Case for Safety and Health).
The purpose of the Employee Health department’s policies and procedures is to
assist employees in preventing work related injuries and accidents as well as
promoting health and wellness. The goals of an Employee Health program should be
to encourage awareness of health issues, improve morale, and reduce the cost of
health care throughout the organization. A healthy workforce is a more productive
workforce. The individual responsible for the employee health program must
maintain a close relationship with the infection control department. In smaller
facilities, one person may have responsibility for both programs. A good working
relationship between these two departments results in a cohesive employee health
and IP program that avoids duplication of policies and processes and provides the
safest possible workplace for the staff and physicians.

The Employee Health department has primary responsibility for the following areas:

1. Pre-employment screening - the screening includes limited pre-employment
physicals to ensure the physical fitness for the desired position. They also
conduct pre-employment drug screenings to ensure a workplace free of
dangerous substances.

2. Immunization and testing - employers in the healthcare industry are very
concerned with protecting their employees from communicable diseases such
as hepatitis, flu, tuberculosis, and many other diseases.

3. Assessment of work-related injuries.
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4. Return to work exams.
5. Training related to work injuries, communicable diseases, blood pathogen
exposure, exposure to hazardous chemicals, and use of protective equipment.

The policies of a high-quality Employee Health program cover the following
dimensions:

o Employee incident and illness reporting. Specificity regarding parameters must
be included in the facility policies including such symptoms as: fever,
open/draining wounds, rash, productive cough, conjunctivitis (red, watering
eyes-may indicate highly contagious pink eye), lice, fleas, flu, and strep throat.

¢ Immunizations including Hepatitis B, Influenza, Measles, Rubella, Tetanus-
Diphtheria Toxoid, and Varicella. All are required by federal and state agencies.

¢ Management of employees with known communicable diseases.

» Blood borne pathogen post exposure follow up, hours of departmental
operation, process for actions when the department is closed, and the CDC post
exposure hotline number. The policies must address the specific actions for
Hepatitis B, Hepatitis C, Tuberculosis, and HIV exposure and give a precise
definition of the types of exposure and the actions to take in the event of
exposure. The policy must contain consent forms for the testing from both the
exposed staff member and the source patient. A log is kept in employee health
of all patients that report symptoms that could indicate a communicable

disease.

Overall, the employee health program should promote wellness and the maintenance
of sound health habits and the importance of good personal hygiene.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Because risks to patients, staff, visitors, and the organization are prevalent in
healthcare, it is necessary for our organization to have Risk Management (RM)
programs in place to assess, develop, implement, mitigate, and monitor risk. While
there are many priorities in risk management, the highest level is patient care. The
purpose of a RM program is to provide a systematic process of identifying,
evaluating, and reducing losses associated with patient, employee or visitor injuries,
property loss damages and other sources of legal liability. Ultimately, the CEO is
entrusted by the
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Governing Board with the overall oversight of the RM program. The CEO delegates
this responsibility to an appropriate staff member (risk manager).
Successful RM plans contain certain, vital elements that serve to reduce risk to the
organization and one of these is a Commercial Insurance Plan. This may include, but
is not limited to:

* Property and Casualty

* Auto

* Business Interruption

* General Liability

» Coverage for Directors and Officers of the corporation

* Maedical Errors and Omissions

» Inland Marine (for things like valuable electronic data and accounts receivable)

« Crime (employee theft related incidents including embezzlement)

* Worker's Compensation

» Benefits (health, disability, and life)

Training programs also mitigate risk to the organization. Facility training in the
following areas is integral to the mitigation of risk:

» Safety Training (Safety Committee: fire drills, disaster planning (FEMA training
for leadership), work force safety, building safety inspections, workplace
violence;

« OSHA Training Compliance (blood borne pathogens, needle sticks, hazardous
waste disposal, employee injuries, ergonomics);

» Security Programs (employee/patient safety issues);

» IT Security (pass word management, access management, firewalls, security
rules for the domain, physical security-locked doors).

Risk Management Strategies must be developed so that a systematic approach to
Risk Management is utilized. Just like Performance Improvement, systematic and
standardized approaches to problems results in fewer defects and sustainable
processes. A basic 5-step process is followed:
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Patient-Related Risks

Confidentiality and Release of Protected Health Information

Informed Consent for Medical Treatment

Protections of patient valuables from loss or damage (things like dentures,
hearing aids, glasses)

Medical Staff-Related Loss

Medical staff peer review and quality improvement/performance improvement
activities

Confidentiality and protection of patient information

Medical staff credentialing, appointment, and privileging

Employee-Related Risks

Maintaining a safe work environment

Reduction of the risk of occupational illnesses and injury

Treatment and compensation of workers who suffer work related injuries
Ensuring non-discrimination in the work-place (recruitment, hiring, and
promotion)

*Annual Appraisal of the Risk Management Program: As part of the Risk Management Program, the scape, organization,
andeffectiveness ofthe Risk Management activities will be evaluatedannually. Revisions. if any, will be recommended,
approved, and implemented as needed.

Risk Management

Authority
The Risk Management is designated by the CEO to the Healthcare Quality Manager.
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Purpose

To provide a timely review of significant incidents that occur within the organization
(trend and analyze), recommend the most appropriate carrective action plan for
problems without simple solutions.

Organization

The Risk Management will be chaired by the Healthcare Quality Manager or
designee as appointed by the CEQ. The Risk Management shall be comprised of the
following representatives:

* Executive Staff Member

* Medical Staff Member

» Healthcare Quality Management Member (Leader of the
department)

* Utilization Review Department Member (Leader of the department)

* Safety

* Risk Management

* Nursing

Y1t an appointed member s not available to attend, a proxy member must attend In kis/her place.

Functions (adapted from HRSA, Risk Management Policles and Procedures)

The Risk Management shall meet on a semi-annually basis and maintain minutes. It
is vital to reflect in the minutes the actions taken to correct and prevent repeated
occurrences of an issue/error. Hospital Acquired Infections and Injuries are to be
included in the Risk Management Committee report.

The Risk Management Committee shall meet on a semi-annual basis to review all of
the committee’s Policies and Procedures, as well as applicable federal and state
regulations, to ensure continued compliance within the organization.

The Risk Management will:

» Establish and implement the risk identification, evaluation, treatment and
monitoring subsystems;

* ldentify data resources;

* Evaluate problems to determine corrective action;

= Implement corrective actions;

* Monitor effectiveness of actions implemented;

= Advise CEQ on matters of policies and procedures;
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Review claim activity;

Recommend to the CEO the advisability of waiving patient bills;

Develop educational programs aimed at the reduction of liability claims;
Participate in the investigation of potentially compensable events;
Conduct periodic audits of departments and services for risk exposure;
Review and investigate patient incident reports and recommend new or
additional programs and procedures to prevent future occurrences of the
same or related types of patient incidents;

Call upon employees and other personnel who have specific knowledge of
incidents under review;

Request medical records and other documents specific to incidents under
review;

Make recommendations to the pertinent clinical departments and/or the
Center administration to improve customer care, organization, procedure or
policy;

Take all steps necessary to maintain the confidentiality of its review,
investigations and other activities.

Risk Reporting: General Information

In an effort to minimize losses, Sage Memorial Hospital has developed this manual
to provide a systematic program designed to reduce or eliminate preventable
injuries and accidents to employees, patients and visitors. The goal of these
control measures is to minimize the financial severity of claims arising out of such
injuries.

The objectives of the Risk Management Program are to:

Identify the causes of injuries or losses to patients, visitors and employees;
Seek out situations that could produce occurrences resulting in financial loss;
Use the Incident Report as a source of data to be reviewed by the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Medical Officer or Medical Director;

Contact the person involved in the incident as soon as possible. If the person
involved is a patient or visitor, contact should be made prior to the person
leaving the premises. If the person has a grievance, attempts should be made to
deal with the complaint immediately with notification to the CMO (Medical
Director) and/or CEQ;

Eliminate dangerous procedures that provide an element of risk in the practice
of medicine;
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»  Produce a mechanism, other than the courts, to handle claims;

. * Promote good visitor and patient relations.
(HRSA, Risk ManagementPaliciesand Procedures)

Each department manager or his/her designee has the overall responsibility to do
the following:
= Provide training programs for alt members of the health care team. "Staff
training is crucial to the successful management of risk exposures
resulting from the interaction of humans and biomedical technology. The
need for staff training in general and cross training to meet specific needs
is not limited to permanent personnel of the facility. The increased use of
clinical staff from per diem pools and commercial companies that provide
individuals for short or long-term assignments raises significant

orientation and training challenges for health care facilities” (Singh and
Ghatala, 2012)

WORKER'S COMPENSATION has established procedures to review injuries to
employees while they are on the job. If an employee is injured in the course of their
duties, the organization may be responsible for the employee’s medical expenses,
and must, through the state worker's compensation system, provide weekly
. compensation until the employee returns to work. Benefits are paid in accordance
with the compensation laws specific to the State of Arizona.
1. Required Action

* If an injury to an employee occurs, it is the department manager's
responsibility to take charge of the situation. Employees should be instructed
on their responsibilities in handling situations that arise.

* Provide immediate medical assistance to the injured staff member as soon as
possible. Visit the injured employee to determine the circumstances and
cause of the accident. If the employee is unable to provide this information at
the time of the accident, obtain it as soon as practical thereafter, but continue
to obtain statements from eyewitness to the accident.

2. How to Report |
* The "First Report of Injury” must be completed immediately after the accident.
All Worker's Compensation losses require completion of this form.
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= |f the injury is severe or assistance is needed in the completion of the form,
contact the Quality/Risk Manager.

 Within TEN (10) DAYS after receiving notice of the accident, an employer must
complete an Employer‘s Report of Injury and forward copies to the Commission
and its insurance carrier or third-party administrator. It is strongly encouraged
that this form be used to report the accident to the Commission online. It must
be completed in its entirety (Industrial Commission of Arizona).

IMPORTANT: The employer must notify the Commission of a work-related fatality
by telephone, telegram or electronic filing no later than the next business day
following a fatality (Industrial Commission of Arizona).

¢ Itis vital that the report be completed properly and filed as no benefits can
be paid to the injured employee until the insurance carrier is in receipt of
this report.

* There will be times when the injury to an employee is not immediately
known. However, when you have first been made aware of the situation,
follow the appropriate procedures for filing a Worker's Compensation
Claim.

» Telephone notification of a loss is not adequate for the reporting ofa
Worker’s Compensation Claim since the State of Arizona requires the
completion of the “First Report Injury” Form on all Worker's Compensation
Claims (industrial Commisslon of Arizona),

Definition of Incident, Variance, or Occurrence:

An incident, variance or occurrence (hereinafter “incident”) is any event which is not
consistent with the desired operation of the facility or care of the patient or any
event causing patient, visitor and other non-employee dissatisfaction.

Examples of Incidents include, but are not limited to:
» Physical harm to patient, staff or third parties (visitors, students, etc.);
* Unauthorized leaves by patients;
 Accidents in which patients, staff or third parties are injured or die;
» Drug or alcohol use or traffic of these substances from the outside;
» Damage to or loss of property;
* Medication errors;
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Poor results from treatment of procedures;
Injuries;

Patient dissatisfaction;

Retained foreign bodies;

Accidental burns;

Neurological deficits;

Mistaken identity;

Patient and visitor falls;

Unexpected transfers to any hospital;

Complaints or serious threats of lawsuits by the patient or the family;
Patient leaving the center against medical advice;
Severe drug reactions;

Unexpected deaths;

Incidents from the use of equipment and medical devices.
(adapted from HRSA, Risk Management Policies and Procedures)

Procedure

Provide immediate, appropriate care and follow-up for the patient, visitor or
other non-employee if he/she is injured. Ensure that the appropriate
immediate actions are taken so that the incident is not repeated.

When there is a serious injury or the subject of an incident {or the family) is

angry or upset about the incident, Risk Management should be notified

immediately, along with taking other requisite actions to resolve the
issue/matter.

Complete an Incident Report Form to:

o Provide arecord of the event, document the facts of the incident,
identify witnesses and preserve any other evidence at the scene;

o Provide a base from which the corporation can further determine,
investigate, and evaluate deviations from the standard of care, policies,
procedures, protocol, etc,;

o Provide a means of refreshing the memory of those having direct
knowledge of the event;

o Alert Risk Management of the possibility of a claim or lawsuit to allow for
complete investigation and documentation; and,

o Comply with state and federal regulatory requirements,
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The Incident Report Form should be completed by the person having the best
. knowledge of when the incident occurred or is discovered. The need for

immediate reporting cannot be overemphasized.
(adapted from HRSA, Risk Management Policies and Procedures)

The following information must be included:

» the name of the patient(s), visitor or other non-employee;

» the address of the person;

« a patient’s medical record number;

» the facts surrounding the incident or occurrence;

» any follow-up action taken;

» any injury (physical, emotional or otherwise) to the person;

« the reaction of the person the family to the incident;

» the identity and location of any medical device or equipment that caused
and/or contributed to the incident.

v The person completing the Incident Report Form shall sign it, print his or her
name underneath the signature and indicate the extension where he or she
canbe reached for additional information.

v The examining physician should not sign the Incident Report Form, however,

. his or her name should be printed on the form.

v Should additional space be necessary, attachments to the form are
appropriate.

v The manager or supervisor of the area should review the IRF and take any
appropriate follow-up action necessary {counsel employee, documentation,
report to superiors, etc.).

v All copies of the IRF must be forwarded to the Risk Manager within 48 hours
following the occurrence or discovery of the incident,

v The Nurse Management Coordinator or Supervisor of the area should
complete the Risk Management follow-up and forward it to Risk
Management when follow-up has been completed. If follow-up is completed
immediately after review of the Incident ReportForm, staple it to the
Incident Report Form (adapted from HRSA, Risk Management Policies and Procedures).

Medical Records
» The facts of the events should be documented in the medical record when the
incident involves a patient, however, no reference should be made to the
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Incident Report Form in the medical record or the fact than an Incident Report
. was completed.
» The Incident Report Form is never placed in the medical record.
« The following guidelines should be used in the medical record documentation
of the event:
o be objective and accurate;
o write a brief narrative of the events surrounding the incident/occurrence,

the follow-up action taken, and the status of the patient (adapted from HRSA, Risk
Management Policies and Procedures), ‘

Do not use any of the following terms:
» “incident report” or "accident”
« “negligent” or "negligently”
» “inadvertent” or “inadvertently”
« “in error”
"by mistake” or "mistakenly” (adapted from HRSA, Risk Management Policles and
Procedures).

Equipment Related Incidents
+ If a piece of medical equipment (e.g. x-ray machine) or a medical device (e.g.
. syringe, catheter, g-tube) is involved in an incident, the name of the equipment
or device, the manufacturer, the manufacturer’s "lot” number, if available, and
other related identification should be documented on the incident report. If
there is a malfunction, the incident report should relate the facts that
indicated malfunction.

» |tis of primary importance in cases of suspected malfunctions that the
equipment be removed from service for later testing. The suspected
malfunctioning equipment should be labeled as such and sent to the quality
manager and noted on the Incident Report Form.

« Under no circumstance should the medical device or equipment be
discarded. It must be preserved for further investigation. If the device or
equipment is contaminated, contact the quality manager for instructions

regarding its proper preservation (adapted from HRSA, Risk Management Policies and
Procedures).
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Multi-Department Incidents
. «  When two or more departments or areas are involved in an incident, one of
the following should be done:
o Each department or area should complete separate forms;
o The supervisors of the involved departments should collaborate to
complete one set of forms,
« However, each department/area will be responsible for following through on

all steps of reporting, regardless of the method of reporting chosen (adapted
from HRSA, Risk Management Policies and Procedures).

Risk Management Investigation
» Risk Management will review the Incident Report Form,
+ Risk Management may investigate all incidents and perform any or all the
following during that investigation:
o review the medical record;
o interview knowledgeable personnel identified in the report;
o review any pertinent policies and/or procedures which may be
applicable to the incident;
o request the assistance of other in-house personnel in the review of the
incident;
‘ o refer the incident to the appropriate department head for action;
take or request any additional follow-up action that is indicated;
o take any other action deemed necessary by the Risk Manager to
respond to the incident (adapted from HRSA, Risk Management Pollcies and Pracedures).

]

Availability of Risk Management Data
= Risk Management logs document certain information into an information
system and some statistical analysis is performed on this data. Non-specific
information from this database and non-specific information from
investigations is available to nursing and other staff who can justify a need for
this information (quarterly and annual reports, etc.) However, specific

information will not be released unless authorized by the CEO
{adapted from HRSA, Risk Management Policies and Procedures).
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2.A designated compliance officer and compliance committee. The designation
of a chief compliance officer charged with the responsibility of operating and
monitoring the compliance program. The compliance officer must report
directly to the CEO.

3.The development of effective training and education for all affected
employees.

4.The development of effective lines of communication, clear policy directives
and a hotline for reporting as well as the use of audits and/or other evaluation
techniques to monitor compliance and assist in the reduction of identified
problem areas.

5. An effective compliance program conducts internal monitoring and auditing
to include the development of a system to respond to allegations of
improper/ illegal activities and the enforcement of appropriate disciplinary
action against employees who have violated internal compliance policies,
applicable statutes, regulations or Federal health care program requirements.

6.Standards enforcement through well-publicized disciplinary guidelines. This
should include the development and distribution of written standards of
conduct. These written policies should compose details regarding the
elements of the Corporate Compliance Program, the details of the Code of
Conduct Policy, training for all staff, as well as on-going, yearly mandatory
compliance training, and a disaster recovery plan in the event of a system
failure or breach. These policies and procedures should apply to all
employees, volunteers, staff members, hospital management and
departments.

7.Responding promptly to detected offenses and undertaking corrective actions
as well as the maintenance of a process, such as a hotline, to receive
complaints,and the adoption of procedures to protect the anonymity of
complainants and to protect whistleblowers from retaliation (adapted from
the OIG (HEAT), Coverage Point, and the Federal Register / Vol. 63, No. 35/
Monday, February 23, 1998 / Notices).
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the federal government to which he may not be entitled, and then uses false
statements or records to retain the money. An example of this so-called “reverse
false claim” may include a hospital who obtains interim payments from Medicare
throughout the year, and then knowingly files a false cost report at the end of the
year to avoid making a refund to the Medicare program (31 U.5.C. § 3729).” (adapted

from justice.gov)

It is the policy of Sage Memorial Hospital to comply with the law in the pursuit of all
business endeavors. Further, Sage Memorial Hospital provides information and
education to all staff and physicians on the rules and regulations regarding
compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local requirements. To facilitate
reporting, a compliance HOTLINE has been set up so that staff can report suspected
violations. Reporting directly to the Office of the Attorney General (01G) can also be
accomplished by links accessible at the respective facility’s website.

EXTERNAL REPORTING (MEDICAL DEVICE)
Medical Device Reporting (MDR)

“Each year, the FDA receives several hundred thousand medical device reports of
suspected device-associated deaths, serious injuries and malfunctions. Medical
Device Reporting (MDR) is one of the post-market surveillance tools the FDA uses to
monitor device performance, detect potential device-related safety issues, and
contribute to benefit-risk assessments of these products” (adapted from USFDA, 2018).
"Mandatory reporters (i.e., manufacturers, device user facilities, and importers) are
required to submit certain types of reports for adverse events and product problems
to the FDA about medical devices. In addition, the FDA also encourages health care
professionals, patients, caregivers and consumers to submit voluntary reports about
serious adverse events that may be associated with a medical device, as well as use
errors, product quality issues, and therapeutic failures. These reports, along with data
from other sources, can provide critical information that helps improve patient
safety” (adapted from USFDA, 2018)

Device User Facilities: A "device user facility” is a hospital, ambulatory surgical
facility, nursing home, outpatient diagnostic facility, or outpatient treatment facility,
which is not a physician’s office. User facilities must report a suspected medical
device-related death to both the FDA and the manufacturer. User facilities must
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report a medical device-related serious injury to the manufacturer, or to the FDA if
the medical device manufacturer is unknown" (adapted from USFDA, 2018).

“A user facility is not required to report a device malfunction, but can voluntarily
advise the FDA of such product problems using the voluntary MedWatch Form FDA
3500 under FDA’s Safety Information and Adverse Event Reporting Program.
Healthcare professionals within a user facility should familiarize themselves with
their institution’s procedures for reporting adverse events to the FDA. The "Medical
Device Reporting for User Facilities" is an online user's guide for filling out the MDR
form FDA3500" (UsFDA. 2018).

PATIENT GRIEVANCES

Is it a complaint or a grievance? What's the difference?

The Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) distinguishes between
complaints and grievances. According to CMS a complaint is a minor patient issue
that can be resolved promptly, within 24 hours, or before the patient is discharged,
such as a meal preference or environmental concerns. Complaints that are usually
addressed by staff who are present at the time of the complaint and can resolve the
concern at that time, such as a nurse, housekeeper, or physician. Complaints that can
be resolved by the involved staff members at the time of the complaint generally do
not require e written response. However, even if a patient's complaint is addressed
quickly and informally, the facility should document the complaint and the actions
taken to resolve it. Maintaining these records is useful for quality improvement
activities. When complaints are more complex and/or cannot be resolved during the
patient stay, prior to discharge, then the patient can file a formal grievance.

“A patient grievance” is a written or verbal complaint (when the verbal complaint
about patient care is not resolved at the time of the complaint by staff present) by a
patient, or the patient’s representative, regarding the patient’s care, abuse or neglect,
issues related to the hospital’s compliance with the CMS Hospital Conditions of
Participation (CoP), or a Medicare beneficiary billing complaint related to rights and

limitations provided by 42 CFR §489"(CMS gov-Center for Medicakd and State Operations/Survey and
Certification Group. Ref-S&(C-5-42).

101




Grievance Procedure

. The facility policy will articulate the detailed process for handling grievances.
However, the CM5 survey elements are listed below. The organization must review
their policies and procedures to assure that the grievance process encourages all
personnel to alert appropriate staff concerning any patient grievance.
Review the hospital's policies and procedures to assure that its grievance process
encourages all personnel to alert appropriate staff concerning any patient grievance.

. Does the hospital adhere to its policy/procedure established for referrals?

. Is the hospital following its grievance policies and procedures?

. The agency will review the grievance file and determine if the facility followed
the established guidelines.

. The agency may interview a patient in the facility to determine if they know
how to file a complaint or grievance.

. Does the hospital's process assure that grievances involving situations or
practices that place the patient in immediate danger, are resolved in a timely
manner?

. Does the patient or the patient’s representative know that he/she has the right
to file a complaint with the State agency as well as instead of utilizing the
hospital’s grievance process?

. Has the hospital provided the telephone number for the State agency to all

. patients/patient representatives?

. Are the patients aware of their right to seek review by the Healthcare Quality

Council for quality of care issues, coverage decisions, and to appeal a

premature discharge?
{CMS.gov-Center for Medicaid and State Operations/Survey and Certification Group. Ref-5&C-5-42).

A well-developed policy and procedural plan must be utilized in the facility that
follows the guidelines established by CMS.
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The Hospital Outpatient Quality Reporting Program (Hospital OQR) is a “pay for
quality” data reporting program implemented by the Centers for Medicare &
Medicaid Services (CMS) for outpatient hospital services. Outpatient care can refer to
numerous types of health services, such as emergency department services,
observation services, outpatient surgical services, lab tests, and X-rays, provided to
those who visit a hospital or other healthcare facility. Outpatient often refers to a
patient who leaves the facility after treatment on the same day but may include a
patient who spends the night at the hospital for whom a doctor has not written an
order for inpatient admission (CMs.gov: Hospital Outpatient Quality Reporting Program).

The list below outlines the outpatient reporting requires:

Outpatient Reporting: CY 2019 Payment Determination

= OP-1: Median Time to Fibrinolysis

= OP-2: Fibrinolytic Therapy Received Within 30 Minutes of ED Arrival

= OP-3: Median Time to Transfer to Another Facility for Acute Coronary Intervention

« OP-4; Aspirin at Arrival

* OP-5: Median Time to ECG

« OP-18: Median Time from ED Arrival to ED Departure for Discharged ED Patients

« OP-20: Door to Diagnostic Evaluation by a Qualified Medical Provider

= QP-21: Median Time to Pain Management for Long Bone Fracture

« OP-22: Left Without Being Seen

= Emergency Department Transfer Communication: this measure is particularly
relevant for Critical Access Hospitals (CAH) and is included in the Medicare
Beneficiary Quality Improvement Project (MBQIP)

Inpatient Reporting: CY 2019 Payment Determination
The inpatient measures are part of CMS’s Value-Based Purchasing program as
described above. The measures below are required for hospitals:

« ED-1: Median Time from ED Arrival to ED Departure for Admitted ED Patients

+ ED-2: Admit Decision Time to ED Departure Time for Admitted Patients

« IMM-2: Influenza Immunization

- PC-01: Elective Delivery

» SEP-1: Early Management Bundle, Severe Sepsis/Septic Shock

VTE-6: Incidence of Potentially Preventable Venous Thromboembolism
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Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and Services (HCAHPS):
a standardized survey instrument and data collection methodology has been in

use since 2006 to measure a patient’s perception of hospital care. (adapted from
Medicare Benefidary Quality Improvement Project (MBQIP) Quality Reporting Gulde, December 2017)

Medicare Beneficiary Quality improvement Program (MBQIP) (adapted from Medicare Benefidary Quality
Improvement Project (MBQJP) Quality Reporting Guide, December 2017)

The Medicare Beneficiary Quality Improvement Project (MBQIP) is a quality
improvement activity under the Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility (Flex) grant
program of the Health Resources and Services Administration’s Federal Office of
Rural Health Policy (FORHP). The goal of MBQIP is to improve the quality of care
provided in critical access hospitals (CAHs), by increasing quality data reporting by
CAHs and then driving quality improvement activities based on the data. This project
provides an opportunity for individual hospitals to look at their own data, measure
their outcomes against other CAHs and partner with other hospitals in the state
around quality improvement initiatives to improve outcomes and provide the highest
quality care to every one of their patients.

Care Transitions: These resources focus on quality improvement for care transitions.
The current required and additional Medicare Beneficiary Quality Improvement
Project (MBQIP) measures that fall under this domain are:

» Emergency Department Transfer Communication

* Discharge Planning

» Medication Reconciliation

These resources focus on quality improvement for outpatient hospital services,
primarily those provided in the emergency department (ED). The current required
and additional Medicare Beneficiary Quality Improvement Project (MBQIP) measures
that fall under this domain include:

Required:
* OP-1: Median Time to Fibrinolysis
* OP-2: Fibrinolytic Therapy Received Within 30 Minutes
» OP-3: Median Time to Transfer to Another Facility for Acute Coronary
Intervention
* OP-4: Aspirin at Arrival
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¢ OP-5: Median Time to ECG (electrocardiogram)
. » OP-18: Median Time from ED Arrival to ED Departure for Discharged ED Patients
= OP-20: Door to Diagnostic Evaluation by a Qualified Medical Professional
« OP-21: Median Time to Pain Management for Long Bone Fracture V
° OP-22: Left Without Being Seen (Emergency Department)

Additional:

» ED-1:Median Time from ED Arrival to ED Departure for Admitted ED Patients
(Required measurebeginningFiscal Year (FY) 2018, moving to the Patient
Safety/Inpatient domain)

» ED-2:Admit Decision Time to ED Departure Time for Admitted
Patients(Required measurebeginningFY 2018, moving to the Patient
Safety/Inpatient domain)

* OP-23: ED- Head CT or MRI Scan Results for Acute Ischemic Stroke or
Hemorrhagic Stroke

* Patients who received Head CT or MRI Scan Interpretation Within 45 Minutes of
ED Arrival

* OP-25: Safe Surgery Checklist Use

External Quality Reporting: 30-day risk-standardized mortality measures
. * Acute Myocardial Infarction
« Heart Failure
* Pneumonia

External Quality Reporting: 30-day risk-standardized readmission measures
* Acute Myocardial Infarction
= Heart Failure
* Pneumonia
« Hip/Knee *non-CAHs
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QUALITY CHECKLIST

The following items are recommended to be in place to have a successful facility
Quality Improvement Program:
Q Review Healthcare Quality Management Manual; distribute to leaders as
appropriate
O Develop hospital and department dashboards
Q Determine hospital wide quality targets, document the 'why'for each
O Determine department quality targets; document the '‘why' for each
Q Determine how each item will be measured
Q Determine accountability measures
O Educate staff on targets and ‘why' each was chosen
O Communicate to organization the results of measures
QO Develop program plan/policies for:
Safety
OSHA Log
Employee Health
Risk Management
Compliance
Patient Grievance
Disclosure of Medical Errors

O 0O o o 0O o o
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. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Established in 1978, Navajo Health Foundation — Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc. (“Sage™) is an Arizona private
501(c)(3) not-for-profit healthcare corporation. The organization includes a 25-bed Critical Access Hospital and
outpatient clinics located in Ganado, and Greasewood Springs, Arizona.

Sage is a Native-managed comprehensive healthcare system and is the only Native-governed hospital to hold a license
from the Arizona Department of Health. Today, Sage serves approximately 20,000 people as the sole provider of
health care services across the Navajo Nation chapters and communities of Cornfields, Ganado, Kinlichee, Klagetoh,
Greasewood Springs, Steamboat, Wide Ruins, and a portion of Nazlini encompassing the communities south of Route
26. Many patients from outside of our community service area choose to travel to Sage to receive health care services.

Sage facilitated a comprehensive Community Health Needs Assessment (“CHNA™) for both the main campus and
Greasewood Springs satellite clinic. The purpose was to understand the public health needs facing those communities
for which it provides health care services. This CHNA was conducted between August 1s and September 30m, 2019
as an update to the CHNA performed by Sage in 2016.

This report fulfills federal regulations requiring non-profit hospitals to conduct a community health needs assessment
every three years.: Performing this assessment at regular intervals enables the hospital to monitor and respond to the

community’s changing public health needs.

Approach

Sage performed the CHNA with the collaboration of the hospital administration, executive leadership, public health

professionals, and clinical staff (“Assessment Team™ or “Team™). The Assessment Team conducted surveys with the
. community members and focus groups and rescarched secondary data sources for relevant community health

information. The Assessment Team analyzed the collected data and cross-referenced it with relevant public databases.

The Team then developed this report that summaries key findings and outlines the implementation plan developed

by the Board of Directors and its Administrative Executive staff to meet the most immediate and vital community

health heeds.

Summary of Findings

Demographics
Approximately 95% of the residents served by Sage are of American Indian or Alaska Native (“AI/AN™) descent.

The age distribution of the populations weighed toward younger age groups, with approximately 52% of the
population under the age of 44. Compared to national averages, the community has a lower level of education, a
higher poverty rate, a higher unemployment rate, and a lower average household income. The Navajo language (or
another language other than English) is spoken in 45% of the households served by Sage, and 82% of the population

speaks English.

Health Care Needs
The Assessment Team identified the following high priority health care needs from the greatest to the lowest priority

within the service area of the hospital:

e Behavioral Health and Substance Abuse Treatment
e Pediatric Care

. ! Internal Revenue Service. (2018, 11 07). Communiry Health Needs Assessment for Charitable Hospital Organtzations-Section 5301 (c)(3). Retrieved 06 27, 2049 from
IRS.gov: hitps;/Awww.irs.gov/eharities-non-profits/community-health-necds-assessment-for-charitable-liospital-organizations-seciion-301r3
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. ¢ Obesity Prevention
o Geographic Accessibility of Health Care Services
s Diabetic Care and Prevention

Several of these needs were also identified as high priority during the 2016 CHNA and are expected to be major
health care concerns in the future due the low socioeconomic conditions coupled with the remote frontier location.

Addressing the Health Care Needs of the Community

Based on the findings for the 2016 CHNA, Sage’s leadership adopted and began executing an implementation
strategy to meet the high priority health care needs of the community. Sage continues to expand upon the 2016
strategy through the following actions that address the community’s health care needs.2

» Expansion of Behavioral Health Services; recruit/retain additional clinicians and

Behavioral Health staff;

= Expand capacity for increased psychotherapy and counseling utilizing
professionals with a working understanding of the Navajo culture;

« Implement an outreach program that identifies individuals at risk for Behavioral
Health issues;

= Collaborate with local schools 1o identify at risk children;

+ Expansion of the substance abuse rehabilitation programs;

» Implementation of Telemedicine for Behavioral Health Services

Pediatric Care » Expand public health immunization programs for children ages 6 months and
older;
. » Increase nutritional education outreach programs;
» Increase child and teen health information and education;

» Recruit/retain Board Certified Pediatricians;

+ Expand the capacity for pediatric services at the Sage main campus clinic and
Greasewood Springs clinic

Obesity Prevention » Continue to educate community members about the importance of ¢xercise and
healthy lifestyles through the community outreach programs;

= Increase the number of community activities that encourage exercise and healthy
lifestyle habits;

» Encourage the use of the Wellness Center for employees and patients referred
through the Indian Health Service Special Diabetes Program for Indians grant
program;

* Continue to conduct health fairs throughout the community;

» Recruit/retain a dietician;

» Recruit/retain certified personal trainers

Accessibility to » Expansion of Services within the Chapter communities;
Health Care + Review the viability of Telemedicine programs that would aliow patients to access
Services providers through a “virtual” environment;

» Coordinate patient home visits by Community Health Nurse(s) and collaboration
with the Community Health Representatives to increase patient compliance with
physicians® plan of care for the patients who do not have reliable transportation

Diabetes Care and + Continue the community outreach program to educate community members about
Prevention diabetes and prevention, and continue 1o refer individuals to the program;

2 Full implementation and timing of this strategy may be impacted by the state and federal budget allocations, physician recruitment. and unforeseen impacts of the
PPACA. 118




. « Increase community activities that encourage exercise and healthy lifestyles:

* Recruit/retain a Clinical Nurse Case Manager to facilitate the management and
care of the diabetes program patients;

= Develop and support the Native Diabetes Wellness Program initiative to coincide
with emerging Medicare trends shifting toward preventative care versus tertiary
care;

* Continue to expand the Sage community garden to increase community
involvement in wellness activities and supplement nutritional resources with
healthy food alternatives;

* Expand health screenings at the community chapter level to identify at risk
individuals

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

History of Navajo Health Foundation-Sage Memorial Hospital

Navajo Health Foundation-Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc. (“Sage™) is a private Arizona 501(c)(3) not for profit
Health as a Rural General Hospital, is Joint Commission Accredited and is also Certified by the Centers of
Medicare and Medicaid Services.

healthcare organization governed by a five (5) member all Navajo Governing Board. Sage Memorial Hospital
is in Ganado, Arizona on private land surrounded by the Navajo Nation and owned by the Presbytery of Grand
' Canyon. The main Sage campus consists of 82 buildings on approximately 110 acres which include the main

hospital, an outpatient clinic, administrative offices, allied health clinics, employee childcare center employee
wellness center and subsidized employce housing. Sage is licensed by the Arizona department of
The Sage healthcare system includes the following facilities:

e 25 bed Critical Access Hospital, Ganado, Arizona

e Outpatient Rural Health Clinic, Ganado, Arizona

e Outpatient Rural Health Clinic, Greasewood Springs, Arizona

Sage has been recognized by the United States Department of Health and Human Services-Indian Health
Services for providing high quality healthcare; Best in Class in the area of Diversity in Leadership and
Governance Award from the American Hospital Association:3 and Performance Leadership in Patient
Outcomes Award from the National Organization of State Offices of Rural Health (NOSORH) and iVantage
Health.s

Services Provided by Sage Memorial Hospital
Sage provides the following health care services to the community:

e Emergency Medical Services
e Emergency Medical Transportation (Ground and Air)
* Hospital inpatient services, including:

o Medical/Telemetry

o Swing bed Services

Retrieved from Instituie for Diversity in Health Managemeny, an ofiifiate of the American Hospital Association: hitp:/Awww.divesityconnection.org
4 Strycker, M. (2015, 11 10). iVantage Celebrates National Rural Health Day, Retrieved [rom National Organization of State Offices of Rural Health;
hitps:/noserh.org/ivantage-celebrates-national-rural-health-day/ 119
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Pharmacy
Medical Imaging
Radiology
Respiratory Therapy
Rehabilitative Services
v Physical Therapy
= Speech Therapy
e Outpatient Services
Primary Care
Pediatrics
Dental
Optometry
Ophthalmology
Optical
Rehabilitative Services
= Physical Therapy
»  Speech Therapy
Community Health Nursing
Pharmacy
Medical Imaging
Radiology
Laboratory
Respiratory Therapy
. o Behavioral Health and Social Services
e Community based health promotion and disease prevention activities
o Diabetes Prevention and Treatment Program
o Community Mass Vaccination Events
o Diabetes Wellness Center Referrals
All other health care services in the region are referred to health care facilities in the surrounding
areas.

O 00O O0O0O0O0 O 0 0O 0O

OO0 0O 000

Definition of the Community Served by Sage Memorial Hospital

Sage primarily serves the Navajo Nation communities and Chapters of Cornfields, Ganado, Kinlichee,
Klagetoh, Greasewood Springs, Steamboat, Wide Ruins, and the portion of Nazlini that includes communities
south of Route 26. The region is predominantly part of the Apache County of Arizona, with some overlap
into Navajo County.
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. Methodology

The Process for Consuiting with Persons Representing the Community’s Interests
The Assessment Team identified two (2) groups to represent the community’s health interests:

o Individual members of the community
o Members of Sage’s Governing Board who also reside within the communities on the Navajo Nation.

These groups participated in surveys and focus groups coordinated by those Assessment Team members with
public health expertise. Results supported identification and prioritization of the community’s health needs.

Data Collection
The team obtained information using the following sources:
e Surveys completed by the Sage Governing Board
Surveys completed by the community within Sage’s service area
Surveys completed by the Sage hospital staff
Sage health information systems data; and,
Relevant secondary data from publicly available resources such as the United States Census Bureau and
its American Community Survey.

Community Survey

The Assessment Team developed a community health needs assessment survey and worked to gather data

from a representative group of community members. Paper surveys consisting of 46 questions were
. distributed to members of the community and non-clinical Sage staff during a community survey event. Of

the surveys distributed a total of 626 were completed and returned. Additional copies of the surveys were

distributed to community members via email and 97 were completed utilizing online survey software. A

combined total of 529 paper and online surveys were used to identify the health needs of the community.

The survey contained questions tailored specifically to the communities represented.s Participant were asked
what social and health issues they believe are affecting their community. The survey included questions about
family and lifestyle backgrounds, demographics, health behaviors, community needs, and concerns,
environmental concerns and access to and availability of health care resources. The survey also includes
questions about the quality and level of health care received specifically from Sage.

Focus Group with Communily Representatives

The Assessment Team conducted surveys with members of the hospital’s Governing Board who also have
extensive expertise in areas such as Education, Healthcare and Navajo Nation Government, to obtain in-depth
input about the needs of the community. The focus group had four (4) objectives:

1. Identify the top health care concerns affecting their individual communities

2. Determine underlying factors that impact the health care of community members

3. Identify perceived strengths and weaknesses of Sage; and,

4. ldentify barriers that inhibit community members from obtaining maintaining overall good
health.

8 See Appendix E for a copy of the Survey and questions that was distributed 1o the community members and providers, 123




Sage Employee Survey

The employee survey consisted of twenty-one (21) questions and asked participants what they considered to
be top community and health issues affecting the hospital and its communities. Anonymously, Sage healthcare
providers completed and returned the survey.

Health Information Systems Duata

Sage’s Health Information System contains historical patient healthcare encounters data with ICD-10 CM
medical diagnosis codes. The Health Information Systems Department provided the Assessment Team with
standard reports consistent with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (“HIPAA™) rules
and standards, which were used to quantify patient volumes and compare with qualitative data from the
surveys and focus group.

Secondary Data

The Assessment Team gathered and reviewed data from various authoritative sources such as the United
States Census Bureau and the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services to complete the initial
assessment and help determine the priorities of the CHNA, these secondary data sources appear as footnoted
citations throughout this document.7

Data Analysis

The Assessment Team reviewed and analyzed the qualitative primary data gathered from the community and

focus group surveys with the objective of mining useful information that suggest the top health care trends

and concerns in the community. The trends were then cross-referenced with national healthcare databases to
. either validate or negate the outcomes. The validated outcomes were then correlated with the health care

provider surveys to further confirm Sage community’s top public health needs.

The Process for Identifying and Prioritizing Community Health Needs and Services

The Assessment Team presented the conclusions of the primary and secondary Data Analyses process to
Sage’s executive leadership team for additional input, cost-benefit analysis, and as implementation feasibility
analysis. Based on this information, the Assessment Team then prioritized and recommended the top-five (5)
health care needs of the community, as listed above.

KEY FINDINGS

Community Demographics

Population

The eight Chapter service area total population was estimated at 10,972s individuals at the end of 2014.The

figure below illustrates the total population compared with the local county, state, and national historical
census data and current S-year estimates,

7 Far a comprehensive Tist of alf secondary data sources relied upon, refer 10 Appendix B.
8 Although this is the estimate total population of Sage's “service area,” many paticnts trave! [rom outside the eight desipnated service arca Chaplers to receive
care at the hospital, so it is not possible 16 know the total population served. 124




Figure 4: Total population of service ares compared to county, state, national census

Total Population | Service Area Apache County | Arizona United States
2000 Census 11,753 69,423 5,130,632 281,421,906
2010 Census 10,835 71,518 6,392,017 308,745,538

2010-2017 11,332 71,602 6,809,946 321,004,407
Estimates
% change 2000- -6.65 +3.92 +31.20 +13.30
present

As illustrated by the above figure, the population of Sage’s service area declined between the years of 2000
and 2010, however since the latest decennial census completed in 2010, the population of the service area is
estimated to be rising. This increase in the population of Sage’s service area is also reflected in Sage’s patient

. census.

Race/Ethnicity
Utilizing the data provided by the American Community Survey 5-year estimates (“ACS™), the population of

Sage’s service area is predominantly American Indian/Alaska Native (96.5%), along with a small Caucasian
(3.4%) population. 0.7% of the population is two or more races, while exactly one percent (1%) combined is
Black, Asian, Native Hawaiian, or some other race.o These ACS estimates follow closely with the latest
decennial census values according to the Navajo Nation Division of Economic Development. 10 Data collected
through the CHNA survey confirms these race/ethnicity trends, with nearly 98.0% of the survey respondents
indicating AI/AN decent less than 1% indicating Caucasian/White, with the remainder less than 3% between
Black/African American, Asian/Pacific Islander, Hispanic/Latino, multi-racial, or some other race.

9 US Census Bureau (20143, American Community Survey 2013-2017 ACS 5-Year Narrative Profile Navajo Nation Reservation and Off Reservation Trust Land,
AZ-NM-UT. Retricved 09 18 2017 from American Fact Finder
10 Navajo Natien Division of Economic Development. (2013) Navajo Population Profile 2010 US Census from http.//nee.navajo-

nsn.gov/portals/O/reports’NN2010PopulationProfile. pdl 125



















. According to the CNI methodology, a score greater than 3.0 generally indicates the area has a higher level
of socio-economic factors that impact the community’s access to health care. As can be seen from the figure
above, all of the Chapters in Sage’s service area have a score above 3.0, and all but one Chapter have a
score above 4.0, indicating all of these communities have a high need for community health services.

A closer examination of these scores reveals the following observations:

e The Wide Ruins community has the highest percentage of households with a single parent and
children living in poverty (80.8%);

e The Greasewood Springs and Ganado communities have the highest housing barriers, with 30.1%
and 33.6% of the population currently renting, respectively;
The Steamboat community has the highest rate of unemployment (41/1%);

s The Comnfield and Kinlichee communities both have 100% minority populations;
The Klagetoh community has the highest rate of married couples with children living in poverty
(59.4%);

e The Greasewood Springs Chapter has the highest rate of individuals who speak English less than
well (25.0%), and also has the highest rate of individuals over the age of 25 with no high school
diploma or equivalent (24.2%).

Primary and Chronic Disease Care Access, Quality of Care, and other Health Needs of Uninsured
Persons, Low-Income Persons, and Minority groups

According to the Assessment Team’s secondary research, studies identifying specific group needs distinct
from the general population at the Navajo Nation Chapter unit level of analysis are not available from
secondary sources.

. In 1999, Congress passed the Healtheare Research and Quality Act (P.L. 106-129), mandating that the
Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality (“AHRQ") produce an annual report on “national trends in the
quality of health care provided to the American people,” titled the National Healthcare Disparitics Report
(“NHDR™). As of 2014, the NDHR has been combined with the National Healthcare Quality Report
(“NHQR™) to replace both reports and form a new report entitled the National Healthcare Quality &
Disparities Report (*“QDR™). This annual report “provides a comprehensive overview of the quality of
health care received by the general U.S. Population and disparities in care experienced by different racial,
ethnic, and socioeconomic groups.” This report examines the quality and disparities in health care received
by designated care differences in each priority population, however, it does not provide a complete
assessment of health care differences in each priority population. The measures tracked were selected as
applicable across many population groups with the purpose of tracking quality and disparities data at the
national level.22

According to the latest QDR report, national trends observed were:

Uninsured persons

The QDR indicated that the lack of health insurance coverage was one of the most significant contributing
factors to poor quality of care, but that since the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (PPACA) was
passed in 2010 and coverage began in 2014, a marked decrease in the rate of insurance has been observed.
The QDR identified the following statistics as most significant in relation to uninsured persons:

222017 National Healtheare Quality and Dispanitics Repont Rockville, MD: Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality: September 2018, AHRQ Pub No 18-
0033-EF 131




. s After years without improvement, the percentage of uninsured adults (ages 18-64) increased

substantially during the first half of 2014;

e From 2008 to 2015, the percentage of adults ages | 8-64 disparities range decreased between the
insured and uninsured;

» From 2008-2015, the percentage without health insurance decreased from 29.7% to 18.5%:

» In 2017, the percentage without health insurance decreased to 12.8%;

e During 2013 to 2017, the percentage of adults ages 18-64 without health insurance decreased
significantly among Whites, Blacks, Asians, and Hispanics.

Low-income and ethnic minority groups’ care access and quality disparities

The QDR states that care access and quality disparities are observed in the largest number in poor
households, followed by Hispanics2s and Blacks. “Poor” indicates a **...family income less than the federal
poverty level...” which would include the majority of the households in Sage’s service area, as illustrated in
Figures 8 & 9 above.2s The following care access and quality disparities were identified in the 2017 QDR
regarding the issues low-income groups face on a national level:

Care Access

e Between 2015-2016, people in poor households had worse access to care than people in high-
income households;

e From 2015-2016, most disparities in access to care related to race, ethnicity, or income showed no
significant change, neither getting smaller nor larger;

e Uninsured American Indians and Alaska Natives had worse access to care than Whites with
comparison rate of 20.1% to 9.6%;

. s  American Indians and Alaska Natives with health insurance is lower than Whites with a comparison

rate of 74.6% to 89.8% respectively.

Quality of Care

s Hispanics, American Indians and Alaska Natives, and Asians received worse care than Whites for
some quality measures and better care for some measures;

e People in poor households received worse care than people in high-income households on more than
half of quality measures;

e When changes in disparities occurred, measures of disparities were more likely to show
improvement than decline. However, for people in poor households, more measures showed
worsening disparities than improvement.

Disparity improvement/worsening by unique ethnic/minority group
e Measures for which the gap between AI/AN and Whites grew smaller, indicating improvement:
o Influenza and meningococcal conjugate vaccination have been the major improvements for
adolescents AI/AN from an estimate of 43% in 2008 to 90% in 2014,
o End stage renal disease related to diabetes has decreased in AI/AN from 526 per million 10 275.8
per million; Whites 133.3 per million to 139.8 per million {from 2008 to 2015.
e Measures for which the gap between AI/AN and Whites grew larger indicating worsening
disparities:
o Infant mortality rate per 1,000 has increased to 3.9% for AI/AN infants and to 1.8% for White
infants;

. 3 “Hispanics™ includes all races other than Blacks and Whites
242017 Nationa! Healthcare Quality and Disparities Report Rockville, MD: Agency for Tealtheare Rescarch and Quality. September 2018 AHRQ Pub No 18-
0033-EF 132




. o Indication of poor healthcare received in the clinic setting was 26% for AlI/AN compared to
10.3% for Whites.

Black or African American
o Measures for which the gap between Blacks and Whites grew smaller indicating improvement:
o Influenza vaccination has improved among Black adults from 84.9% ta 93.5% between 2012 and
2015
o Tdap vaccination improved among teens, ages 16-17 to 84.1% from 26.5% between 2008-2015;
e Measures for which the gap between Blacks and Whites grew larger indicating worsening
disparities:
o New HIV cases per 100,000 are worse in Blacks than Whites at a rate of 52.9% and 6.0%
respectively;
o Hypertension hospital admission increased in Blacks at the rate of 170.3 per 100,000 to 33.9 per
100,000 in Whites in 2015.

Asian
e Measures for which the gap between Asians and Whites grew smaller, indicating improvement:
o Influenza vaccination has improved among Asians from 83.3% 10 95.1% between 2012 and
2015;
o Tdap vaccination improved among teens, ages 17-21 to 87.5% from 38.4% between 2008
and 2015;
e Measures for which the gap between Asians and Whites grew larger indicating worsening
disparities:
. o Anticoagulant related adverse drug event was higher in Asians than Whites at the rate of
11.4% to 2.7% respectively in 2015;
o Deaths per 1,000 elective surgery was higher in Asians than Whites at the rate of 122.4 and
108.1 respectively in 2015.

Hispanic or Latino
e Measures for which the gap between Hispanics and whites grew smaller, indicating improvement:
o Tdap vaccinations improved among Hispanic adolescents ages 13-17 in 2008 to 2015;
o Measures for which the gap between Hispanics and Whites grew larger indicating worsening
disparities:
o New HIV cases per 100,000 are worse in Hispanics than Whites at the rate of 23.1 and 6.2
respectively.

Causes of Death among American Indians/Alaskan Natives compared to all other races2s

Studies identifying specific group needs distinct from the general population at the Navajo Nation Chapter
unit level of analysis are not available from secondary sources according to secondary data research
conducted by the Assessment Team, however there is data available that specifically studies the health
trends of the minority group of American Indians/Alaska Natives (“*AI/AN™) residing in the Indian Health
Service’s (“1HS™) service area. Since over 95% of Sage’s service area falls into the AI/AN category and
also resides in the Indian Health Service area, this data is valuable to consider apart from the QDR data on
the health needs of minority groups nationally.

35 (3.8, Department of Health and Human Services - Indion Heallh Service (2015). Trends in Indian Health 2014 Edition. Retrieved Trom

Itpsihen A\;i!mgm‘_«iaimfdmi\hnmusfh:s;immi,\;s:i!lLY;di:p}u)mbjumsz‘,ducuumms{lix cuds2D 14 3ookSO8. pdf.
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. In 2014, the department of Health & Human Service — Indian Health Service, in conjunction with the Office
of Public Health Support and the Division of Program Statistics, published a report titled Trends in Indian
Health (“TIHR™), which presented statistics related to the health trends of the AI/AN population of the 1HS
service area. One of the most alarming statistics presented was the cause of death among AI/AN populations
as compared to all races in the United states.

According the TIHR, AI/AN (2007-2009 data) have higher death rates than all U.S. races (2008 data) from
the following causes:

e Alcohol related — 520% greater;

e Tuberculosis — 450% greater;

e Chronic liver disease and cirrhosis — 368% greater:;

e Motor vehicle crashes — 207% greater;

e Diabetes mellitus — 177% greater;

¢ Unintentional injuries — 141% greater;

e Poisoning — 118% greater;

e Sujcide — 60% greater;

e Pneumonia and influenza — 37% greater; and,

e Firearm injury — 16% greater.

Many of these causes of death are chronic illnesses or behavioral health issues that are often preventable
with appropriate care. The fact that AI/AN populations see much higher percentages of deaths attributed to
these causes indicates a higher need for care and prevention services related to these health issues.
Considering the high prevalence of AI/AN individuals within Sage’s service area as a subset of the large

. AT/AN population residing within the IHS services area, one can conclude the need for care related to these
health issues also translates as a public health need specifically among Sage’s service area.

The Health Needs of the Community
Using the process outlined above, the Assessment Team identified the following high priority health needs
of the community from the greatest to the least:
s Behavioral Health and Substance Abuse Treatment
Pediatric Care
Obesity Prevention
Geographic Accessibility of Health Care Services
Diabetic Care and Prevention

Behavioral Health Treatment

Behavioral health issues are more prevalent among the AI/AN population than the overall population for the
United States. AI/AN individuals are 1.7 times more likely to experience serious psychological distress than
are non-Hispanic whites. In 2014, suicide was the second leading cause of death for AI/AN populations
between the ages of 10-34. Women aged 15-24 years of age; AI/AN women are 1.8 times more likely to die
from suicide than non-Hispanic white women of the same age group.z6

Alcohol and drug addiction remain a tremendous problem in AI/AN populations nationwide and its impact
is felt throughout Sage’s service community. Alcohol and drug abuse have a detrimental effect on the
physical and mental wellbeing of the addicted individuals, in addition to negatively affecting the people

26 CC, 2016 Health United States, 2015 Table 30 bty ded.goyDiehs/dataAsdus LS, gl
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Sage has begun the implantation of these initiatives; however, full implementation of this strategy may be
impacted by any number of external factors, including professional medical provider and staff recruitment
and retention, state and federal budget allocations, legal and regulatory matters.

Challenges in Meeting the Long-Term Needs of the Community

Medical and Clinical Staff Recruitment

Medical and Clinical staff (“Providers™) recruitment and retention continues to be a major challenge for
Sage due to many factors. Nationally, even in urban areas, there are shortages of physicians and nurses; this
issuc is exaggerated by Sage’s remote frontier location and the fact that all Providers rely exclusively on the
limited number of housing units available on the hospital campus. Non-Navajo Providers are not able to
purchase or rent homes on the Navajo Nation in the vicinity of the hospital, resulting in many Providers
being unable to make long-term commitments to live in the area and provide services at the facility.

Additionally, Sage is located in a designated Health Care Provider Shortage Area (“HPSA™). Due to this
HPSA designation, there are federal programs that assist in providing student loan repayments for recently
graduated medical and nursing staff deciding to provide services at Sage. Although this program assists in
the recruitment of some Providers, it has not proven to be a long-term solution for Sage’s needs since the
process is long and Providers tend to leave Sage once their obligation expires. Sage’s CEO has since
collaborated with its Chief Medical Director and its Human Resources department to implement aggressive
recruitment efforts.

Employee Housing
Sage provides housing for its staff due to the inability of non-natives to own a home on the Navajo Nation.

In addition, also related to these restrictions, there are no housing units on the Navajo Nation available for
rent. Sage’s remote location also places the burden of providing housing for many members of its staff.
Sage currently has less than 100 housing units and over 250 employees. For these reasons, the Board and
its Administrative Executive Staff are including the design and construction of approximately 200 multi-
housing and single housing units to assist in resolving the housing shortage for crucial staff.

Quipatient Medical Center
The existing outpatient services are currently provided in several historic buildings located throughout the

100-acre medical campus. Poncel Hall was built in 1938 and currently provides services for the following
departments: Outpatient Primary Care Clinic, Dental Clinic, Outpatient Pharmacy and the
Optometry/Optical Clinic. The building also houses the administrative and business offices. Salsbury Hall
and Elerton Hall were also built in the 1930’s and house Behavioral Health and Rehabilitative Services
respectively. These buildings pose ongoing maintenance issues due to the extensive age of the buildings.
The services provided in these historical buildings will be provided soon in a new medical office building
which is currently being planned and designed by the Board of Directors and its Administrative Executive
Staff. The construction of the new medical offices building is scheduled to be completed in December 202 1

New Hospital

The existing hospital was built in 1964. The hospital poses multiple maintenance issues which interfere with
regulatory compliance, specifically life safety and environment of care requirements imposed by the State
of Arizona Departmeni of Health, The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid and also the hospitals
accreditation agency The Joint Commission. The plan and design are in process for the construction of a
new hospital which will also provide expanded services including surgical services, renal dialysis and Labor
and Delivery. The construction of the hospital is scheduled to be completed in December 2021.
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Financial Challenges of Meeting Long-Term Needs of the Conununity

In September 2014, the Indian Health Service (“IHS”) declined to approve Sage’s P.L. 93-638 Indian Self-
Determination and Education Assistance Act (“ISDEAA™) funding contract to provide health care services
to AI/AN individuals on behalf of the United States Department of Health and Human Services. This action
abruptly reduced Sage’s revenues by roughly 50%. In October 2017, 1HS entered into a settlement
agreement with Sage Lo end the contract dispute however, since the agreement, Sage continues to receive
2013 contract funding amounts which is significantly less than what is required to operate the hospital’s
total program. The Sage Hospital Board of Directors has directed its executive staff to design and develop a
new medical campus which will include a new hospital building, medical office building which will house
all outpatient services and the organizations administrative offices, and the construction of approximately
200 new staff housing units. Although Sage will be expanding its services to include surgery, dialysis, labor
and delivery, and other services, Sage will continue to receive funding levels from IHS that are equal to the
amounts awarded during its first negotiations when these expanded services were not offered. This funding
is below the level that Sage needs to operate and effectively support the activities to be proposed under
future IHS ISDEAA contracts. To make up for the lack of total funding, Sage will continue to maintain the
ability to receive reimbursement from third party payors including Medicare and Medicaid. In addition,
Sage will continue to participate in options offered by the federal government regarding contract support
cost reimbursements for the underfunding of the IHS ISDEAA contracts and, also federal programs
currently in place such as the IHS Section 105(1) lease funding.

Further, any continued sequestration of funding will continue to decrease reimbursements from Medicare
and Arizona Health Care Cost Containment System (“AHCCCS™) which is Arizona’s Medicaid program.
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APPENDICES
APPENDIX A — INDIVIDUALS PARTICIPATING AS LOCAL ADVISORS

Name: Mr. Andrew Simpson

Position or Title: Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital Board Chairperson, Former Navajo Nation
Council Delegate

Reside: Steamboat Chapter Community

Expertise: Navajo Nation Government

Name: Ms. Maybelle Kelewood

Position or Title: Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital Board Treasurer, Former Assistant to the
Navajo Nation First Lady

Reside: Kinlichee Chapter Community

Expertise: Navajo Nation Government

Name: Ms. Ray Ann Terry
Position or Title: Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital Board Secretary, Ganado Unified School

District, Ganado Primary School Counselor
Reside: Wide Ruins Chapter Community
Expertise: Education

Name: Ms. Delores Noble
Position or Title: Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital Board Member, Cedar Unified School

District Teacher
Reside: Steamboat Chapter Community
Expertise: Education

Name: Ms. Veronica Clark
Position or Title: Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital Board Member, Navajo Nation Head Start

Director of Administrative Services
Reside: Steamboat Chapter Community
Expertise: Education
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APPENDIX C — BOARD MEMBER INTERVIEW PRIMARY QUALITATIVE DATA

Data Collection

The purpose of these surveys was to identify community health needs and concerns affecting the residents of the
Chapters within Sage’s service area. Participants reside within the Navajo Nation Chapters and are also members of’
the Navajo Health Foundation - Sage Memorial Hospital Board of Directors, therefore, highly qualified to
understand the needs of the community in the hospital’s service area. The surveys were conducted on an individual
basis via online access to the survey between the dates of August 1, 2019 and September 30, 2019, Below is a
summary of the survey participants answers lo the survey questions.

Question #1: In what areas do you sce weakness at Sage Memorial Hospital?

Participant 1: Specialized services, surgery, trauma, complete dental program.

Participant 2: Use of contracted health care providers; need long term providers so patients begin to know their
physicians and a track record is established for patient care; patients are now seeing various physicians who must
constantly review patient’s health records to familiarize health conditions. Departments need to begin a track

record, if not already in place of audit findings. Findings may be minor but play a huge part in safety of patient
care. Improve ER services, decrease wait time, need better radiology department.

Participant 3: Unqualified Staff
. Participant 4: Communication
Question #2: In what areas do you sce strengths at Sage Memorial Hospital?

Participant 1: 1deal Location for communities within the area; Steamboat, Ganado, Wide Ruins Klagetoh,
Kinlichee, Cornfields, Jeddito, etc. Navajo Staff.

Participant 2: Monthly Meetings; quarterly meetings; pharmacy readily available; less wait time for patients to be
seen.

Participant 3: None
Participant 4: Structure
Question #3: What goals do you have for Sage Memorial Hospital?

Participant |: Build a new hospital and pravide with quality professional health services for our people; not to be
flown out but to be cared for near their home. Create an adult care center (for families who have elders; physical
handicap needs home health care) drop off service like day care centers for children. Create a healthy and cohesive
working environment for all employed at Sage Memorial Hospital.

Participant 2: New Hospital; healthcare providers that can stay and provide services on a long-term basis; continue
contract services with [HS.

. Participant 3: Recruitment
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. Participant 4: New Hospital
Question #4: What do you think are the top 3 behavioral risk factors the community faces?

Participant 1: l. Sexual immorality (sexual abuse, rape, child molestation, STD) 2. Domestic Violence/elder abuse
3. Suicide.

Participant 2: Methamphetamine use; alcoholism; diabetes

Participant 3: Domestic violence and alcohol

Participant 4: Transportation and services for veterans

Question #5: What do you think are the top 3 environmental risk factors the community faces?

Participant I: 1. Trash dumping; recycling 2. Bad roads due to inclement weather 3. Unhealthy environment
(homes/community)

Participant 2: Cancer, diabetes, tobacco use, alcohol use
Participant 3: Water Shortage and trash
Participant 4: Safe water
. Question #6: What resources do you use to identify the community’s needs?
Participant 1: Community members feedback; personal visit to the clinic, emergency room, number of people using
medical transport or number of elders in facilities off the reservation; number of nursing homes located on the
reservation.
Participant 2: Observation of community, data, and family visits to hospital
Participant 3: Chapter profiles
Participant 4: Chapter leaders
Question #7: How do you keep residents informed about new programs and services in the community?
Participant 1: Through word of mouth and community functions.
Participant 2: Outreach is part of Sage’s community outreach plans.
Participant 3: None
Participant 4: Chapter leadership and public schools lack of data.

Question #8: Do you think the school system is comparable to schools off the reservation?
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. Participant 1: No, not by a long shot. We are in a remote area with limited internet capabilities, some homes are
still without electricity and/or plumbing. Communities are structured in remote areas other than mutual help
housings which has become more of social issue than an answer to available housing for needy families.

Participant 2: [ believe some of our reservation schools provide outstanding education to our students. It depends
on public school versus tribal grant school versus bureau schools. Most of our reservation schools need
improvement in the area of standardized test scores. The lack of teachers and accountability of ensuring teaching is
happening hinders the improvement.

Participant 3: No

Participant 4: No data shows no progress on learning.

Question #9? Do you feel your public safety needs are being met?

Participant 1: As long as we are mortal beings, we are subject to negative influences; drugs, alcohol, domestic
violence, sexual immorality and human trafficking. Each member of society is responsible for his/her home and the
structures within their homes; continued character development needs to be implemented in the homes. Teachings
such as Dine Core Values need to be taught by parents, grandparents; however, when these practices or teachings
are in place then the public is safe, But if there is a lack of teaching then negative influences infiltrate the homes

and break down the home, creating havoc.

Participant 2: Public safety needs depend on each community. Although, the Navajo Nation does lack adequate
. numbers of police officers or safety personnel to protect each area. Safety would be an area to increase if needed

for Sage.

Participant 3: Yes

Participant 4: Yes

Question #10: Do you think the healthcare resources available to the community are adequate?

Participant 1: There are primary healthcare resources available, but the community needs to take advantage of these
services. Some community members are not familiar with resources and may not know how to request information.

Participant 2; It seems to be adequate at this time. Perhaps another off-site clinic can be planned for future.
Participant 3: No rural area with limited resources

Participant 4: No
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Question #12: For each community service, please rank by importance the top 5 services that should be
available:

All four Board Members answers were similar regarding community services:

1. Alcohol/Drug abuse programs
2. Childcare services

3. Elder care

4. Public safety services

5. Affordable health care

6.

Youth programs

Question #13: What are the barriers to offering these services?

Participant 1: Money and personnel to operate these programs: location (land) for the programs and process to
begin the programs (red tape).

Participant 2: Lack of funding and personnel
Participant 3: Rural area and funds
. Participant 4: Funding advocates
Question #14; What are some possible solutions to overcome those barriers?

Participant 1: Look for grants that may support these programs; network with community members to find location
for programs; and advocate or solicit support from government leaders (local and Navajo Nation, federal level).

Participant 2: Seek alternative funding sources; seek volunteers.

Participant 3: Seek funds through grant writing.

Participant 4: Advaocates.

Question #15; What impact does culture have on the delivery of patient care?

Participant 1: To understand and educate culture sensitivity is of great importance. Each society across the globe
have etiquette or protocols to follow and to educate oneself is to respect the style and indigenous lives. Respect

promotes understanding and acceptance which fosters trust and reliability.

Participant 2: Health care providers need to become familiar with patients; use of natural herbs; language barriers
may be a hinderance.

Participant 3: a lot of impact, yes.

.‘ Participant 4: Land for development
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. Question #16: Are there communication barriers that affect the delivery of patient care?

Participant 1: For the elders; they speak and understand Dine” (Navajo); they be able to speak English but may not.
Be able to comprehend medical terminology which can be complicated. Besides the Dine’, there are Navajo people
(or children) who may not comprehend the prognosis, diagnosis or treatment so communication can affect patient
care.

Participant 2: Yes. Unsure if there are interpreters for patients that are non-English speakers.
Participant 3: Yes. No communication to stakeholders.

Participant 4: Yes.

Question #17: Do you think patients with a language barrier leave the hospital fully understanding their care
plan?

Participant 1: No, I do not think they understand their care plan. Out of frustration they will nod and say they
understand but some patients may not like the outcome and complain later they were dissatisfied with their visit.
Patients may not fully report their symptoms or minimize their pain because they are afraid of the outcome.
Providing options to their care can lessen the fear patients may encounter.

Participant 2: Not too sure; it depends if the patient has a home care provider that interprets or if the care plan was
interpreted. They may not fully understand if no interpreter was available or if the interpretation is correct.

e Participant 3: Yes.

Participant 4: No.
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APPENDIX D — COMMENTS FROM SELECTED COMMUNITY SURVEY QUESTIONS

Question #49 — Please provide additional comments regarding your community’s needs:

Everything is a need on the Reservation (Rez)
More activities for kids, adults, etc.
Recreation Center for youth
Boys/Girls club after school programs to keep children active. There could also be a program to suicide
prevention
Thank you
We need more running trails
Alcohol PREVENTION
More walking events
People need to park at regular parking area. More people that are handicapped/disabled need to park where
the handicapped area available. Most of the time there aren’t any due to other people that aren’t disabled. |
see this a Jot at Sage parking. They should have disabled tags or license plate
10. Hourly transportation systems to nearby towns
11. 1 circled how our community needs alcohol/drug abuse intervention, when in fact it’s all up to the one who
uses/abuses both substances. So, prayers are needed for them. It’s all up to them
12. 1 think there are plenty of services provided by SMI, but these services are not well known to the public.
Sage is automatically bypassed, and people go to FDIH. There needs to be more awareness of services
. provided at Community events outside of Sage events (booths at school events, chapter events, etc.) Also,
the wellness center needs to be opened to the public and needs expansion so the gym floor can be used fully
for basketball, volleyball, etc. Expansion could potentially open the wellness center to paid membership to
keep it running at its full potential I think Sage has the space just needs management and experience.
13. More focus on youth future/career and health
14. We need a miracle
15. 1 don’t see a lot of native people smoking cigarettes, but smoking cessation programs should be available
16. Thank you! Need recycling services
17. Career awareness, Nutrition education, Suicide prevention, etc. Community needs to be educated in all
health issues at hospital conference rooms, at local chapter houses and at any available locations
18. Doctors that know more about health. They just send people farther to other hospitals
19. More first responders, better internet
20. More law enforcement, better health care providers and first responders
21. Our community of Steamboat is in need of a wellness center, senior center and kids park
22. Need employment opportunities
23. More assistance for veterans
24. Bridges, passing lanes, roads, etc. Direction signs for safety and animal control
25, Fitness, after school substance prevention programs, parenting, early childhood classes, senior citizen
centers
26, Need to eat health food, walk/run events, iransportation to clinic
27. We need community health nurse to do home visits
28. Prevention child abuse like social services take children away from parent
29. More programs need to be provided throughout every community near Sage Memorial Hospital for a better
and suitable health choice for everyone
. 30. A recreation center for everyone
31. We need more community adult and children activities
32. Keep up the good job Sage Behavioral Health Services 152
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. 33. We have very good service. Thank you
34, We need more jobs and a college
35. We need dog catchers
36. They need a new hospital ASAP
37. They need a whole new administration and hospital. Do not hire your own relatives. Get a mobile unit to
come like Fort Defiance
38. Navajo reading and writing education, public library
39. Ganado is an amazing town that could use a Iot of resources. Thank you for the survey.
40. 1 haven’t been in this community long enough to form an opinion or notice these issues
41, Big Brother/Big Sister program here in Ganado
42, None, they are all pretty good and work hard.
43. Need a swimming pool (recreation center)
44. Roads
45. Playground for kids, more jobs, gravel road n back roads, clean community security guards
46. 1 think we all need what is listed for our communities our kids are getting out of hand with drugs, violence
and so on. A recreation center would be nice for our Kids to have fun instead of getting into trouble
47. More services for the elderly and disabled people
48. A place where the community could also have access to a gym
49, The community needs people who truly care about the needs of the people in the community. More
involvement with the community would help. More places the adults/teens/children can go to get educated
on issues) suicide, alcohol abuse drug abuse, etc.) More housing and jobs for sure
50. Majority of these services/prevention the public are aware of or have knowledge about. Yet, they choose to
ignore it until it’s a problem. Most of this information is passed through television and social media
. 51. Work on what is needed in the community at all clinics that’s needed. Good job in doing everything. Thank
you
52. Tselani community we live within the Black Mountain area and the roads are not maintained. It gets very
muddy for emergency vehicles to get to the families out there and the school buses
53. Need an open recreational center, weightlifting, etc.
54. A place for children to go; sports, gym or playground
55. Better healthcare providers. Better facilities
56. To have more privacy, ER and outpatient services
57. Missing and murdered people, counseling for misbehaving children
58. Thank you!
59. More doctors/physicians available
60. Need activity center for children and young teens to attend for free, i.e., swimming pool, sport leagues, etc.
61. No comments
62. Restaurant, playground parking lot
63. Everything is ok and good
64. Repair our roads (potholes)
65. Need our roads repaired (potholes) also trash services
66. Mare beds for the emergency room
67. Needs more of leadership; no ideas that would lead to violence
68. Recreation center for the community of Houck
69. Road conditions for better use to and from main roads
70. Road condition to house and to main road needs improvement
71. Farming, irrigation and housing
72. More jobs! Recycling services; more Native American providers; and farming
. 73. lllegal trash dumping and horse round-up
74. No answer
75. Wellness programs and mental health programs 153
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77.
78.
79.

80.
81.
82.
83.
84,

85.
86.
87.
88.

The questionnaire covered everything

Store on-site clinic, trash collection for all housing units, police protections services

Rehabilitation center on Navajo Nation; more group homes and nursing homes

Counselors for mental health because my community seems really isolated from all that; it leads to alcohol
and meth, etc. suicide is a big problem

None

Road improvements and increase law enforcement to decrease bootleg and drugs

Need a restaurant

Clinic that is open every day

My community needs a lot, pertaining education about violence, drug & alcohol programs, programs to
encourage health security/police watches, to ensure our children are safe while playing in the campus/NHA
More doctors and nurses, bigger hospital

Community needs hospice care

Need hospice care facility

We need more open mindedness regarding current issues and accessibility for the elderly to get to the IHS
closest to them.

Question #19 — Please provide additional comments regarding your community’s public health needs:

1.
2.

o B W

e N

10.
I1.

12,
13.

14.

Customer service and a cafeteria that provides healthy foods is greatly needed at this facility

Medical transport will not transport patient that lives like 5-15 miles from hospital because they won’t get a
lot of miles. So, what’s the point of using them

The very private concerns are NOT addressed

No comment

In order to provide greater care to the community there needs to be collaboration with the schools and
police department, as well as with TMC

n/a

New Hospital food services, communication

The community needs understanding on eating habits creates our health problems, not everything can be
fixed with pharmaceutical products. The wellness center needs to be open to the community, if warranted
charge a nominal fee for non-employees. Promote positive information in newspapers on SMH, community
is used to only negative Navajo times reports

More interactions and community involvement with regards to health awareness and issues on the
community to help improve the quality of health

None

Provide transportation for patients if possible. Sage Memorial Hospital Board meetings need to be open to
the community members for their input. Provide housing for local employees not only for local
administration employees

Need to focus on programs for community children as they are the generation to make change

Open wellness center apply a small nominal fee for community members to use a safe establishment
alternative medicine, acupuncture (used at other IHS), massage. promoting the video “forks over knives™
cating less processed foods, holistic approach, trash recycling, speaking out of events at home, nursing
home, create or collaborate a school for nursing, x-ray, respiratory, medical health techs, CNA. Office
specifically for increasing or gaining health insurance. Encourage employees to obtain higher degrees,
reduce resistance of scholarships

I believe sometimes providers don’t take the time to listen to patients and their concerns. We are required to
provide the best customer service and but yet do not help the patients, especially if they are complaining or
have pain. They are sent away by providers ad patients return same day or next day

. For patients having no AHCCCS insurance means no medical transport is willing to take them to their

appointments, hopefully Sage can remedy this problem of transportation. Follow up appointmentasmre very




. important. If Sage can allot a vehicle and a driver for this need even if only during clinic hours, the patients
for sure will thank them for providing this extra mile of quality patient care to them,

16. Community have a lot of things that they need but too bad that we can’t help all. Because Navajo are always
in need and building on Navajo Nation are just so old. There is nothing new for the community where they
are more welcome and home to them

17. Our community uses Sage as a large walk in clinic instead of their medical home. They will be sent to a
specialist 100 miles away because of the lack of collaboration between area facilities. Because of the lack of
collaboration, patient care is confusing for the patient and providers

18. 1 didn’t see any questions related to veterans and teens specifically

19. IMPROVE THE MEDICAL SYSTEM

20. Community health plays a big role within the patient’s care. | think patients are more comfortable being
taught in the comfort of their own home and seeing public health at your home shows the patient how much
one cares.

21. Educate the community on eating habits and to be proud of their Indian heritage

22. Provide quality care with pride, great communication skills

23. No comment

24. Nothing

25. None

26. Our facility has the potential to do so much for the community, but we have to go out and reach the people.
The efforts in place now are non-existent, when we compare our facility to Fort Defiance Indian Hospital,
we lack in a Jot of areas in terms of community outreach

27. The survey was good but very limited in choices that could have been offered. When nothing in the
category seemed to fit you had a choice on submitting your own thoughts on that question but some of the

‘ choices given were too closely related or similar which direct your path unfairly towards that thought
process. The HR department needs help

28. I believe that the providers and nurses need to pay more attention to the patients rather than over talking a
patient or making the patient feel like they have no right to speak. This is coming from personal experience
in care of a provider with our facility. Also, the waiting area in the emergency room is uncomfortable and
cold during the winter months. My suggestion is to provide more comfortable seating areas and more heat
to the waiting area. Lastly, staff need to be nicer when dealing with patients. 1 know at times we ourselves
do not feel good, but we have to think of our patients, and we have to encourage them that we are going to
provide them with the best healthcare we can

29. My parents are up in age and are very sensitive to tone of voices and body language. | think that individuals
who are sick and not feeling well are like that too. So being patient and watch your body language will
make a big difference

30. THERE IS NOT A CREDIBLE ALCOHOL ABUSE PROGRAM IT SEEMS WE JUST TREAT THE
SYMPTOMS AND NOT THE PROBLEM WE SEE THE SAME PEOPLE OVER AND OVER AGAIN

31. Diabetes needs to be addressed from early on. Programs in the schools and community are desperately
needed

32. More Navajo speaking employees

33. We need a bigger facility to be able to provide more services to our community and patients, to avoid
sending patients elsewhere for services we no longer offer

34. Don’t have additional comments

35. New hospital ever going to happen?

36. There is a need for health care professionals who need to have a holistic approach besides treating the
symptom of disease

37. No comments

. 38. NEED A DETOX REHAB
39. 1 believed all community issues are addressed on this survey
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40,

41.
42.

43.

44,

45,

46.

47.

48.

49,
50.

~

52.

51.

1. Providing an in-house hospital medical transportation 2. Addition place where alcohol abuse patients can
stay 3. Collaboration with community health personnel with following up care for patients

Proper health education

Safety issues for all staff especially the ones who walk back and forth to Poncel Hall and ER at night. Also,
for medical record clerks going to basement at night

I think the Board members need improvement and the CEQ need talk to the community the real deal about
new hospital. Maybe bring Navajo Nation President to see the campus

The socioeconomic status of the entire Navajo Nation is poor. Not until the Tribal authorities arrest
bootleggers and drug dealers, we are facing an uphill battle. With no jobs, young Navajo men resort to
drinking and crime.

Need for hospice. Not just observation services. A lot of elderly or older generation don’t like to go
elsewhere or faraway places to be cared for. Local facilities do not offer services to patients that cannot care
for themselves, disabled, etc.

SHOULD SET LIMITS FOR THOSE WHO ARE OBVIOUSLY ABUSING THE HEALTH CARE
SYSTEM

I know that our CEO and COO are both doing their best to having us to be employed here. Communication
and customer service are very important. [ wish the wellness center would do more for kids and youth
events 1o keep them away from alcohol and drugs. | am thankful for having this job

1 have noticed that there are a lot of staff that really talk down on some of the patients who come into the
hospital. I feel that if they have a personal opinion on a patient or their “illness™ for example, alcoholism or
becoming suicidal, those issues should not be voiced to the patient. They come here for help, not to be
talked down on

None

None

Overall improvements, better professional attitudes from the administration personnel, more interaction
with staff, meetings to update employees regarding any improvements, plans, funding, etc.

Community outreach, awareness preventions, visiting all local school more often would be great

156




APPENDIX E — COPY OF 2019 COMMUNITY AND STAFF SURVEY QUESTIONS
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COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT
2019 SURVEY

Your answers to the following questions will be an important part of identifying
factors that affect the health of a population and determine the availability of
resources to adequately address those factors.

Please remember that your identity and answers are completely anonymous.
There are 4 sections and 49 questions in total. Please mark the bubble next to or
circle your answer.

Note: Questions are on the front AND back of the page.

SecCTION 1 — DEMOGRAPHICS
THIS SECTION ASKS QUESTIONS ABOUT YOU AND YOUR FAMILY.

1. Which Chapter are you registered with?

o Cornfields o Nazlini
© Ganado O Steamboat
& o Greasewood Springs o Wide Ruins
© Klagetoh © Other Chapter:
O Kinlichee o N/A
2. What is your zip code?
3. What is your gender?
o Female ' o Male
4. What is your age range?
o 18-24 O 45-54
o 25-34 O 55-64
O 35-44 O 65 and older

5. What year were you born?
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6. Which of the following best describes your marital status?

Cohabitating (living with someone) O Separated
Divorced O Single (never married)
Married o Widowed

7. What is the highest level of education you have completed?

Less than high school O Associate degree (2-year degree)
Some high school, but did not O Bachelor's degree (4-year degree)
graduate O Graduate degree (more than 4-year
High school graduate or GED college degree)

Some college/tech school

8. What is your ethnicity or racial background?

Asian/Pacific islander O Middle Eastern

Black/African American o Multi-racial

Caucasian/White O Native American/Alaska Native
Hispanic/Latino o Other:

9. What is the PRIMARY language spoken in your home?

English O Spanish
Navajo O OCther:

10. Which best describes your housing status?

Own my home/apartment O Living with friends
Rent a home or apartment O 1do not have a permanent
Living with family home/homeless

11. How many bedrooms are in your home?

0 o 3
1 O 4 ormore
2 o Other:
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12. Do you have electricity in your home?
Yes O No

13. Do you have running water in your home?
Yes o No

14. What is your primary mode of transportation?

Automobile (that you own or lease) o Walk
Borrowed automobile O Bicycle
City bus (public transportation) O Motorcycle
Friendsfamily o Other:

15. How MANY individuals aged 0-12 years live in your household?

1 o 4
2 O 5ormore
3 O None

16. How MANY individuals aged 13-17 years live in your household?

1 o 4
2 O 5ormore
3 "o None

17.How many individuals between aged 18-64 years, including yourself, live
in your household?

1 O 4
2 o 5
3 O 6 ormore

18. How many individuals aged 85 or older live in your household?

1 O 4 ormore
2 O None
3
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19. Which of the following best describes your employment status?

O Employed, working 1 — 39 hours per Not employed, NOT looking for wark
week O Homemaker

¢ Employed, working 40 or more hours © Student
per week O Retired

O Not employed, looking for work O Disabled, not able to work

20.What is your approximate average total household income per year?
(including spouse’s income)

o Lessthan $10,000 ¢ $35,000-$49,999
o $10,000-%24,999 o $50,000-$74,999
O $25,000-$34,999 o $75,000 or more

21.Indicate the current health insurance status for yourself and those in your

household:
Others in
Yourself Spouse Children household
. No health insurance 0 0 0 0]
Private insurance through employer 0 0 0 0
AHCCCS (Arizona Medicaid) 0 0 0 0
Medicare 0] 0 o) 0
Military/Veteran’s coverage (Tricare,
etc.) 0 0 0 0
Other: 0

22.1f you do not currently have health insurance, please indicate the reason
for not having insurance. (Skip this question if you have health insurance)

o | obtain my heaith care services from o Do not know where/how 1o obtain health
an Indian Health Services facility insurance

o Cannot afford insurance o Not eligible for government assisted

o | do not need insurance insurance

o Employer does not provide insurance
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23.Do you or anyone in your household currently receive any of the following
assistance? Choose all that apply:

o Food Stamps o TANF (Temporary Assistance for

o General Assistance Needy Families)

o Public Housing Assistance o Social Security Disability Benefits
o None

SECTION 2 — BEHAVIOR
THIS SECTION CONTAINS QUESTIONS ABOUT YOUR REGULAR BEHAVIORS.

24.Indicate your ratings In terms of how often each of the following
statements applies to you:
Never Rarely Usually Most of the time  Always

| eat a well-balanced diet ) 0 0 ) 0
| eat recommended amounts o o
of fruits and vegetables © 0 0
. | get 30 minutes or more of

exercise daily 0 0 0 0 o
| avoid high-risk sexual
behavior O 0 0 0 0
| have adequate resources to

@] 0] 0] 0] @]

purchase healthy foods

| feel my neighborhood is a
safe place for my children to o o o o 0
play and for me to exercise

| am exposed to secondhand
smoke (e} (@] (e} (e} (e}
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25. How often do you get 30 minutes or more of exercise?

4-6 times a week o Once a month
2-3 times per week o Less than once a month
Never

26.How many 12 oz. cans/botties of soda, if any, do you drink on an average
day?

4 or more o 1

3 o None

2

27. Do you use tobacco products?

No O Yes —smoke a pipe or cigars
YeS - smoke less than one paCk per e} Yes — use Smokeless tobacco
day (chewing tobacco, etc.)

Yes — smoke more than one pack

per day

28. How often do you drink alcoholic beverages?

Every day o Only on weekends
3-5 times per week o On special occasions
Once a week o |do notdrink

29, Do you engage in binge drinking? (5 or more drinks In a sitting)
Yes o No
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SECTION 3 — HEALTH
THIS SECTION ASKS QUESTIONS ABOUT YOUR HEALTH.

C O 0 0 0 0

O 0O o0 0 o0

0 OO0 C G O

o}

30. Where do you look for information about health? Choose all that apply.
Friends/family o Chapter House Meetings

Doctor/nurse/medical professional o Community Health Representative
Newspaper/magazine/TV o School

Health Department o Library

Internet o Other:

Church

31. In what language do you prefer to receive your healthcare services?

English o Spanish
Navajo o Other:

32. How would you describe your overall health?

Excellent (physically active, rarely see a doctor, don’t drink, don’t use tobacco)
Very good

Good

Fair

Poor (not physically active, sick often, drink, use tobacco, unhealthy lifestyle)

33.Has a doctor/healthcare professional ever told you that you have/had any
of the following health challenges? Choose all that apply. (continues on
following page)

ADD/ADHD o Depression

Allergy o Diabetes

Alcohol overuse o Difficulty hearing

Arthritis o Drug addiction

Asthma o Heart problems (heart attack, angina,
Cancer or heart disease)

Chronic lung disease (COPD, o High blood pressure

chronic bronchitis, emphysema) o High cholesterol

Dental problems
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Mental health issues (not including o Sexually transmitted diseases
depression) o Stroke

Overweight/obesity o |do not have any health challenges
Seizure disorder/epilepsy o Other:

34.What health topics are important to you and/or your family members?
Choose all that apply. (continues on next page)

Asthma o Injury prevention
Blood pressure o Lead poisoning
Cancer o Men’s health
Cholesterol o Nutrition

CPR/First Aid o Oral health
Diabetes o Quitting smoking
Depression o Sexually Transmitted Diseases
Exercise (STDs})

Flu o Stress management
Healthy pregnancy o Substance abuse
Heart Disease o Violence prevention
HIV/AIDS o Women's health
Immunizations o Other:

35. Where do you and your family go for routine health care?

Doctor’s office in the hospital
Doctor’s office outside the hospital
Health clinic

Hospital emergency room
Medicine Man/Woman

| do not receive routine health
care

Other
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36. Are you able to visit a doctor when needed?

Yes, always
Sometimes
No, never

37.What are your greatest barriers to accessing health care when needed?
Choose all that apply.

No appointment available when | O Language barriers; | cannot

need it understand the doctor or they

Cannot take time off from work cannot understand me

E’O tr a'msp?rtaitlgn hosoital o Cultural or traditional barriers
ocation of clinic or hospital is too far o Costs too much

away

' visi
Do not have health insurance O None, | am always able to visit the

doctor when needed
o Other:

38.Which of the following preventative care procedures have you had in the
past 12 months?

Bone density test (detects o Hearing screening

osteoporosis) o Mammogram (if female)

Blood pressure check o Pap smear (if female)

Blood sugar check o Physical exam

Cardiovascular screening (heart) o Prostate cancer screening (if male)

Cholesterol screening o Skin cancer screening
Colon/rectal exam o Vision screening
Dental cleaning/x-rays o Other:

Flu shot o None of the above

39. How long has it been since your last routine check-up/physical exam?
Never had a routine check-

up/physical exam

Within the last year

2 years

3-5 years

More than 6 years
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40.How satisfied are you with the health care you currently recelve from your
area hospital?

Completely satisfied

Somewhat satisfied

Undecided

Somewhat unsatisfied

Completely unsatisfied

41.How satisfied are you with the health care you currently receive from your
primary care provider?

Completely satisfied
Somewhat satisfied
Undecided

Somewhat unsatisfied
Completely unsatisfied

42.When you leave the doctor, do you fully understand your care plan?
(When to take medication, how to take medication, when to return, etc.)

Yes
No
Not sure

43. Do you trust your doctor to take care of your health care needs?

Yes
No
Not sure

44. Please provide additional comments about the heaith care you receive:
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SECTION 4 — COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT
THIS SECTION WILL ASK YOU ABOUT THE COMMUNITY IN WHICH YOU RESIDE. THIS INFORMATION
1S COLLECTED TO LEARN WHAT YOU THINK ARE THE GREATEST NEEDS IN YOUR COMMUNITY.

45.What is the distance (in miles) to the nearest grocery store from your

home?

o 1-5miles o 20-45 miles

o 6-10 miles o 46-60 miles

o 11-20 miles o 61 or more miles away

46.What is the distance (in miles) to the nearest clinic or hospital from your

home?

o 1-5miles o 20-45 miles

o 6-10 miles o 46-60 miles

o 11-20 miles o 61 ar more miles away

THE NEXT 2 QUESTIONS ADDRESS YOUR PERCEPTION OF SOCIAL AND HEALTH {SSUES IN YOUR
. COMMUNITY. YOU WILL BE ASKED TO RATE A LIST OF SOCIAL AND HEALTH ISSUES ON A SCALE OF
1 TO 5 IN AN EFFORT TO LEARN WHAT YOU THINK ARE THE GREATEST COMMUNITY NEEDS.

47.What do you feel are the greatest SOCIAL NEEDS currently NOT BEING
MET in your community? (Rating 1 represents “no need” and 5 represents
“great need”) (continues on following page)

5= 4= 3= 2= 4= Unknown or N/A
Greatest Significant Average or Some No
Need Need Moderate Need Significant
. i 5 4 3 2 1 N/A
Alcahol or drug intervention
) 5 4 3 2 1 N/A
Ambulance/EMT services
Child abuse prevention 5 4 3 2 1 N/A
rvices
serv 5 4 3 2 1 N/A
Afiordable childcare
5 4 3 2 1 N/A
Eiderly care
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Environmental waste
services (trash collection)

Fire protection services

Food assistance

Higher education
graduation rates

Housing availability

Jobs and/or employment
services

Juvenile delinquency
prevention {gangs, etc.)

Parks and recreation (walking
paths, bicycle trails)

Police protection services

Service for people with
disabilities

Suicide hotline/prevention
services

Transportation services
Violence/fighting {domestic,

family, friends, etc.)
prevention

Other:

N/A

N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
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48.What do you think are the greatest HEALTH NEEDS or issues NOT BEING
MET in your community? (Rating 1 represents “no need” and 5 represenis
“great need”) (continues on following page)

o= A= 3= & &
Greatest.  Signiticant om 0 N/A
Need Need Q\ég{jage Nee Need

Access to appropriate quality

health care services 5 4 3 2 1 N/A
Access to durable medical

uipment or supplies
equipmen PP 5 4 3 5 ; N/A

(wheelchairs, oxygen tanks,
etc.)

Access to health education
programs to promote

prevention {nutritional 5 4 3 2 1 N/A

programs, etc.)

Access to health care for

children 5 4 3 2 1 N/A
. Access to health care for

seniors/eiderly 5 4 3 2 1 N/A

Access to health care for

women (Women's clinic) 5 4 3 2 1 N/A

Access to healthy foods 5 4 3 5 ; N/A

Access to over-the-counter

medication 5 4 3 2 1 N/A

Affordability of health care

services 5 4 3 2 1 N/A

Affordability of prescription or N/A

over-the-counter medication 5 4 3 2 1

Affordable and accessible
wellness programs
(diabetes, etc.)




Availability of preventive
heailth screenings

Availability and access to
imrunizations

Availability of chronic

disease care (cancer,
diabetes, heart disease, etc.)

Availability of qualified
interpreters

Exercise programs
Family planning education

Mental health
programs/services

Nutrition education programs

Sexual health or sex
education

Substance abuse
(drug/alcohol)
prevention/education

Suicide prevention
Teen pregnancy prevention

Tobacco use prevention

Weight control
services/obesity prevention

Cther:

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
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COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT
2019 EMPLOYEE SURVEY

Your answers to the following questions will be an important part of identifying factors that affect
the health of a popuiation and determine the availability of resources to adequately address
those factors.

Please remember your identity and answers will remain anonymous.
This survey contains 3 sections and 19 questions in total; your time providing this feedback
is greatly appreciated.

SecTiON 1 — SAaGe MemoriaL HospITAL
THIS SECTION WILL ASK QUESTIONS ABOUT THE HOSPITAL'S SERVICES AND THE CAMPUS.

1. ldentify three (3) areas you see as strengths at Sage Memorial Hospital.

. 2. ldentify three (3) areas in which improvements could be made at
Sage Memorial Hospital.

3. Do you receive your medical care at Sage Memorial Hospital?

o Yes
o No

4. If you answered “NO” to question #3, please tell us where is your primary
choice for medical care? If you answered “YES” to #3, skip this question.

o Chinle o Sanders
o Winslow o Gallup

o Kayenta o Tuba City
o Fort Defiance o Other:
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. 5. Please rank the following items by what you feel are the greafest needs
for Sage Memorial Hospital/Campus. (rating of 5 indicates “greatest
need,” while a rating of 1 indicates “no significant need”)

No
Greatest Significant Average Some Significant
Need Need Need Need Need
Adequate Parking 5 4 3 2 1
Build/Improve Community to
Attract Providers 5 4 3 2 1
Continue Bringing in Good
Executives/Providers 5 4 2 1
Decreased Health Disparities 5 4 2 1
Emergency Preparedness Plans
for Community 5 4 3 2 1
Helipads 5 4 3 2 1
Hospital Transportation System 5 4 3 2 1
Improved Cellular Service 5 4 3 2 1
Improved Continuity of Care 5 4 3 2 1
Improved Customer Service 5 4 3 2 1
. Improved EHR System 5 4 3 2 1
improved ER wait times 5 4 3 2 1
Improved Internet Service 5 4 3 2 1
Improved Patient Education 5 4 3 2 1
improved Technology 5 4 3 2 1
Mobiie Clinics 5 4 3 2 1
More Teamwork Among Area
Clinics/Hospitals 5 4 3 2 1
New Hospital/Facilities 5 4 3 2 1
Personalized Care Plans 5 4 3 2 1
Quality Care Improvement 5 4 3 2 1
Signage and Directions 5 4 3 2 1
Surgery Center 5 4 3 2 1
Telemedicine Services 5 4 3 2 1
Trauma Center 5 4 3 2 1
Walking/Bike Trails 5 4 3 2 1
Wellness Centers 5 4 3 2 1
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6. What do you think are the top five (5) barriers to offering these services?

Please choose five (5) answers:

o

00

Difficulty
maintaining new
services {e.g.
OB/GYN)

Distance to shopping
centers

Funding

Inadequate public
services (Fire/Police)
Inadequate/oid
infrastructure

000O0O

00O00O

Lack of fresh foods

Lack of qualified personnel

Lack of space

Lack of transportation

Limited access to resources (e.g.
clean water, electricity, plumbing)
Rural location

Resistance to change
Socioeconomic status

Other:

7. What do you think are the top five (5) solutions to overcome these

barriers? Please choose five (56) answers:

o

o

Community
collaboration

Create cultural
programs (e.g.
community
gardens)

Designate one area
for economic growth
Grants

Offering healthy
alternatives
Patient/community
education

Philanthropy/fundrai
sing

0000O0O00O

Provide transportation/infrastructure
Use land more efliciently

Utilize Federal funding more efficiently
Utilize grocery store surpluses
Volunteers

Youth education/youth programs
Other:

SEeCTION 2 — COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT

177



. THIS SECTION WILL ASK YOU ABOUT THE COMMUNITY IN WHICH YOU PROVIDE HEALTH CARE
SERVICES. THIS INFORMATION IS COLLECTED TO LEARN WHAT YOU THINK ARE THE GREATEST

PUBLIC HEALTH NEEDS IN THE COMMUNITY.

8. What top five (5) issues affect the community’s health? Please choose five (5)
answers.

o Alcohol abuse o Parenting Issues (e.g. one parent
o Asthma households, guardianship designee)
o Cancer o Poor nutrition
o Child/Teen Health (e.g. o STI's
Newborn screening, well o Stress
child checks, bullying) o Suicide
o Dental health o Teen pregnancy
o Diabetes o Trauma
o Drug abuse o Unemployment
o Heart Disease o Unsafe housing (e.g. asbestos, lead paint,
o HIV/AIDS unsteady foundation, etc.)
o Homelessness o Violence (e.g. Domestic violence,
o Lack of health insurance Bullying, Child/Elder Abuse)
o Men's Health (e.g. o Women's health (e.g. OB/GYN,
Prostate cancer) Breastfeeding consultant,
. o Obesity : Mammogram/Breast US)
o Other:

9. What do you think are the top five (5) hehavioral risk factors the community

faces? Please choose five (5) answers.
o Absence of role models for
youth
o Alcohol abuse
o Domestic abuse

o Drug abuse/dependency
(e.g. marijuana,
prescription medication)

o Family Planning (e.g.
Contraceptives,
Breastfeeding)
Homelessness
Insufficient vaccination

Language barriers

Obesity

Physical inactivity

Poor diet and nutrition
Poverty

Teen pregnancy

Tobacco use
Unempioyment
Unprotected sexual activity

Untreated mental health
Other:

0C0O0O0O000O0O0O0OO

0O0
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10. What are the top three (3) environmental risk factors you believe the
community faces? Please choose three (3) answers.

o Commuting between work/home Inadequate emergency prepgredness
o Exposure to hazardous Lack of electricity and plumbing i
chemicals/substances Lack of recycling services
- Qvergrazing/erosion
(e.g. pesticides,

Poor water qualii
asbestos, etc.) qualty

. Trash/illegal dumping
o Hazardous road conditions (e.g. Other:
weather, wild animals/livestock on
roadways, etc.)
© Human Trafficking

0o0o0O0O0O

11.How knowledgeable are you regarding the culture, values, and beliefs of the
patient population?

o Very knowledgeable o Minimally knowledgeable
o Somewhat knowledgeable o Not knowledgeable at all
. 12_Have you ever received any information/educational materials on the cuiture |
of the community?
o Yes o No

SecTION 3 — PATIENT CARE
THIS SECTION ASKS QUESTIONS ABOUT THE CARE PATIENTS RECEIVE AT SAGE MEMORIAL
HOSPITAL.

13. What do you think are the top three (3) cuitural factors that affect the delivery
of patient care? Please choose three (3) answers.

o Confusion/Conflict of o Language
traditional vs. barriers
innovative practices. o Patients preferring

o Cultural beliefs/taboos traditional practice

o Other:

O Lack of coliaboration of o

Medicine Men/providers
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. 14. Do you think patients with a language barrier leave the hospital fully
understanding their care plan?

o Yes o No

15. If you answered “No” to question #14, briefly describe how you
currentiy overcome the communication barriers?

16. If you answered “No” to question #14, what are at least three (3)
possible solutlons to overcome these communications barriers in the
future?

17.Do you feel your input is taken into consideration when addressing

. quaiity issues?
o Yes o No

18.Has a patient ever asked to see another provider because they
weren’t comfortable with your gender?

o Yes o No
o Not Applicable; non-clinical staff

19.Please provide additional comments related to the community’s
public health needs that you feel are important and were not
addressed in this survey.
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Board of Directors
Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit algo includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

Wae believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and apprapriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital, Inec.
as of September 30, 2019, and the results of its operations, its changes in its net assets and
its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis Of Maiters

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2019, Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc.
adopted Accounting Standards Updsate (ASU) 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic
230): Restricted Cash and ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958); Presentation of
Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to
these matters.

Page 2
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Board of Directors
Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc.

Other Matters
Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying Schedule Of Expenditures Of Federal Awards is presented
for purposes of additional analysis, as required by the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Untform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements, The information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United Statea of America. In our opinion, the
Schedule Of Expenditures Of Federal Awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the financial statements as a whole,

Prior Period Financial Statements

The financial statements as of September 30, 2018, were audited by Bradshaw, Smith &
Company, LLP, whose partners and professional staff joined RubinBrown LLP as of June 1,
2019. Bradshaw, Smith & Company, LLP's report dated June 27, 2019 expressed an
unmodified opinion on those financial statements.

Other Reporting Required By Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
June 25, 2020, on our consideration of Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Haospital,
Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital,
Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc.’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Fbinbyoon LLP

June 26, 2020

Page 3
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NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION/
SAGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL, INC.

BALANCE SHEET
Assets
September 30,
2019 2018
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 88,820,613 $ 87,788,338
Short term mmvestments 127,172 120,480
Patient accounts receivable, net of allowance for bad debta
and contractual adjustments of $5,792,866 and $4,450,690 1,259,267 1,713,108
Receivable from third-party reimbursement programs 881,294 83,093
Grant receivable 804,985 —
Indian Self-Determination receivable 188,316 321,117
Other receivable 106,211 —
Supplies 421,161 409,338
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 610,591 519,663
Total Current Assets 93,228,610 90,966,127
Assets Limited As To Use
Internally designated by Board of Directors 5,694,839 5,694,839
Externally restricted by donors 836,673 809,176
Restricted Cash 4,399,366 4,363,188
Investments 31,403,156 29,889,617
Property And Equipment, Net 7,498,782 6,059,784
Construction In Progress 1,777,174 2,658,190
Other Assets 60,000 —
3 144,893,600 § 140,330,821
Liabilities And Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 4,394,676 § 4,379,603
Accrued payroll expenses 708,408 626,211
Payable to third-party reimbursement programs 72,138 —
Estimated self insurance Liability 81,629 77,804
Housing deposits 21,697 14,132
Capital lease obligations, current portion 94,497 89,100
Total Current Liabilities 5,372,844 5,186,750
Capital Lease Obligations, Net Of Current Portion 127,444 211,783
~ 5,500,288 5,397,643
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions 137,628,756 133,219,848
With donor restrictions 1,763,657 1,713,440
Total Net Assets 139,398,312 134,933,288

$ 144,893,600

$ 140,330,821

See the notes to financial statements.

Page 4
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. NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION/
SAGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL, INC.

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For The Years
Ended September 30,
2019 2018
Unrestricted Revenue, Gains And Other Support
Patient service revenue:
Gross inpatient service revenue % 5,701,527 $ 8,344,957
Gross outpatient service revenue 45,015,647 44,215,296
Contractual discounts (32,657,764) (33,909,347
Net patient service revenue 18,059,310 18,650,905
Provision for bad debts (485,802) (122,817
Net patient service revenne, less provision for bad debts 17,673,608 18,528,088
Net Indian Self-Determination revenue 21,471,688 29,761,840
Grant revenue 806,661 —
Other revenue 417,870 624,347
Contributions received for cperations 56,287 72,017
Total Unrestricted Revenue, (xains And Other Support 40,324,914 48,986,002
Expenses
Salaries . 11,636,660 9,148,630
Employee benefits 1,698,084 1,301,408
Supplies and other expenses 9,815,616 9,220,768
. Purchased services and professional fees 13,107,418 18,202,201
Depreciation and amortization 931,348 838,124
Intereat 16,453 26,154
Total Expenses 37,206,379 38,737,286
Income From Operations 3,118,536 10,248,807
Other Income (Expcnse)
Theft / diversion of Hospital aasets (Note 2) — (10,865,134)
Other expense (236,267) (868,829)
Investment income, net 1,626,069 320,987
Total Other Income (Rxpense) 1,289,702 (11,387,996)
Revenue In Excess Of (Less Than) Expenses $ 4,409,327 $ (1,139,189)
See the notes to financial statements. Page b
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NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION/
SAGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL, INC.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Net Asaets Without Donor Restrictions
Revenue In Excess Of (Less Than) Expenses

For The Years
Ended September 30,

201 2018

$ 4,408,327 $§ (1,139,189)

Releases of net assats with donor restrictions 580 o
Increase (Decrease) In Net Assets
Without Donor Restrictions 4,408,907 {1,139,189)
Net Assets With Donor Restrictions
Contributions 23,200 —
Releases of net assets with donor restrictions (680) —
Investment income 27,487 6,112
Increase In Net Assets With
Donor Restrietions 50,117 6,112
Increase (Decrease) In Net Assets 4,460,024 (1,133,077

Net Assets - Beginning Of Year

134,938,288 136,066,366

Net Assets - End Of Year

$ 189,393,312 $ 134,933,288

See the notes to financial statements.
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. NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION/
SAGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL, INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Page 1 Of 2
For The Years
Ended September 30,
2019 2018

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Increase {decrease) in net assets & 4,460,024 $ (1,133,077
Adjustments to reconeile increase {(decrease) in net

assets to net cash from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 931,348 838,124
Provision fox bad debts 4B5,802 122,817
Investment (gain) loss (1,647,828) 96,966
Contributions restricted to long-term purposes (28,200) —_—
Changes in assets and ligbilities:
Indian Self-Determination receivable 182,801 122,178,883
Patient accounts receivable (81,961) 118,191
Other receivables (911,196) —
Supplies (11,828) (92,108)
Prepaid expenses and other assets (160,938) {166,278)
Accounts payable 15,072 (2,980,002)
Housing deposits 7,366 1,207
Estimated self insurance liability 3,726 28,619
Accrued payroll expenses 83,197 (99,247
Receivables/payables of third party reimbursement programs (726,063) 264,061
. Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 2,716,625 115,178,055
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Property and equipment additions (326,063) (187,042)
Construction in progress additions (1,258,267) (1,565,329)
Purchase of investments — (30,000,000)
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (1,584,330) (31,752,371)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Principal payments on capital lease obligations (78,942) (86,340)
Contributions restricted to long-term purposes 23,200 —_
Net Cash Used In Financing Activities (56,742} (96,340)
Net Increase In Cash, Cash Equivalents And
Restricted Cash 1,076,453 87,329,344
Cash, Cash Equivalents And Restricted Cash -
Beginning Of Year 92,152,626 4,823,182
Cash, Cash Equivalents And Restricted Cash -
End Of Year $ 93,228,979 § 92,152,526
See the notes to financial statements. Page 7
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' NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION/
SAGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL, INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Page 2 0f 2

For The Years
Ended September 380,
2019 2018
Supplemental Schedule Of Cash Flows Disclosure
Cash paid for interest $ 16,458 3 26,154
Supplemental Schedule Of Noncash Investing And
Financing Activitics
Consiruction in progress transferred to property and equipment 2,039,288 —_
Equipment addition through capital lease — 331,465
See the notes to financial statementas. Page 8
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NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION/
SAGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 80, 2019 And 2018

Organization And Significant Accounting Policies

Nature Of Operations

Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc. (the Hospital) is a not-
for-profit corporation and operates a 25-bed acute care facility, two outpatient
clinics, two dental clinics and a community health nursing service. The Hospital
primarily earns revenues by providing inpatient, outpatient and emergency care
services to members of the Navajo Nation and other residents of Grazing District
17 and the Nazlini Chapter located within the state of Arizona.

Use Of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements.
Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis Of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting. Net assets of the Hospital and changes therein have been classified
and are reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets without donor restrictions
represent those resources of the Hospital that are not subject to donor-
imposed stipulations. The only limits on net assets without donor restrictions
are board limits resulting from the nature of the Hospital and limits resulting
from contractual agreements.

Net Asseis With Donor Resirictions - Net assets with donor restrictions
represent contributions, which are subject to donor-imposed restrictions that
can be fulfilled by actions of the Hospital pursuant to those stipulations or by
the passage of time or are subject to donor-imposed restrictions that they be
maintained permanently by the Hospital. Generally, the donors of these assets
permit the Hospital to use all or part of the investment return on these assets.
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Expenses are generally reported as decreases in net assets without donor
restrictions. A restriction expires when the stipulated time period has elapsed,
when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been
fulfilled, or both. Net assets with donor restricted contributions are recorded as
restricted revenue when received and when the restriction expires, the net assets
are shown as released from restriction on the statement of changes in net assets.
Investment income on net assets with domor restrictions that is restricted by
donor or law is recorded in the category of net assets with donor restrictions and
when the restriction expires, the net assets are shown as released from restriction.

Cash And Cash Equivalents

The Hospital invests its cash in a financial institution with a strong credit
rating. At times, such balances may be in excess of the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance limit of $250,000. At September 30,
2019, funds held in excess of the FDIC limit amounted to $94,181,153. Total
cash held at the bank represents the amount of cash actually deposited in the
bank at September 30, 2019 without regard to deposits in transit or outstanding
checks. Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less.

. The following is a reconciliation between cash, cash equivalents and restricted
cash reported within the balance sheet and total cash, cash equivalents and
restricted cash as shown in the statement of cash flows as of September 30:

2019 2018
Cash and cash equivalents $ 88,829,613 & 87,789,338
Restricted cash 4,399,366 4,363,188

g 98,228,979 8 92,162,626

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash 18 money market funds held through a July 6, 2016 escrow
agreement with a national banking association. The restricted cash relates to an
agreement between the Hospital and the previous management company. As
disclosed in Note 2, the management agreement was terminated in August 2018.
However, under the escrow agreement, the restricted cash cannot be released
without the written instructions of both parties and is therefore still being
reported as restricted cash at September 30, 2019 and 2018. Restricted cash
totaled $4,399,366 and $4,363,188 at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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Investments And Investment Return

Investments held by the Hospital consist of equities, fixed income securities, and
government securities and are carried at fair value. Investment earnings
(including dividend, interest and realized and unrealized gains and losses) net of
investment expenses are included in investment income unless the income or loss
is restricted by donor. Income on investments of donor restricted funds is added
to or deducted from the appropriate net asset category based on the donor's
restriction.

Investment securities are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market
and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment
securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of
investment securities will occur in the near term and that such change could
materially affect the amounts reported in the accompanying balance sheets.

Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivables are uncollateralized patient and third-party payor

obligations and are stated at the amount management expects to collect.

Payments of patient receivables are allocated to the specific claims identified on
. the remittance advice or, if unspecified, are applied to the earliest unpaid claim.

The carrying amount of patient receivables is reduced by a valuation allowance
that reflects management's best estimate of amounts that will not be collected
from patients and third-party payors. Management reviews patient receivables
by major payor class and applies percentages to determine estimated amounts
that will not be collected from third parties under contractual agreements and
amounts that will not be collected from patients due to bad debts. Management
regularly reviews data about these major payor classes of revenue in evaluating
the sufficiency of the allowance. Management considers historical write-off and
recovery information in determining the estimated bad debt provision. The
difference between the amounts billed and the amounts actually collected after
all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted is charged off against the
valuation allowance.

The Hospital's valuation allowance increased from 72% of patient receivables at
September 30, 2018 to 82% at September 30, 2019. The increase is a result of the
Hospital's receivables including more accounts that are over 120 days. The
amounts of contractual write-offs and bad debts as a percentage of the amount of
revenue recorded remained materially consistent with the prior year with only a
0.1% decrease.
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Supplies

Supplies consist primarily of pharmaceuticals and other medical supplies and are
stated at lower of cost on the first-in, firsat-out method or net realizable value,

Assets Limited As To Use

Assets limited as to use include: (1) assets restricted by donors and (2) assets set
aside by the Board of Directors (the Board) for future capital improvements and
debt redemption, over which the Board retains control and may, at its discretion,
subsequently use for other purposes. Assets limited as to use that are available
to meet the objectives of the board and external donors are classified as
noncurrent assets.

Property And Equipment

Property and equipment acquisitions in excess of $5,000 are capitalized and
recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life of each ‘
depreciable asset and is computed using the straight-line method. Equipment ‘
under capital lease obligations is amortized on the straight-line method over the
shorter period of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the equipment.
. Amortization is included in depreciation and amortization in the financial
statements. The estimated useful lives of property and equipment are 8 to 20
years for land improvements, 7 to 40 years for buildings and improvements, and
3 to 20 years for major moveable equipment.

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings, or equipment are reported as
additions to unrestricted net assets at their fair market value and are excluded
from revenues in excese of expenses, unless explicit donor stipulations specify
how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit
restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other
assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as net assets
with donor restrictions. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those
long-lived assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are
reported when donated or when acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.

The Hospital considers whether indicators of impairment are present and
performs the necessary tests to determine if the carrying value of an asset is
appropriate. Impairment write-downs are recognized in operating income at the
time the impairment is identified. There was no impairment of long-lived assets
in fiscal years 2019 or 2018.
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Construction In Progress

The Hospital capitalizes costs of various remodel projects into construction in
progress. When the project is completed, the costs are transferred to property
and equipment and depreciation begins.

Compensated Absences

The Hospital's employees earn paid time off at varying rates depending on years
of service. Employees may accumulate paid time off up to a specified maximum.
Prior to February 1, 2019, employees who retired from the Hospital were able to
convert accumulated paid time off to termination payments at varying rates,
depending on the employees’ service agreement. Effective February 1, 2019, the
policy wae changed and unused accumulated paid time off is forfeited upon
termination and not paid out. The policy for extended illnees leave remains
unchanged and is not paid out at termination.

Net Patient Service Revenue

The Hospital has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments
to the Hospital at amounts different from its established rates. Payment

’ arrangements include pre-determined rates, discounted charges, and per diem
payments. Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net amount
due from patients, third-party payors, and others for services rendered, including
estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-
party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the
period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final
gettlements are determined. The Hospital is accredited as a Critical Access
Hospital through The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) and as
such, has a cost reimbursement methodology for Medicare payment rates.

Indian Self-Determination And Education Assistance Act (ISDEAA)

The Hospital has an agreement with the Department of Health and Human
Services, Indian Health Service (IHS), to provide medical services to Native
Americans in the defined catchment area of Ganado, Arizona. Under this
agreement, the Hospital receives capitation payments, regardless of the services
actually performed by the Hospital. The agreement is for the fiscal years 2018
through 2020. Thereafter, continued funding is dependent on a newly negotiated
three-year contract.
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Self-Determination Contract Revenue

As noted above, the Hospital has a self-determination contract with THS to
assume the management and operation of programs, functions, services and
activities (PFSA) for the delivery of health care services to Native Americans.
Under this agreement, the Hospital receives lump-sum payments based on
negotiations between THS and the Hospital, as provided in the Annual Funding
Agreement for services provided during the annual contract period. The Hospital
is required to provide inpatient and outpatient services including ancillary and
support services which include primary care clinic, emergency medical services,
dental clinie, inpatient and outpatient pharmacy, clinical laboratory
improvement amendments, laboratory, physical therapy, podiatry clinic,
optometry clinic, radiology services, public health nursing, behavioral health and
social services, community based health promotion/disease prevention activities,
traditional medicine, contract health services and other health services to Native
Americans residing within the defined boundaries to the extent that self-
determination funds are available. Revenues earned under the contract for the
years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 represented 53% and 61% of total
revenues, respectively. Net Indian Self-Determination revenue for the year
ended September 30, 2018 included settlement funds of $8,000,000. The

' settlement funds related to claims the Hospital filed against the Secretary of the
United States Department of Health and Human Services, Indian Health
Service, and Navajo Area Indian Health Service regarding the termination of the
self-determination funding and contract support shortfalls.

Grants And Contributions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are recorded at estimated
fair value at the date each promise is received. Gifts received with donor
stipulations are reported as net assets with donor restrictions. When a donor
restriction expires, that is, when a time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified and reported as
net assets without donor restrictions.

The Hospital receives support from a federal governmental entity under a grant
to support its diabetes program, which is considered an exchange arrangement.
Revenue under this agreement is recognized based on the Hospital's fulfillment of
the contract, which is based on costs incurred for the diabetes program.

Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year
as received are reported as grant revenue or contributions received for operations
in the accompanying financial statements.
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Charity Care

To fulfill its mission of community service, the Hospital provides care to patients
who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy without charge or at
amounts less than its established rates. Because the Hospital does not pursue
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported
as patient service revenue. The Hospital did not have any charity care write-off
amounts for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018.

Other Income (Expense)

Other income (expense) consgists of non-operating investment returns (including
interest and dividends, and realized and unrealized gains/losses) on investments
and other expenses that are not deemed to be operating in nature, such as legal
settlements.

Revenue In Excess Of (Less Than) Expenses

The statement of operations reports revenue in excess of (less than) expenses,

which is considered the operating indicator. Revenue in excess of (less than)

expenses reported on the statements of operations excludes contributions that

are restricted by donors and investment income restricted by donors. These
. items are reported as changes in net assets with donor restrictions.

Income Taxes

The Hospital has been recognized as exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and a similar provision of the state law.
However, the Hospital is subject to federal income tax on any unrelated business
taxable income.

The Hospital undergoes an annual analysis of its various tax positions, assessing
the likelihood of those positions being upheld upon examination with relevant tax
authorities, as defined by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAP). The Hospital believes that they are in substantial
compliance with all IRS tax regulations as of September 30, 2019, and therefore
have not recorded any unrecognized tax benefit or liabilities for income taxes.

The Hospital’'s tax returns are typically subject to examinations by tax
authorities for a period of 3 years from the date they are filed.
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Self-Insurance

The Hospital has elected to self-insure certain losses related to employee health
and accident benefit programs. Costs resulting from noninsured losses are
charged to income when incurred. Management accrues its best estimate of
outstanding claims as they occur based on past experience and current trends to
provide an adequate reserve for loss contingencies.

Fair Value Measurements

The Hospital measures fair value of its investments as required by generally
accepted accounting principles. Fair value is defined as the exchange price that
would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price)} in the
principal or most advantapeous market for the asset or liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants on the measurement date. The
valuation techniques are required to maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unohservable inputs.

Investments measured and reported at fair value are classified as disclosed in
one of the three following categories:

Level 1 Quoted prices that are readily available in active markets/exchanges
. for identical investments

Level 2 Pricing inputs cther than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the investment, either directly or indirectly

Level 8 Significant pricing inputs that are unobservable for the investments
and includes investments for which there is little, if any, market
activity for the investment

Reclassifications

Certain 2018 amounts have been reclassified, where appropriate, to conform to
the presentation used in the 2019 financial statements.
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New Accounting Standards Implementation

During 2019, the Hospital implemented Accounting Standards Update (ASU)
2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements
of Not-for-Profit Entities. In accordance with the ASU, the statement of financial
position presents two classes of net assets, rather than the previously required
three classes. The two classes are “Net assets without donor restriction”
(previously “Unrestricted” net assets) and “Net assets with donor restrictions”
(previously “Temporarily and Permanently” restricted net assets). The ASU also
requires disclosure concerning the Hospital's liquidity and presentation of
expense by both function and natural classification. The Hospital adopted the
ASU on a retrospective basis and the adoption did not have a material impact on
the financial statements.

During 2019, the Hospital implemented ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows
(Topic 230): Resiricted Cash. The objective of this change is to reduce diversity
that exists in the classification and presentation of changes in restricted cash on
the statement of cash flows. This amendment requires that amounts generally
described as restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents be included with cash
and cash equivalents when reconciling the beginning-of-period and end-of-period

. total amounts shown on the statement of cash flows. The Hospital's
implementation of this new accounting guidance resulted in certain presentation
changes on the statement of cash flows. The effect of these changes has been
applied retrospectively. For the year ended September 30, 2019, cash flows from
operating activities increased $36,178. For the year ended September 30, 2018,
cash flows from operating activities increased $18,752.

2. Management Agreement

The Hospital was under a management agreement with Razaghi Development
Company dba Razaghi Healthcare (“RH") during the year ended September 30,
2018. The second amended management agreement became effective June 16,
2017 and included an expiration date of September 30, 2025. However, the
agreement ended in August 2018, and the Hospital filed a civil Racketeer
Influenced and Corrupt Organizations (RICO) Act complaint in the United States
District Court, District of Nevada alleging that RH and its owner, Ahmad
Razaghi, committed federal and state racketeering and conspiracy violations and
completed an unlawful and fraudulent taking of over $10.8 million under the
guise of a management agreement dispute. The federal complaint requests
compensatory and punitive damages and emergency injunctive relief.
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Under the management agreement, all matters requiring professional medical
judgment remained the responsibility of the Hospital's medical staff and
professionals. RH had the authority and responsibility to oversee the supervision
and effective management of the day-to-day business operations of the Hospital.
Additionally, RH was required to perform the duties and responsibilities of the
chief executive officer.

During the year ended September 30, 2018, the Hospital incurred the following
fees and costs relating to the management agreement and its amendments:

Management fecs $ 2,480,231
Salaries of employees at contract rates 3,695,014

Legal, professional, and insurance cost
reimbursements 1,250,023
Other 335,196
3 7,660,463

Theft / diversion of Hospital assets (see Note 13) $ 10,855,134

. 3. Related Party Transactions

Employee Housing

The Hospital leases housing to its employees. The leases are for the duration of
employment with the Hospital and cease 7 days after termination of employment.
Total rent received for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, was
$217,398 and $224,159, respectively.

Board Member Stipends

The Hospital paid stipends to board members totaling $74,150 and $138,980 for
the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The Hospital also
reimbursed the board members for travel and other costs totaling $14,336 and
$27,051 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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4,

Net Patient Service Revenue

The Hospital has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments
at amounts different from its established rates. A summary of the payment
arrangements with major third-party payors follows.

Medicare

The Hospital, licensed as a Critical Access Hospital (CAH), is reimbursed for
most inpatient and outpatient services under a cost reimbursement methodology
with final settlement determined after submission of annual cost reports, which
are subject to audits, by the Medicare intermediary. Estimated provisions to
approximate the final expected settlements after review by the intermediaries
are included in the accompanying financial statements. As a result, there is at
least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material
amount in the near term. In April 2018, there was a final settlement adjustment
for fiscal year 2016 that resulted in additional payments to the Hospital totaling
$347,154. An audit is currently being performed on the fiscal year 2017 Medicare
cost report. At September 30, 2019, receivable from third-party reimbursement
programs consists of estimated reimbursements relating to the 2019 Medicare
cost report and the 2018 amended Medicare cost report.

Medicaid/AHCCCS

Inpatient and outpatient services rendered to Arizona Health Care Cost
Containment System (AHCCCS) program beneficiaries are reimbursed at
prospectively determined rates. As a CAH, the Hospital shares in a pool of
additional reimbursement that is allocated to all critical access hospitals in the
state of Arizona. At September 30, 2019, payable to third-party reimbursement
programs consists of a liability relating to AHCCCS withholdings.

Commercial Insurance Carriers

The Hospital has agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers and
other organizations. The basis for payment to the Hospital under these
agreements includes prospectively determined rates per discharge, discounts
from established charges, and prospectively determined daily rates.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare, AHCCCS, and other programs are
extremely complex and subject to interpretation. As a result, there is at least a
reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material amount
in the near term.
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5. Investments And Other Finanecial Instruments

The composition of investments, including assets limited as to use, and cash, cash
equivalents, and restricted cash at September 30 is as followa:

2019 2018

Investments measured at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents $ 98,662,738 § 97,527,738
Fixed income securities 157,067 146,363
Equities 21,723,296 486,669
Government gecurities 10,747,723 30,506,878

$ 131,290,819 § 128,666,538

Investments, including assets limited as to use, and cash, cash equivalents, and
restricted cash at September 30 is as follows:

2019 2018
Assets limited as to use:
Internally designated by Board of Directors 8 5,684,889 3 5,894,839
Externally restricted by donors 836,673 809,176
. Restricted cash 4,389,366 4,363,188
‘ Other financial instrumenta:

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term
investmenta 88,956,785 87,909,818
Investments, long-term 31,403,156 29,889,617
$ 131,290,819 $ 128,666,538

Investment Return

Investment return on assets that are board-designated for property and
equipment replacement is considered a non-operating gain or loss. Investment
return for the external endowment is considered a change in net assets with
donor restrictions, as stipulated in the endowment.
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Investment income and gains and losses on assets limited as to use, cash
equivalents, and other investments consisted of the following for the years ended
September 30:

2019 2018
Dividends and interest ¢ 1,160,863 $ 169,187
Net realized and unrealized gains 392,693 167,882

$ 1,553,556 $ 327,079

Investment return is reported as follows:

2019 2018

Nonoperating investment income $ 1,526,069 $ 320,967
Investment income included in increse in net

assets with donor restrictions 27,497 6,112

$ 1,663,556 $ 327,079

Fair Value Of Financial Instruments

Following is a description of the wvaluation methodologies used for assets
measured at fair value.

Money market funds are valued using a net asset value (NAV) of $1.00 and are
generally included in cash and cash equivalents. Equities are valued at quoted
market prices. Fixed income and government securities are primarily valued
using quotes from pricing vendors based on recent trading activity and other
observable market data.

The methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be
indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future values. Furthermore,
while the Hospital believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent
with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or
assumptions to determine fair value of certain financial instruments could result
in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.
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The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the
Hospital's assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of September 30;

Fair Value Measurements Using Total Agsets
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 At Fair Value

September 30, 2019
Cash and cash equivalents §$ 98,662,733 § — $ -— & 98,682,733
Fixed income securities 12,633 144,434 — 167,067
Equities 21,723,296 —_ — 21,723,296
Government securities — 10,747,723 — 10,747,723
$ 120,398,662 § 10,892,157 S e $ 131,290,818
Fair Value Measurements Using Total Assets
Level 1 Leve] 2 Level 3 At Fair Value

September 30, 2018
Cash and cash equivalents § 97,627,738 § —— 3 e $ 97,627,738
Fixed income securities —_— 146,363 — 146,363
Equities 486,609 —_ ol 486,559
Government securities — 30,605,878 — 30,605,878
$ 08,014,297 § 30,662,241 $ e $ 128,666,638

The carrying values of patient accounts receivable, all other receivables, accounts
payable, accrued payroll expenses, capital lease obligations, housing deposits,
and estimated self-insurance liability approximate their fair values due to the
short-term nature. The fair value of the amounts payable and receivable under
third-party reimbursement contracts is not readily determinable.

7. Property And Equipment

A summary of property and equipment at September 30 followa:

2018 2018
Cost:

Land ] 26,000 § 26,000
Land improvements 33,145 33,146
Buildings and improvements 14,863,987 12,798,638
Major moveable equipment 11,828,305 11,669,775
26,742,447 24,627,668

Less: Accumulated depreciation and
amortization (19,248,666) (18,467,774

§ 7,498,782 § 6,059,784
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Most of the land improvements and buildings and improvements are leasehold
improvements located on the land leased from the Presbytery of Grand Canyon
(the Church). The Hospital signed a lease agreement with the Church in 1989 to
lease the land and buildings in Ganade, Arizona in which the Hospital operates.
Annual payments under the lease are $1 plus payment of taxes, security and fire
protection. The lease expires in 2034. Under the lease agreement, the land and
buildings must be used for providing educational, religious, and healthcare to the
Navajo people. Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended
September 30, 2019 and 2018, amounted to $931,348 and $838,124, respectively.

Capital Leases

The Hospital leases equipment under capital leases expiring through fiscal
year 2022. The assets and liabilities under capital leases are recorded at the
lower of the present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of
the assets. The assets are amortized over the shorter of the lease terms or
their estimated productive lives. Amortization of assets under capital leases is
included in depreciation expense and totaled $82,261 for each of the years
ended September 30, 2019 and 2018.

Following is a summary of equipment held under capital leases at September 30,
2019 and 2018:

2019 2018
Major moveable equipment 8 443,240 $ 443,240
Less: Accumulated amortization (200,449) (118,189)

§ 242,791 $ 325,061

Minimum future lease payments under capital leases as of September 30, 2019
are as follows:

Year Amount
2020 $ 105,326
2021 76,898
2022 57,674
239,897
Less: Interest (17,956)
221,941
Less: Current portion (€4,497)
§ 127,444

Page 23

206




NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION/
SAGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL, INC.

Notes To Financial Statements (Continued)

9.

10.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions consisted of the following at September 30:

2019 2018
Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:
Scholarships $ 266,684 $ 265,684
Other 637,100 637,680
Endowment restricted earnings for
scholarships 285,764 208,267
Flu vaccination 23,200 —
1,161,648 1,111,631
Subject to restriction in perpetuity:
Endowment 600,908 600,909
Other 1,000 1,000
601,909 601,909

$ 1,763,667 & 1,713,440

Endowment

The Hospital's endowment consists of Scandling Memorial Scholarship funds
established to provide financial scholarship opportunities for full-time Navajo
college students in the field of nursing. Its endowment consists of donor-
restricted endowment funds. As required by generally accepted accounting
principles, net assets associated with endowment funds are classified and
reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. There
are no funds designated by the Board to function as endowments.

Interpretation Of Relevant Law

The Board of the Hospital has interpreted the State Prudent Management of
Institutional Funds Act (SPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value
of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds
absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this
interpretation, the Hospital classifies net assets with donor restrictions as (a) the
original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b} the original
value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (¢) accumulations to
the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the
applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the
fund. Investment earnings that are not classified in net assets with donor
restrictions in perpetuity are classified as unappropriated endowment earnings
until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Hospital in a
manner consistent with the standards of prudency prescribed by SPMIFA.
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In accordance with SPMIFA, the Hospital considers the following factors in
making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted
endowment funds:

(1) The duration and preservation of the fund

(2) The purposes of the donor-restricted endowment fund

(3) General economic conditions

(4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation

(56) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments
(6) Other resources of the Hospital

(7) The investment policies of the Hospital

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of September 30, 2019 and
2018 and changes in endowment net aasets for the years then ended are as

follows:
With Donor Restrictions
Unappropriated
Endowment In
Earnings _ Perpetuity Total
2019
Endowment net assets at beginning $ 208,287 $ 800,909 $ 809,176
Investment return 27,497 — 27,497
Endowment net assets at end $ 285,764 $ 600,909 $ B36,673
2018
Endowment net assets at beginning $ 202,156 $ 600,909 $ 808,064
Investment return 6,112 — 6,112
Endowment net assets at end $ 208,267 $ 600,909 3 809,176
Funds With Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor
restricted endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor requires the
Hospital to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. In accordance with GAAP,
deficiencies of this nature related to market fluctuations are reported in net
assets with donor restrictions. If such deficiencies exist, the Hoapital would
continue appropriation for certain purposes in which are deemed prudent by the
Board. There were no such deficiencies as of September 30, 2019 and 2018,
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Return Objectives And Risk Parameters

The Hospital has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment
asgets that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs
supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of
the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted
funds that the Hospital must hold in perpetuity or for donor-specified periods.
Under this policy, as approved by the Board, the endowment assets are invested
in a manner that is intended to produce results that exceed the price and yield
results of the S&P 600 index while assuming a moderate level of investment risk.
The Hospital expects its endowment funds, over time, to provide an average rate
of return of approximately 10% annually. Actual returns in any given year may
vary from this amount.

Strategies Employed For Achieving Objectives

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Hospital relies on a total

return strategy in which investment returns are achieved through both capital

appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends).

The Hospital targets a diversified asset allocation that places a greater emphasis

on equity-based investments to achieve its long-term return objectives within
. prudent risk constraints.

Spending Policy And How The Investment Objectives Relate To
Spending Policy

The Hospital has a policy of appropriating for distribution each year 5% of its
endowment fund's average fair value over the prior 4 gquarters through the
calendar year-end preceding the fiscal year in which the distribution is planned.
In establishing this policy, the Hospital considered the long-term expected return
on its endowment. Accordingly, over the long term, the Hospital expects the
current spending policy to allow its endowment to grow at an average of 10%
annually. This is consistent with the Hospital's objective to maintain the
purchasing power of the endowment assets held in perpetuity or for a specified
term as well as to provide additional real growth through new gifts and
investment return.
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11. Liquidity And Availability Of Resources

The Hospital has the following financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months:

2019 2018

Cash and cash equivalents $ 88,829,618 § 87,789,338
Investments 31,630,328 30,009,997
Patient accounts receivables 1,259,267 1,713,108
Other receivables 1,880,806 404,210
Assets limited as to use 6,681,612 6,504,016
Restricted cash 4,399,366 4,363,188
Total liquid assets 184,680,892 180,788,868
Less: Amounte restricted by donors (1,763,6567) (1,713,440)
Less: Amounts restricted by contracts (4,399,366) (4,368,188)
Lens: Amounts designated by the Board (5,694,839) (5,694,839)

$§ 122,673,130 $ 119,012,389

The Hospital manages its cash available to meet general expenditure following
. these guiding principles:
Operating within a prudent range of financial soundness and stability,
Maintaining adequate liquid assets, and
Maintaining sufficient reserves to provide reasonable assurance that long-
term commitments to medical support for the Native Americans in and
around Ganado, Arizona.

The Board had designated a portion of net assets without donor restrictions to
support the upkeep and purchase of additional property and equipment.

12. Pension Plans

The Hospital has two defined contribution pension plans covering substantially
all employees. The Sage Memorial Hospital Money Purchase Pension Plan
provides for matching contributions equal to 300% of the first 1% of each eligible
participant’s contributions to the Sage Memorial Hospital Tax Sheltered Annuity
Plan. DPensiocn expense was $1858,817 and $106,234 for the years ended
September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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13.

Commitments And Contingencies

Electronic Health Records (EHR)

In 2019, all CAHs are required to use 2015 edition certified electronic health
record technology and meet the new requirements outlined in the 2019 IPPS final
rule. The Hospital obtained a hardship exception to avoid a payment reduction
for the 2018 payment year. The Hospital will be applying for a hardship
exception for the 2019 payment year when CMS begins to accept applications in
August 2020 for CAHs. The Hospital intends to migrate to Meditech Expanse, a
cloud-based EHR solution, by November 1, 2020.

Gas Line

Management was notified that the gas lines on the Hospital campus were in need
of immediate replacement. Phase 1 of the project was completed during fiscal
year 2019. The Hospital has a signed construction contract in place for Phase 2
of the project. Phase 2 totals $810,000 of which $405,000 had been incurred
through September 30, 2019.

Tribal Designation

The Navajo Nation Council has authorized the Hospital as a tribal organization
for the purpose of managing and operating contracts with IHS under Public Law
93-638 for a fifteen-year period ending September 30, 2020. The Hospital intends
to provide an extended authorizing resolution for the proposed fiftieen-year
contract term. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, submission of this resclution has
been delayed; however, the Hospital plans to have the resolution in place before
the start of the proposed contract term on Qctober 1, 2020. Without the tribal
organization designation, the Hospital is not authorized to enter into ISDEAA
funding contracts with IHS.
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14,

Litigation

In February 2019, the Hospital filed a complaint for compensatory and punitive
damages and emergency injunctive relief against Razaghi Healthcare, its owner
Ahmad Razaghi individually, and the former CFO Tausif Hasan contracted
through Razaghi Healthcare. The complaint has been filed in the United States
District Court, District of Nevada and alleges that RH, Razaghi and Hasan
committed federal and state racketeering and conspiracy violations, and a
fraudulent and unlawful theft of over $10.8 million dollars. It is the hospital's
position that the $10.8 million-dollar wire transfer was fraudulent and was part
of a civil conspiracy, that Razaghi and Hasan breached their fiduciary duties,
The Hospital is seeking declaratory and injunctive relief, compensatory, punitive
and treble damages in an amount exceeding $30,000,000, and interest on all
sums as permitted by law.

Litigation is ongoing and the parties are currently briefing various legal issues
with the court. A trial date has not heen set by the courts.

Estimated Sélf-Insurance Claims

The Hospital is self-insured for employee health care claims. The accrual for
incurred but unpaid health claims is reflected as a component of accrued
expenses in the balance sheets. A provision is accrued for self-insured claims
including both claims reported and claims incurred but not yet reported. The
accrual is estimated based on consideration of prior claims experience, recently
settled claims, frequency of claims and other economic and social factors. Self-
funded health care expense for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018
totaled $665,673 and $568,854, respectively, A liability of $81,5629 and $77,804
for claims outstanding at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, has been
recorded in the accompanying balance sheet. Management believes this liability
is sufficient to cover estimated claims including claims incurred but not yet
reported. It is reasonably possible that the Hospital's estimate may change in
the near term.
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15.

16.

Medical Malpractice Claims

The Hospital has malpractice coverage to provide protection for professional
liability losses on a claims-made basgis subject to a limit of $1 million per claim
and an annual aggregate limit of $3 million. Liability protection was also
provided under the Federal Tort Claims Act (FT'CA) for the Hospital and its
employees when they are providing services within the scope of employment
ineluded under FQHC activities.

Functional Expenses

Expenses are reported in their natural classification in the functional expense
categories. All expenses that are not determined to be management and general
are classified as patient services. Certain cost centers are purely administrative
and not directly related to patient care; therefore, the expenses from these cost
centers are categorized as management and general.

Expenses are categorized on a functional basis for the years ended September 30
as follows:

2019
Paticnt DManngement
Services And General Fundraising Total
Salaries $ 9,984,167 8 1,662,393 $ - § 11,636,660
Employeze benefits 1,466,428 232,666 — 1,698,084
Supplies and other oxponses 6,733,372 3,076,917 6,227 9,815,616
Purchased services and professional feca 11,668,133 1,448,285 — 13,107,418
Deprecintion and amortization 838,213 93,135 —_ 931,348
Interest — 16,4563 —_ 16,4563

$ 30,880,313 § 6,518,839 $ 6,227 § 37,205,379

2018
Patient Manasgement
Services And General Fundraising Total
Salaries § 7,469,834 S 1,678,798 $ — § 9,148,630
Employee benefits 1,066,157 236,261 — 1,301,408
Supplies and other expenses 6,162,986 2,912,633 145,249 9,220,708
Purchased services and professional fees 13,822,369 4,379,832 e 18,202,201
Depreciation and amortization 754,312 83,812 — 838,124
Interest — 26,154 — 26,154

S 29,275,658 $ 9,316,378 $ 145,249 S 38,737,285
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17,

18.

Concentration Of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Hospital to possible credit risk
congist principally of patient receivables, cash deposits in financial institutions in
excess of insured limits, and investment of surplus operating funds.

Patient Receivables

Patient receivables consist of amounts due from patients, their insurers, or
government agencies (primarily Medicare and AHCCCS) for health care provided
to the patients. The majority of the Hospital's patients are from Ganado,
Arizona, and the surrounding area.

The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors at September 30,
2019 and 2018 was as follows:

2019 2018
Government related programs 81% 2%
Commercial and other third-party payors 18% 22%
Self-pay 1% 6%
100% 100%

Laws And Regulations

The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal,
state, and local governments. These laws and regulations include, but are not
necessarily limited to, matters such as licensure, accreditation, government
health care program participation requirements, reimbursement for patient
services, and billing regulations. Government activity with respect to
investigations and allegations concerning poasible violations of such regulations
by health care providers has increased. Violations of these laws and regulations
could result in expulsion from government health care programs together with
the imposition of significant fines and penalties, as well as significant repayment
for patient services previously billed. Management believes that the Hospital is
in compliance with applicable government laws and regulations.
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19.

The Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) uses recovery audit
contractors (RACs) as part of its efforts to ensure accurate payments under the
Medicare program. RACs search for potentially inaccurate Medicare payments
that might have been made to health care providers and were not detected
through existing CMS program-integrity efforts. Once a RAC identifies a claim it
believes is inaccurate, the RAC makes a deduction from or addition to the
provider's Medicare reimbursement in an amount estimated to egual the
overpayment or underpayment. The Hospital may either accept or appeal the
RACs findings. The outcome of any potential reviews is unknown, and any
financial impact cannot be reasonably estimated at September 30, 2019.

The Hospital serves as a Plan Administrator for two separate retirement plans
registered with the Department of Labor (DOL) and Internal Revenue Service
(IRS). Plan one is a Tax Sheltered Annuity retirement plan and Plan two is a
Money Purchase Pension Plan that is made up of employer contributions made
by the Hospital. Both plans were created under Section 403(b) of the Internal
Revenue Code. Each year the plan administrator is responsible for filing
separate tax form 55600's accompanied by a set of audited financial statements of
each plan. Filings for each plan are due by July 31, with extensions available
through October 15, of the subsequent year being reported.

Subsequent Events

The Hospital purchased medical equipment including an MRI system, a mobile
radiography and a digital radiography with purchase prices totaling $1,5650,200.
The Hospital entered into maintenance agreement for the equipment that have
five year terms at a cost of $109,500 for the first year and $138,800 for years two
through five.

The Hospital entered into an architectural master agreement for the replacement
of the existing hospital, a medical office building, additional multi-family housing
units, and additional projects. The Hospital has not entered into any
construction or development agreements related to the projects as of the report
date. The Board approved a resolution regarding implementation of a plan to
finance the projects by issuance of a meximum of $1265,000,000 bonds, with the
proceeds of the bonds being loaned to the Hospital.

The Hospital leased medical equipment for five years with monthly rental
payments of $5,278 and monthly maintenance payments of $1,690.
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The Hospital signed a contract for various software including electronic health
records and an upgrade of the financial accounting software under a month-to-
month contract which requires monthly payments of $39,000 and a 60 day
termination notice. In addition, $75,000 was due ninety days following execution
of the agreement.

The recent outbreak in China of COVID-18, which has been declared by the
World Health Organization to be a public health emergenecy of international
concern, has spread across the globe and is impacting worldwide economic
activity. To date, COVID-19 has caused the Hospital to temporarily suspend its
outpatient services. The U.S. government has enacted certain fiscal stimulus
measures to counteract the economic disruption caused by COVID-19. The
Hospital has received funding totaling $5,669,200 through The Families First
Coronavirus Response Act, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security
Act, and the Paycheck Protection Program and Healthcare Enhancement Act.
The funding has been administrated through THS and the U.S. Department of
Health & Human Services. If the funds are not used for the purposes during the
period of availability as cutlined in the legislation, then they must be returned.
The virus is likely to have a further negative impact in 2020 on the global
economy, and might impact the Hospital's future financial resuits. COVID-19

. could also cause increased demand for the Hospital’s services if people in the area
are exposed to the virus, The extent to which the COVID-19 virus impacts the
Hospital's results will depend on future developments, which remain highly
uncertain and cannot be predicted at this time.

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date of the
independent auditors’ report, which is the date on which the financial statements
were available to be issued.
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Board of Directors
Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and
therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been
identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2019-001 through
2019-007 that we consider to be material weaknesses.

Compliance And Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Navajo Health
Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc.’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective
of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital, Ine.’s Response To Findings

Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc.’s response to the findings
identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc.'s response
was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose Of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Siandards in
considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not auitable for any other purpose.

Flainirscon LLP

June 25, 2020
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Pass-Through
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Grant  Entity Identifying Federal
Grantor/Program Title Number Period Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services (Pass-through programs from
Indian Health Service):
10/01/18 -
Indian Self-Determination 93.441 09/30/19 HHSI245201800001C __ $ 21,471,688
Special Diabetes Program for Indians:
Dinbetes Prevention and 01/15/16 -
Treatment Projects 93.237 12/31/19 H1D1IHS0506 804,985
22,276,673
. $ 22,276,573
See the notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awarda. Page 36
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
September 30, 2019

Basis Of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial
Hospital, Inc., under programs of the federal government for the year ended
September 30, 2019. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial
Hospital, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the financial position,
changes in net assets or cash flows of Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial
Hospital, Inc.

Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are
not allowed or are limited as to reimbursement. Pass-through entity identifying
numbers are presented where available.

Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc. did not pass-through
any awards to subrecipients during the year ended September 30, 2019. Navajo
Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc. has not elected to use the 10%
de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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Board of Directors
Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memeorial Hospital, Inc.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide z legal determination of
Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc.’s compliance.

Opinion On Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc. complied, in all
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended
September 30, 2019.

Report On Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc. is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc.s
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial
Hospital, Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Page 39

222




., Board of Directors
Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have
not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on
the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any
other purpose.

HKluirsspeon LLP

June 25, 2020
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For The Year Ended September 30, 2019

Summary Of Auditors’ Results

1.

The auditors’ report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial
statements of Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc. were
prepared in accordance with GAAP.

Seven material weaknesses disclosed during the audit of the financial statements
are reported in this Schedule. No significant deficiencies are reported.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Navajo Health
Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc., which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

No material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over the major
federal award programs were disclosed during the audit.

The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Navajo
Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion
on the major federal programs.

There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2
CFR section 200.516(a).

The programs tested as major were CFDA Number 93.441 - Indian Self
Determination and CFDA Number 938.237 - Special Diabetes Program for Indians:
Diabetes Prevention and Treatment Projects.

The threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was
$750,000.

Navajo Health Foundation/Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc. was determined to be a
high-risk auditee,
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
For The Year Ended September 30, 2019

Findings - Financial Statements
Material Weaknesses
2019-001 Deposit Reconciliations

Condition: The Hospital’s control procedures did not include appropriately researching
and adjusting variances between cash receipts posted through patient accounting and
deposits per the bank statement.

Criteria: Deposit reconciliation procedures are a fundamental part of maintaining
accurate cash and accounts receivable balances. A reconciliation of all cash receipts
serves as a control procedure to help ensure that transactions posted in the general
ledger are accurate and complete.

Cause: Due to the difficulty in extracting individual deposit information from the
accounting softwarec as posted by the patient accounting department, detail deposits
were not reconciled between the bank statement and the general ledger. Instead,
differences were posted to one expense account to adjust the ending cash halances to
match the bank,

Effect: Any errors in posting cash receipts by the patient accounting department will
not be properly identified and corrected with the current procedures in place.
Additionally, withholdings from third party payors will not be timely identified and, if
necessary, appealed with the payor or accruals posted for the withholdings.

Auditors’ Recommendation: We recommend that management establish procedures to
extract the individual deposit totals posted by the patient accounting department and
that each deposit be reconciled to the bank statement on a monthly basis. We
recommend that .variances be properly researched and adjusted through the patient
accounting department. The reconciliations should be reviewed and approved by an
individual independent of the reconciliation process.

Views of responstble officials and planned corrective actions: Management agrees with
the auditor's recommendation. The finance department has met with the appropriate
individuals from the affected departments and has identified the areas of weakness to
be addressed. The deposits will be reconciled between the general ledger postings and
the patient accounting department on a monthly basis.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
For The Year Ended September 80, 2019

2019-002 Accounts Payable

Condition: The Hospital's internal controls did not allow for accounts payable and
accrued liability accounts to be accurate at year end.

Criteriar Accounts payable and accrued ligbilities at year end should include all
liabilities that existed at year end.

Cause: The accounts payable module was closed shortly after year end. Therefore, an
accounting employee manually prepared a listing of invoices requiring accrual at year
end and an accrual was posted to accrued liabilities based on the listing. The manually
prepared listing was not complete and also included duplicates of invoices that were
already accrued in accounts payable.

Effect: Various audit adjustments were required to correct accounts payable and
accrual balances.

Auditors’ Recommendation: We recommend that accounts payable be held open at least
30 days after year end to help ensure invoices are accrued at year end. Approved
invoices should be posted to the general ledger in the accounts payable module based on
the date the liability occurred. Invoices that cover a range of service dates should be
prorated and accrued at year end. The detailed schedules of accounts payable should be
reviewed for accuracy during the year end closing process. All accrued liability accounts
should be reviewed and reconciled to the supporting schedules on a monthly basis.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: Management agrees with
the auditor’s recommendation. The auditor's recommendation will be addressed during
the software upgrade to determine whether the recommendation will properly reflect
the accrued accounts payable, If it does then the recommendation will be implemented
by the finance department. If not, then the finance department will work with the
auditors to determine a best practices solution.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
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2019-008 Net Assets

Condition: The Hospital's internal controls did not properly identify all donor restricted
revenues and report them as net assets with donor restrictions in the general ledger.

Criteria: Net assets should be properly classified between net assets with donor
restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions. The details of any reatrictions
that are temporary in nature should be maintained in order to properly track when the
restrictions are met.

Cause: There was an oversight when recording revenues that were restricted to support
flu vaccinations and the restriction was not properly identified, recorded, and tracked.
Additionally, the journal entry to account for restricted investment earnings was posted
incorrectly.

Effect: Audit adjustments were required to reclassify net asset amounts.

Auditors’ recommendation: We recommend that all grant and donation revenues be
assessed for donor restrictions at the time they are posted and that a detail net asset
rollforward schedule be maintained on a monthly basis and reconciled to the general

ledger.

Views of responsible offictals and planned corrective actions: Management agrees with
the auditor's recommendation. The finance department will take the appropriate steps
to identify and classify restricted and non-restricted assets. In addition, a roll-forward
schedule will be maintained that is reconciled to the general ledger.

2019-004 Revenue And Accounts Receivable

Condition: We noted a lack of internal controls which led to inconsistencies in postings
from the patient accounting system into the general ledger as follows: 1) some
transactions with service dates prior to year end were not posted until after year end, 2)
the year end unbilled receivables general ledger account balance was adjusted to match
the October 31, 2019 report rather than the September 30, 2019 report, and 3) there
were over $400,000 of accounts with credit balances in patient accounts receivable.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
For The Year Ended September 30, 2019

Criteria: Revenues should be posted in the period earned at the proper amount.
Accounts receivable should represent revenues earned but unpaid and should be
reduced by an allowance for estimated contractual adjustments and uncollectible
amounts.

Cause: 1) Frequently revenues are not posted in the proper period due to required
billing adjustments posted in subsequent months. 2) There was oversight by finance
personnel and the incorrect unbilled report was utilized for year end reporting. 3) Credit
balances were largely due to duplicate postings of contractual allowances, and in some
instances, cash receipts. Credit balances were not appropriately researched and bank
reconciliation processes did not identify duplicate cash postings (see finding 2019-001).

Effect: Audit adjustments were required, with the help from finance personnel in
determining the proper adjustments, to correct the large posting errors by the patient
accounting department.

Auditors’ recommendation. We recommend that the finance department review the
detail revenue reports, the detail accounts receivable reports, and the unbilled
receivable reports monthly to properly assess whether all revenues are being reported
in the proper period and that the general ledger balances are accurate. We
recommended that all patient accounts with credit balances be routinely reviewed, and
either corrected or refunded. Additionally, as recommended in finding 2019-001, each
individual deposit should be reconciled to the bank statement during the bank
reconciliation process.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: Management agrees with
the auditor's recommendation. The auditor's recommendations will be implemented by
the Hospital. The Revenue Cycle Manager position is still vacant but is still advertised.

2019-005 Property And Equipment

Condition: The Hospital's internal controls include the maintenance of a capitalized
asset tagging log; however, the internal controls do not include reconciling the log to the
fixed asset detail schedules and the tag number is not included on the fixed asset detail
schedules.

Criteria: Property and equipment acquisitions should be capitalized at cost and
depreciation should be calculated on that cost over the estimated useful life of the
assets. Disposals should be recorded for assets that the Hospital sells or abandons.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
For The Year Ended September 30, 2019

Cause: The tagging log is maintained by the purchasing department and the fixed asset
detail schedules are maintained by the finance department and the information is not
shared between the two departments.

Effect: Additions or disposals may not be properly reflected on the fixed asset detail
schedules, which reconcile to the general ledger. This could cause fixed assets to be
either overstated or understated.

Auditors’ recommendation: We recommend that, on a monthly basis, the finance
department reconciles additions and disposals with the purchasing department and
records the asset tag numbers on the fixed asset detailed listing to ensure that all
additions and disposals are properly racorded in the general ledger.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: The finance department
has assessed the accuracy of the purchasing department’s schedule and will addrees the
additions and disposals on a quarterly basis. The fixed asset schedule will be updated
to include the asset tag numbers on a go forward basis.

2019-006 Inventory

Condition: The Hospital's internal controls do not ensure that the prices are accurate
on the inventory listings.

Criteria: Inventory prices utilized on inventory listings should be based on the
Hospital's accounting policy, which is the lower of cost on the first in first out method or
market value.

Cause: The price utilized for the inventory listing at year end was not reviewed and
there were several errors noted, including some prices being based on lots or packages
while the counts were based on the individual level.

Effect: The year end inventory was overstated and an audit adjustment was required.

Auditors’ recommendation: We recommend that management establish procedures to
ensure that accurate prices are utilized on the inventory listings.
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NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION/
SAGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL, INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
For The Year Ended September 30, 2019

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: Management agrees with
the auditor's recommendation. The finance department has addressed the issue with
the appropriate parties and a review of the input will be performed to ensure the
accuracy of the data.

2019-007 Journal Entries
Condition: There was no review and approval process for posting journal entries.
Criteria: Transactions posted in the general ledger should be accurate.

Cause: There was a limited number of finance personnel during the year and the
personnel in the department did not have additional time in their schedules to
implement controls to review and approve journal entries.

Effect: No review and approval of journal entries could lead to posting errors not being
timely identified and corrected.

Auditors’ recommendation; We recommend that an employee with knowledge of
generally accepted accounting principles review all journal entries and the supporting
documentation prior to them being posted in the general ledger and that the approval
be documented.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: The accounting
department has taken steps to address the weakness through segregation of duties of
office personnel. A staff accountant will now be involved in the preparation of the
journal entries with review being performed by the financial consultant.
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Form ggﬂ

Deporimaent of the Treaswury
Intotnal Rovenuo Sarvice

A For the 2018 calendar year, or tax year beginning

OCT 1,

2018

and ending SEP 30,

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501{c), 527, or 4947(al1) of the Internal Revenue Code {except private foundations} 20 ! 8

P> Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.
P Go to www.irs.gov/Form890 for instructions and the latest information.

OMB No. 15450047

nspection

2019

B mw; C Name of organization D Employer identification number
[Jeares® | NAVAJQ HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL
Dcﬁ%u Doing business as 23-7314364
nitial Number and street (or P.0. box if mail is not delivered to street address} Room/suite | E Telephone number
et | P.O. BOX 457 (928)755-4500
ok City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal ccde G Grossreceipts § 42 ’ 387 . 473.
[ Jigeeed] GANADQ, AZ 86505 H{a) Is this a group retum
#5252 | E Name and address of principal officer MICHAEL KATIGBAK for subordinates? [ Yes No
Ped 1p,0. BOX 457, GANADO, AZ B6505 H{b) Are o1 sscrdnates icrucom? |__IYes [ No

| Tax-exempt status: ]Z f 501(c)(3) E:] S01e) (

J Website; p» WWW . SAGEMEMORTIAL . COM

vl (insertno) | | 4947¢a)or [ ] 597

If *No," attach a list. (see instructions)
Hic) Group exemption number P>

Corparation [ | Trust [ | Association

[ 10ther

[ L Year of formation: 197 4] m State of legal domicile; BZ

o| 1 Briefly describa the organization's mission or most significant activites: TO PROVIDE QUALITY HEALTHCARE
e SERVICES IN A FISCALLY RESPONSIBLE MANNER.
E 2 Checkthisbox P [:] if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its nat assets.
g 3 Number of voting members of the goveming body (Part Vi, line 1a) L R 3 6
g 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Pant Vi, line 1b) 4 &
2 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2018 (Pan V, line2a) . . .. ... 5 260
".-': 6 Total numbeor of volunteers (estimate if nacessary) e s <] 30
S| 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VilI, column (C) Ine 12 . {a 0.
< b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 980T, ne 38 .. ... b 0.
Prior Year Current Year
o| 8 Centributions and grants {Part Viil, line 1h) 72,017, 885,149.
g 9 Program service revenue (Part VIii, line 2g) ) B 48,816,220, 39,731,370.
2| 10 Investmenl income (Part Vill, column (A}, fines 3, 4, ﬂnd Td) ,,,,,,, 327 ' 078. 1,553 ’ 556.
@1 11 Other revenue (Part VIll, column {4), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9¢, 10¢, and 11¢) 206,413. 146,182.
12 Total revenus - add lines 8 through 11 {must equal Part Vill, column (A), line 12) 49,421,729.] 42,316,257,
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part {X, column (A}, lines 1-3) ... .. 0. 0.
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), lined) ... ... 0. 0.
@ 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10) | 10,450,050, 13,304,486,
@| 16a Professional fundraising faes (Part IX, column (A), fins 11e) 0. 0.
§ b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25)
W} 17 Other expenses (Part X, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 114-2de) 40,104,758, 24 ,551,736.
18 Total expenses. Add fines 13-17 {must equal Part IX, column (8), lmo25) 50,554,808, 37,856,232,
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 -1,133,079, 4,460,025.
Beginning of Current Year End of Year
Total assats (Part X, fine 16) 140,195,449. 144,787,791-
Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) 5,262,162, 5,394,4789.
134,933,287.]1 139,393,312,

Under penalties of perjury, | declare thal | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

’ Signature of officer

Sign Date
Here MICHAEL KATIGBAK, INTERIM CFO
Type or print name and title
Print/Type preparer’s name Preparer's signature Date Check ]} PTN
Pald HEATHER GRECH setempoys [P00165182
Preparer | Firm'sname g RUBTNBROWN LLP Firmvs EINpe 43-0765316
Use Only | Firm's address p 5851 W CHARLESTON BLVD
LAS VEGAS, NV 839146 Phoneno.{702) 878-9788
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? {see instructions) [:_] Yes D No
832001 12-3%:10 LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Nolice, see the separate instructions. Forr;ﬁgo (2018)
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018) NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION -~ SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 page2
Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response grnote to anylineinthis Part U1 .. . L D
. 1  Briefly describe the organization’s mission;

OUR MISSION IS TO PROVIDE QUALITY PATIENT CARE IN A FISCALLY

RESPONSIBLE MANNER FOCUSING ON THE PATIENTS PHYSICAL, SOCIAL AND

SPIRITUAL WELL-BEING.

2  Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the

PHOF FOMM 930 OF O90-EZ? . | oot iooooeeoeoeeeeeece oo e oo oo seseeeeeeee e renercees el [ves [XINo
If "Yes,” describe these new services on Schedule Q.
3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? . DYes X INo

if "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4  Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its threa largest program services, as measured by expenses.
Section 501(cX3) and 501(c){4) organizations are required to report the amcunt of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and
revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

43 (Coon ) (Exponmes § 35,033,545, cudmgpasots ) (Revrwo§ 39,731,370.)
NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION-SAGE MEMORTIAL HOSPITAL CONTRACTED WITH INDIAN
HEALTH SERVICES WITH A SELF-DETERMINATION CONTRACT WHICH PROVIDED CARE
TO INPATIENTS, OUTPATIENTS, ER PATIENTS, DENTAL, PHYSIOTHERAPY,
BEHAVIORIAL HEALTH, OPTOMETRY AND RADIOLOGY, SAGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
SERVES PRIMARILY MEMBERS OF THE NAVAJO NATION. SAGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
ALSO ADMINISTERED SPECIAL DIABETES PREVENTION AND TREATMENT FOR
NAVAJOS. THE ORGANIZATION HAS DEVELOPED A PUBLIC HEALTH AND SOCIAL
SERVICES EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN.

4b  (Codo: ) (Expunzos § including gronts of § )} (Rovonuo § )

4¢c  (Codo: ) (Exponsns § including gramts of § } (Reverue s )

4d Other program services (Describe in Schedule O.)

{Exponses § including grants of § ) {Rovenua & )
de Total program sarvice expenses p- 35,033,545.
. Form 990 (2018)
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Form 990 (2018) NAVAJO HEALTH FQOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364  Page3
| Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes | No
. 1 Is the organization described in section 501(c}3) or 4947{a){1) (other than a private foundation)?

If *Yos," complete Schedule A ., . ST e e————— 1 X
2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule B Schedule of Contnburors'? e 2 X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of orin opposxtvon to candldates 1or

public office? If “Yes,* complete SCheU!E C, Part | ... eeer e 3 X
4 Section 501(c}3) organizations. Did the organization engags in Iobbymg activities, or have a section 501(h) election in effect

during the tax year? /7 “Yes, * complete Schedule C, Part Il . 4 X
5 |s the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501{c)(5), or S01{c){E) organization that receives membership dues, assessments, or

similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197 f *Yes,* complete Schedule C, Partill ............c.cccooeeceereriinen . 5 X
& Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or eccaunts for which donors have the right to

provide advice on the distribution or investmant of amounts in such funds or acccunts? Jf “Yes, " complete Schedule D, Part ! [ X
7 Did the organization receiva or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,

the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? /1 “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part Il .. e o 7 X
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? /f 'Yes compiere

Schedule D, Part lif . Ls X

9 Did the organization mpor( an amount in Part X, llna 21, for escrow or custodial accoum Imblirty. serve as a custodlan for
amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services?
If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IV
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted endowments, permanant
endowments, or quasi-endowments? Jf “Yes, * complete Schedule D, Part V... JE USROS PRSPPSO .

11 if the organization's answer to any of the lollowing questions is "Yes,* then complete Schedule D, Pans Vi, VIL VL 1X, or X

as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for iand, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? f "Yes, * complete Schedule D,

PartVl oo o mal X
b Did the organization repor( an amount for mvestmems o\her SBCUM!ES in Part X Ilno 12 1hat is 5% or mare of sts total '
assats reported in Part X, fine 167 Jf *Yas, " complote SChodulo D, PArt VIl .. ...\ oo oooeoeoeoeoeoeeeo oo oo oeveeeeeere e 11b X !
¢ Did the organization report an amount for invastments - program related in Part X, lina 13 that is $% or more of its total : i
. assets reported in Part X, line 167 /f *Yes," complete Schodule D, Part VIll ... oooooeeooeoeeeoooeoeoeeeeeeeerveee e Lol X 5
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that is 5% or more of its total assets reported in !
Part X, line 167 if *Yes, " complete Schedula D, Part IX . . el A2d X !
e Did the organization report an amount for other habﬂmes in Pnn X hne 25’) ﬂ Y@s, comp!ete Schedule D, Pan‘ x e 11e | X !
f Did the organization’s separate or consalidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization’s fiability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? f "Yes,* complete Schedule D, Part X ... 11 | X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? f “Yes, " complete
SCHOGUIE D, PArts XIANG Xl ooo..ooooooo oo ev oo oottt st et e 12a| X
b Was the organization included in conso!ldmed mdependent audnad financial statements for the tax yeaﬁ
If "Yes," and If the organization answered “No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts X/ and Xif is optional ............... 12b X
13 Is the organization a scheo! described in section 170)(1}ANH)? if »Yes, * complete Schedule £ s 13 X
14a Did the erganization maintain an office, employees, or agents cutside of the United States? . . 14a X
b Did the erganization have aggregate revenues or axpensas of mere than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundra;smg, busmess
investment, and program service activities outsida the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000
or more? Jf *Yes,* complate Schedule F, Pants 1and IV ... . |14p X
15 Did the organization report on Part IX, celumn {A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assxstance to or for any
foreign organization? J7 *Yes,* complete Schedule F, Parts I1and V' ... e e 15 X
16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to
or for foreign individuals? Jf *Yes,” complete Schadule £, Parts 1 and IV ... iooccoevoerooseeet s emseeerer e ioraee e 16 X
17  Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expanses for professional fundraising services on Part IX,
column (A), lines 8 and 1167 Jf "Yes,* complote SCREAUIE G, PAM | ..o e 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part Vill, lines
1c and Ba? If *Yes,” complete SChedule G, PArt Il ... oot 18 X
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, fine Qa? If "Yes,”
complete Schedule G, Partill . ... .. J SRRV 19 X
20a Did the organization operate one cr more hospnal 1aczimes? I Yes complere Schedule H i | 20a X
b I "Yes” to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, o ]eow| X
) 21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
. domestic government on Part IX, colurmn (A) line 17 Jf *Yes " complete Schedula |, Parts 1and If it 21 X
832003 12:31-18 Form 980 (201g)
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Form 990 (2018) NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364

Checklist of Required Schedules yontinyed;

Did the organization repont mora than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on

PartIX, column {A), line 2? Jf *Yes," complete Schedule |, Parts fand il .. . e

Did the organizaticn answer "Yes* to Part Vil, Section A, iine 3, 4, or 5 abcut compensation of the crganization’s current

and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? Jf “Yes,” complate

Schedule J .
a Didths orgamzatxon hava a taxexempl bond issue wrth an outstandmg pnncipal amount of mora 1han 3100 000 as of the

last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 Jf "Yes," answer lines 24b through 24d and complote

Schadie K. 11 “INO," GO PO IN@ 258 ... ... ....c..ceereaeiriiee ot i i e et eee e vt e et s 60 ettt bets s s ety et e et et te et s ta e et enns
b Did the crganization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary pericd exception? .
¢ Did the organization malntain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to dnfaase

any tax-axampt bonds? | . BN RO
d Did the organization act as an *on behalf of’ SSUer for bcnds outstandmg at uny nme dunng theyear?
a Section 501{c)3), 501{c}4), and S01({c}29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefi t

transacticn with a disqualified person duning the year? jf "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part |
b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified persenin a pnor year smd

that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 380 or 990-EZ? /f *Yes, " complete

SCREAUIB L, PartT . oo i o ot e eee et et et e ev e et e 1 or £t s e e ety e e e

Did the organization report eny amount on Part X, line 5, 6, or 22 for recewables from or payables to any currenl or

former officers, directors, trusteas, key amployees, highest compensated employees, or disqualified persons? (f *Yas, "

complata SChadula L, Part Il ... . i e ettt e e s r e e a e ey i e

Did the organization provide a grant ar o(har assistence lo an officer, director, 1mstea key employee substennal

contributor or employeo thereof, a grant selection committae mambar, or ta a 35% centrolied antity or family member

of any of these persons? If *Yes,” complete Schedufe L, Part il ... e e e e

Was the organization a party to a business transection with one of the fo|lowmg parties (see Schedula L, Part IV

instructions for applicable filing mresholds conditions, and exceptions);

a8 A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? /f “Yes," complata Schedule L, Part IV

o

A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustes, or key employee? If "Yes,* complete Schedula L, p,m /v ,,,,,

. ¢ An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof) was an officer,

g8

31

35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)?

director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? Jf "Yas,” complota Schedufa L, Part IV ....................ccooievvie oo
Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? i "Yes,* completa Schedule M . ... e —————
Did the organization recaive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similer assets, or qualified conservation
contributions? jf *Yes, * complete Schedule M . . e

Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or d;sso ve and censs operatxons’i

If *Yes,” complete Schedule N, Part | . . o

Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of or trans!er morsg than 25% of us net assats? /{ “Yes,” compjg:e

Schedule N, Part il
Did the organization own 100% of an enmy dpsragarded as separate from 1he orgamzauon under Regu!atxons

sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 Jf "Yes,” complete SChEGUIE R, Part | ........c.cooomeeeecee e eeoeeicees et ee oo
Was the organization releted to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? if *Yes, " complete Schedute R Part i}, 1ll, or IV, and

Part V, lN8 T ettt e e bbb £ b e e e baaens

b If "Yas" to line 35a, did the organization receiva any payment from or engage in any transaction w:th a control!ed ontity
within the meaning of section 512(b){(13)? /f *Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . ,
Section 501{c}3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exernpt nan- chantabla re!ated orgamzatwn?
If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 ...
Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its achvmes through an antity that is not a related orgaruzatlon
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? |f "Yes,” complete Schedule B, Part Vi .. ...
Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part Vi, lines 11b and 197

Paged
Yes | No
22 X
23 | X
24a X
24b
24c
24d
253 X
25b X
26 X
28 X
28b X
28¢ X
29 X
30 X
31 X i
32 X |
33 X
34 X
35a X
35b |
38 X
37 X
ag | X

Note All Form 990 filers are required to complete Scheduls O
‘M| Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Comphance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V

1

a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1086. Enter -0-if notapplicable ... . | 1a

b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable 1b

¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reponable gaming
(gambling) winnings to prize winners?

832003 12.31-1B8
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3a

4a

Ga

Ba

[t I -

SO - o 0O

12a

13

14a

15

16

Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance r.ontinueq)

Fcrm 990 (2018) NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 Page5

Enter the number of smployees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax Statements,
filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this retum 2a

No

If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returmns?
Note. If the sum of lines Ja and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions) .
Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? e
If *Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? Jf *No" to fine 3b, provide an aexplanation in Schedule O ... ...
At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an intarest in, or a signature or other authority over, a

financiel account in e foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)?
If “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country: b
See instructions for filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR),

Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? e

Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? .
If “Yes* to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? . = .
Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are nermally greater than 5100 OOD and d;d the orgaruzm on sahcst
any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions?

I *Yes,” did the organization include with evary solicitation en express statement that such contnbunons or glfts

ware Not 1ax dedUCHDIBT . .. e et s
Organizations that may receive deductble contributions under section 170{c).

Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made parlly as 2 contribulion and partly for goods and services provided o the payor?
If "Yas," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided?

Did the orgenization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required

to file FOmm 82827 .. e
il *Yes,” indicate the number of Forms 8282 fled dunng the year I 'Id I

53 X
5h X
5c

6a X

Did the crganization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a persona benem centract?

Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? ..
If the organization received a contribution of qualified intallectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required?
If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, cr other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C?

Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the

sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time duringthe year? . . ...
Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.

Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distibutions under section 49667 ...
Did the sponsoring crganizaticn make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person?

Section 501(c}{7) organizations. Enter:

{nitiation fees and capital contributions included on Part Vill, line 12 . 102
Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIil, line 12, for public use of club facmties ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, ~ | 10b
Section 501(c)12) organizations. Enter:

Gross income from members or shareholders e o l11a
Grass incoms from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources against

amounts due or received from them.) e 11b
Section 4947(a){1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 980 in lleu of Form 10417
If *Yes," enter the amount ot tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year ..., ... .. .| 12b

Section 501(c)29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans inmore thanone state? | . . ...
Note. See the instructicns for additicnal information the organization must report on Schedule O.

Enter the amount of reserves the organizatien is required to maintain by the states in which the
organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans | 13b

Enter the amount of reserves on hand e 1L38c

Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning sarvices dunng the 1ax year? e,
it "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? if "No, " provide an explanation in Schedule O -
is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remunseration or

excess parachute payment(s) during the year?

if *Yes,” see instructions and file Form 4720, Scheduls N

is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise {ax on net investment income?
If *Yes,* complete Form 4720, Schedule O,

14a X
14b

832005 12-31-18
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ForTn 990 (2018) NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION -~ SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 Page 6
Part Vl [ Governance, Management, and DiSClOSUre ro; oach *Yes* rosponse to fines 2 through 7b below, and for a *No" response
. to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule O. See instructions.

Check if Schedule O contains a response or nota to any line in this Part V)
Section A. Governing Body and Management

1a Enter the number of voting members of the goveming body at the end of the taxyear 1a
It there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, of if the govermnu
body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar committes, explain in Schedule O.
b Enter the number of veting members inciuded in line 1a, above, who are independenmt 1b
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or kay employas have a famlly relationship or a business ra!alionsh:p with any other
officar, director, trustee, or key employea?
3 Did the organization dalegate control over management dulles customarily performed by or under the direct supervision
of officers, directors, or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person?
4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its govemning documents since the prior Form 990 was fr ad’? ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets?
6 Did the crganization have members or stockholders?
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who hnd !hu power to a!ect or appoxnt one or
more members of the goveming body? | e e 7a
b Are any govemance decisions of the orgamzauon rasarved to (or subject to approval by) mambers, stockholders, or
parsons other than the goveming BOGYT || ... it rs s ettt n e
8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the mestings held or written aclions undertaken during the year by the Io!lowmu
a The goveming body?
b Each committea with authority to act on behalf of the govemmg body?
9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part Vi, Secuon A who cannot be reached at the

OTQ._..anla“msma”‘"Qaddfess" i€ YMWWMMWMEO e - ] X
Section B, Policies s ge o o

)]

o [ (e (W

Yes | No
10a Did the organization have local chaptars, branches, or affiliates? e e et T 10a X
b ¥ "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures goveming the activities of such chapters, affiliates,
. and branches to ensura their operations are consistant with the organization's axempt purposes? ... .. ... ;

11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 820 to all members of its goveming body before filing the form?
b Describa in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
12a Did the organization have a written corflict of interest policy? Jf *No,* go to Jine 13 .
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key emplayees required to disclose annually interests that could gwe rise io cenlhcts'?
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? if *Yes, " describe
in Schedula O how this was done ... e e, L 128 X
13  Did the organization have a written whasueblower po y’? —
14 Did the organization have a written document retention and destmctlon pohcy?
15 Did the process for determining compansation of the foliowing persons include a review and npproval by independem
persons, comparabilily data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization’s CEQ, Exacutive Director, or top management official s
b Other officers or key employees of the organization
i *Yes* to line 15a or 15b, dascribe the process in Schedule O (see mslrucnons)
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a
taxable entity during the year? .
b i "Yes,* did the organization follow a wntten pohcy or procedure requiring thc orgamzatron to evaluate rts pamcipatlon
in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the orgaenization's
exempt status with respect to such arrangements? e
Section C. Disclosure
17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed b= NONE
18  Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A il applicable), 980, and 980T (Section 501(c)(3)s only) available
for public inspection. indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
|:] Own website |:] Another's website Upon request |:] Other (explain in Schedule O)
19 Describe in Schedule O whether (and if 50, how) the organization made its goveming documents, conflict of interest palicy, and financial
statements available to the public during the tax year.
20 State tha name, address, and telephone number of the person who possessas the organization's bocks and records P

MICHAEL KATIGBAK, INTERIM CFQ -~ (528)755-4500
. P.O. BOX 457, GANADO, AZ 86505
832000 12-31-10 Form 980 (2018)
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Form 930 (2018) NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364  page?
Part:Vil| Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated
Employees, and Independent Contractors
. Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Partvil e i [:]

Section A. _Officers, Directers, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

1a Complete this table for all persans required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.

® |ist all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of compensation.
Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

® |ist all of the organization's current key employees, if any. Ses instructions for definition of *key employee.*

® List the organization's five current highest compensated employeas (other than an officer, director, trustea, or key employes) who received report.
able compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1098-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.

® List all of the organization's former officers, key empioyees, and highest compensated employses who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization and any related arganizations.
® | jst all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, In tha capacity as a former director or trustee of the organization,
more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
List persens in the following order: individual trustess or directors; institutional trustees; officers; key employees; highest compansated employees;
and former such parsons.
[:] Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, diractor, or trusteo.
(A) {B) (C} D) (E) (F)
Name and Title Average | . dzgf"té‘:g‘mn - Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | bex. usless porson is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer o n dFoctorFusiss) from from related other
{iist any B the organizations compensation
hours for E . B organization (W-2/1093-MISC) fron) th,:
re!fateq g% ! g (W-2/1098-MISC) organization
arganizations| £ 3 £le and related
below HEIRL organizations
in) |E|E|E |5 |2E| &
{1} MAYBELLE KELEWOOD 2.00
BOARD TREASURER X X 34,000, 0. 0.
(2) ANDREW SIMPSON 2.00
BOARD CHAIRPERSON X X 25,750. 0. 0.
{3) LINDA S YAZZIE 2.00
. BOARD {PRIOR) X 2,250, 0. 0.
(4) STENSON WAUNEKA 2.00
PRIOR BOARD CHAIRPERSON X X 28,335, 0. 0.
(5) JOYCE MOORE 2.00
BOARD MEMBER X 5,000. 0. 0.
(6) RAY ANN TERRY 2.00
BOARD SECRETARY X X 32,500. 0. 0.
(7) VERONICA CLARKE 2.00
BOARD MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
{(8) DELORES NOBLE 2.00
BOARD MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
{9) GLENDA HILDRETH 2.00
BOARD MEMBER X 3,250, 0. 0.
(10) PATRICIA BITSUIE 2.00
BOARD MEMBER X 3,750. 0. 0.
{11) CHRISTI EL-MELIGI 40.00
CEO X 67,300. 0. 1,728.
{12) NETRISHA DALGAI 40.00
coo X 67,300. 0. 1,728.
(13} CHANNARONG JARUVANGSANTI 40.00
PHARMACIST X 177,963. 0. 496.
(14) MELANIE NEZTSOSIE 40.00
NURSE PRACTIONER X 142,993. 0. 4,287.
(15) MICHAEL NGUYEN 40.00
PHARMACIST X 141,882, 0. 1,523.
(16) PIO M SIAN 40.00
PHYSICIAN X 143,374. 0. 0.
(17) ERNASHA MCINTOSK 40.00
. NURSE PRACTIONER X 143,470, 0. 4,301.
832007 12-31-10 Form 980 (2018)
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Form 990 (2018) NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364  Page8

}| section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(A) (8) (©) ) (E) (F)
‘ Name and title Average - :hzg?f},fg‘&m one Reportable Reportable Estimated
NOUrS Per | bax, unioas porsen s bath an compensation compsansation ameunt of
week officer od p dvector rusies) from from related other
(ist any % the organizations compensation
hoursfor | & 2 organization W-2/1029-MISC} from the
relaled E £ Z (W-2/1089-MISC) organization
organizations| 2 :é‘ % |E and related
below 2|2 5 P %% z organizations
9 |E|E1E] 5 1EE 8
1b Sub-total . . . e .. » | 1,015,127, 0. 14,066.
’ ¢ Total from continuation sheets to Part Vil, SectionA P 0. 0. 0.
d_Total (add fines 1b and 1c) ... i e »| 1,019,127, 0.] 14,066.
2  Total number of individuals (including but not limited to thoss listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable
compensation from the organization P
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustea, key employes, or highest compensated employee on
line 187 Jf "Yes, " complete Scheduls J for SUCh INTIVITUR!  ......c.......ooiiiieeeeereteee e s r s er b ke
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportabla compensation and other compensation from the organization
and related organizations greater than $150,0007 if “Yes, " complete Schedule J for such individual ............_........... .
5 Did any person listed on line 1a recoive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for services .
rendered to the organization? Jf *Yes * N 5 X

Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Completa this table for your five highest compensated independant contractors that received more than $100,000 of compensation from
the organization. Report compsensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.

(A) (B) (C)
Name and business address Description of services Compensation
RAZAGHI HEALTHCARE, 7150 E. CAMELBACK RD,
SUITE 444, SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85251 PRTOR MGMT CO 15,996,804.
AB STAFFING SOLUTIONS
2680 S VAL VISTA #152, GILBERT, AZ 85297 STAFFING 1,780,661.
TITAN MEDICAL GROUP LLC, 2110 S 169TH
PLAZA, SUITE 100, OMAHA, NE 68130 STAFF ING 1,092,376,
INTEGRITY HEALTHCARE LOCUMUS, LLC
PO BOX 823424, PHILADELPHIA, PA 19182-3424 [STAFFING 861,876.
KAUTAQ CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, LLC
2120 E 6TH STREET, SUITE 2, TEMPE, AZ 85281 CONSTRUCTION 825,155,
2 Total number of independent contractors (inciuding but not limited to thosa listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of compensation from the organization B 27
. Form 990 (2018)
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NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 Page 9
Statement of Revenue

Check if S le O conta

lineinthis Part VIL .

{A) (8) {C) D)
Total ravenue Related or Unrelated Revenue excluded
exempt function businass f Orsﬁefcauxultl‘gder
revenue revenue 519.514

a Federated campaigns
b Membership dues e,
¢ Fundraisingevents = .
d
e
f

Related organizations
Government grants (contributions)
All ather contributions, gifls, grants, and
similar amounts not included above . {1f 79,488,
g Noncash convibutions includsd in ines 1a-11; §
h Total Addlines Ta-tf . . ... »

805,661,

Sk

ontributions, Gifts, Grants

and Othe

885,149,

ISDEAA REVENUE 900099 21,471,588, 21,471 588,
NET PATIENT REVENUE 900099 18,059,310, 18,059,310,
OTHER REVENUES 900099 200,472, 200,472,

Program Service

All other program sarvice revenue |
Total. Addlines2a-2f . . ..o |
3  Investment incoms (including dividends, interest, and

other similaramounts) .. P 1,553,556, 1,553,556,
q Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds |
5 Royalies ...........o.eiiii R .
| Real () Personal
Grossrents ) 217,398,

Less: rental expenses 71,216,

a
b Less: rental expenses . ..
!. ¢ Rentalincome or (loss) 146,132, s
d Netrentalincomeor{oss) ... ... P l
a Gross amount from sales of (i} Securities (i) Cther '
assets other than inventory
b Less: cost or other basis
and sales expenses
¢ Gainorfloss) . .
d Netgainor fOSS) ..o P
8 a Gross income from fundraising events (not
including $ of
contributions rsported on line 1c). See
Part IV, line 18 a

b Less:directexpenses .. ... b
¢ Net income or (loss) from fundraising events
8 a Gross income from gaming activities. See
Part iV, line19 . . ... @
b Less: direct expenses
¢ Net income or (loss) from gaming activities .. _.......... »
10 a Gross sales of inventory, less retums
andallowances ... ... @&
b Less:costofgoodssod . ... ... b
¢ _Net income or floss) from sales ofinventory ... B
Miscellanecus Revenuse

39,731,370,

o ~ o o0 T O

s ———————————— e

Other Revenue

i1

All otherrevenue
Total, Add lines 11e-11d e
. 12 Totalrevenue. Seeinstructions ... e | 42,316,257, 39,731,370, 1,699,738,
832000 12.31-10 Form 990 (2018)
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Form 930 (2018) NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 page 10
Part fatement of Functional EXpenses
Sectlon 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complste all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).
Check if Schedule O contains a response ornotetoanylineinthis Part IX o [X]
‘;’Z ';%t ggf‘;i"c’agg”:;;;pmed on lines &b, Total e(g;enses Progxr;g%:r;/icn Managég)ent and Funéralssng
1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic governments. See Part iV, line 21
2 Grants and other assistance tc domestic
individuals, See Part IV, line22
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and foreign
individuals. See Part IV, lines 15and 16
4 Benefits paid to or formembars
5 Compensation of current officers, d»rectors.
trustees, and key employees . 959,047. 485,844, 473,203.
6 Compensation not included above, to drsuualvﬂed
persons {as delined under section 4958(1)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958{c)(3)(B) .. .. f
7 Ctherselariesandwages . ... . .. ... 10,677,513. 10,371,716, 305,797. |
8 Pension plan accruals and centributions (include E
section 401(k) and 403{b) employer contributions) 158,817. 148,176. 10,641. |
9 COtheremployes benefits . 696,723. 650,043, 46,680. I
10 Payrolitaxes .. 812,396. 758,011. 54,385. |
11 Fees for services (non-employeas):
a Management 94,871. 66,410. 28,461.
b legal ... ... 707,426, 495,198. 212,228.
¢ Accounting 643,016, 450,111, 192,905,
d Lobbying :
e Proless:onauundraasmg semces See Pan !v hne 17
‘ f Investment menagementfees . ... .
g Other. (itline 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25
column (A) amaunt, list line 11g expenses on Sch 0.) 9,652,881.] 9,637,769. 15,112,
12 Advertising and promotion . . ... 34,313. 32,904. 1,409
18 Officeexpenses ... 674,332, 524,158. 150,174.
14 Information technology . . . . 168,691, 118,084. 50,607,
15 Royalties .
16 Qccupancy 517,896. 362,527. 155,369.
17 Travel L 273,774- 236,477- 37,297.
18 Payments of travel orenienasnmem expanses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19  Conferences, conventions, and meetings 183,511. 129,795, 53,716.
20 Interest 20,360. 20,360.
21 Paymentstoaffiliates .. ...
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 931,348. 791,646. 139,702.
23 Insurance 481,772- 407,935. 73,837.
24  Other expenses. {temize expenses not covumd ; :
above. (List miscellaneous expenses in line 24e. If tine | I
24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, calumn (A)
amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0.}
a SUPPLIES AND PHARMACEUT 3,569,621.] 3,485,475. 84,146.
b CONTRACT HEALTH SERVICE 3,185,392.] 3,185,392.
¢ PURCHASED SERVICES 1,705,786.] 1,465,195, 240,591.
d BAD DEBT EXPENSE 485,802, 485,802,
e All other expenses 1,220,944, 744,877. 476,067.
25  Total functional expenses. Add lines 1thiough24e | 37 ,856,232.] 35,033,545, 2,822,687. 0.
26 Joint costs. Compiete this line only if the organization
reported in column {B) joint costs trom a combined
educational campaign and fundraising solicitation.
‘ Check huvo P if following SOP §B-2 (ASC 058-720)
B32010 12-31-18 Form 980 (2018)
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Form 990 (2018) NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION -~ SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 page i
Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a response orneteto anyllineinthis Part X . oo [::]
'I" (A) (8)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash - non-interest-bearing L 1,704,428, 4 2,635,9717.
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 95,594,578.] 2 95,772 ,548.
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net 321 . 117.] a 1, 099 . 512.
4  Accounts receivable, nst 1,577,737.] & 1,153,458.
5 Loans and other receivables from cun'ent and formar ofhcers dlrectors
trustees, key employees, and highest compansated employees. Complete
PArt I Of SCOUUIB L ... ..o oeeeese oo
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified parsons {as defined under
section 4958(f)(1)), persons described In section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing
employers and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c){9) voluntary
2 employees’ beneficiary organizations (see instr). Complote Part llof Sech L | 5]
g 7 Notes and loans receivable, net 7
8 Inventories forsaleoruse e 409,338- 8 421,161.
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 519,653.] 9 550,591
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other
basis. Complete Part Vi of Schadule D 1w0al 26,742,447,
b Less: aceumuiated depreciation wp| 19,248,665, 6,059,784.] 10¢ 7,493,782.
11 Investments - publicly traded securities . 31,367,531.] 11 32,882,294.
12 Investments - other securities, See Part IV, ine11 12
13 Investments - program-related. Seg Part iV, line 11 L 13
14 Intangible assets . ... [T 14
15 Other assets. Ses Part IV, lsna11 R 2,641,283.] 15 2,778,468,
16__ Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equa al line 34) 140,195,449.]| 1| 144,787,791,
17  Accounts payable and accnied expenses 4,917,645.| 47 5,055,041.
18  Grants payable
. 19 Deferred reVeNUE | . ...
20 Taxexempt bond liabilities
21  Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D ...
«» | 22 Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees,
:_.E_- key employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified persons.
-l Complete Part i of Schedute L L 22
2 123 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated th:rd pames 300,883.] 23 221,941.
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties o 24
25 Other Habilities (including federal income tax, payables to related thnrd
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X of
Schedule D e e e e 43,634.| 25 117,497.
___ 126 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through25 ... ..o 5,262,162.] 26 5,394,479
Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958}, check here §» E{j and
v complete lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
O {27 Unrestricted netassets ... 133,219,848, 27| 137,629,755.
& 128 Temporarily restricted net essets 1,111,532.] 28 1,161,648.
3 29 Permanently restricted nat assats 601,507.] 20 601,909.
5 Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here B[]
5 and complete lines 30 through 34. _
% 30 Capital stock or trust principal, orcurrentfunds 30
ﬁ 31 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund 31
o 132 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated incoms, or other funds . 32
Z |33 Totalnetassets orfund balances 134,933,287.| 33| 139,353,312,
34 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances 140,195,449.]) 34| 144,787,781.
Form 990 2018)
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Form 930 (2018} ) NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 pagei2
Reconciliation of Net Assets

. Check if Schedule O contains o response ornotetoenylineinthisPart Xl i eriii [:]
1 Total revenus (must equal Part VIlI, column (A), line 12) 1 42,316,257.
2 Total expensas (must equal Part 1X, column (A), line 25) 2 37,856,232.
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from ling 1 3 4 P 460 . 025.
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal F'nn X line 33 column (A)) 4 134,933,287,
5 Nel unrealized gains (losses) cn investments 5
6 Donated services and use of facilities ] ;
T OINVBSIMENL GXPONSOE | e e st 7
8 Prior pericd adjustments 8
9 (Other changes in net assets or fund balances (axp!am in Schedule O) ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, g 0.

10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, fine 33
column (8 10 139,393,312,
“Part XII| Financial Statements and Reportmg
Check if Schedule O containg a rasponse or noteto any line inthis Part XIL it ae iz eeieereas s . DT{__I

Yes | No

1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: D Cash Accrual D Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked *Other," explain in Schedule O.

2a Woere the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? .
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financia! statements for the year were compiled or revnewed ona
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
D Separate basis D Consolidated basis |:] Bath consolidated and separate basis

b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant?

if *Yes,” check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for i\he year were audned cna separate basis
consofidated basls, or both;

@ Separate basis D Consolidated basis |:] Both consolidated and separate basis
¢ If "Yes* to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumass respensibility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compllation of its financial statements and selection of an indapendent accountant? o
. It the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in Schedule 0‘
3a As araesult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the Single Audit
Actand OMB Circular A9337 . |8l X
b if *Yes,* did the organization undargo 1he requ!red audit or audrts? if the organtzatxon did not undergo the required audn
or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits . AT . 3b | X
Form 980 (2018)
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SCHEDULEA . . . OM8 No. 1645-0047
Public Charity Status and Public Support
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) . T . - .
Complete if the organization is a section 501{c}{3) organization or a section 20 1 8
4947(a) 1) nonexempt charitable trust. )
Dsportiment of th Treasusy P> Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.
internal Revorsi Servico P Go to www.irs.gov/Form@90 for instructions and the latest information. . .
Name of the organization Employer identification number
NAVAJO HEALTH FQUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364

Reason for Public Charity Status (all organizations must complate this part.) Ses instructions.

The organization is not a privata foundation because it is: (For lings 1 through 12, check only one box.)

1 [_] Achurch, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170{bY1)(AKi).

2 L__] A sthool described in section 170{b}{ 1}ANii). {(Attach Schedule E (Form 890 or 830-E7).)

3 A hospital or a caoperative hospital service organization described in section 170{bX1XAXiii).

4 [:] A medical research crganization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170{bY1}¥AKiii). Enter the hospital's name,
city, and state;
An organization operated for lhe benafit of a college cr universily owned or operaled by a govemmenta! unit described in

section 170{b} 1{A)iv). {Complete Parl II.)
A federal, state, or local government or govaernmental unit described in section 170{bX 1{A}v).
An crganization that normally receives a substantiai part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described in
section 170{b} 1{AXvi}. (Complete Part I1.)
A commuriity trust described in section 170(bY 1I{A}vi). (Complete Part I1.)
An agricultural research organization described in section 170{b}1XAXix) operated in conjunction with a Jand-grant college
or university or a non-and-grant college of agriculture (ses instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the collega or
university:
An crganization that normally receives: (1) mora than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts from
activities related to its exampt functions - subjact to certain exceptions, and (2) no mora than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investmant
incoms and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businessas acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975,
See section 509(aj2). (Complete Part ill.)
1 [:] An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 508{a){4).
12 [:] An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, te perform the functions of, or to carry cut the purposes of one or
more publicly supported organizations described in section 509{a) 1) or section 509(a)2). Sea section 509(a)¥3). Check the box in
. lines 12a through 12d that describes ths type of supporting organization and complete lines 12a, 121, and 12g.
a [:] Type 1. A supporting orgenization operatad, supervised, or conlrofled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power 1o regularly appoint or elact a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting
organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.
b [:] Type il. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in cannection with its supported organizatian(s), by having
contro! or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.
c [:] Type {il functionally integrated. A supporting organization oparated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.
d [:] Type lll non-functionally integrated, A supporting organization operated in connection with its supportad organization(s)
that is not functionally intagrated. The crganization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part JV, Sections A and D, and Part V.
e [_] Check this box if the crganization received a written determination from the IRS that it Is a Type |, Type II, Type Iif
functionally integrated, or Typa #}l non-functionally integrated supporting organization.
f Enter the number of supported organizations | |

g _Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).
{}) Nema of supported {li) EIN (i) Type of organization
organization (described on finas 1-10

sbova {see instructions)) Yes

0 00 0o o

10

(%) 15 U8 DIgRlakon BELES
s S.sw: e bameny {v} Amount of monotary {vi}) Amount of othor

No support (soo instructions) | suppoer {see instructions}

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or $90-EZ. sizoz1 11118 Schedule A {Form 990 mgz?j%-EZ) 2018
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Sd\gdulo A (Form 990 or 980-

2018 NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 paga2
Organizations Described in Sections 170{b)(1){A)Iv) and 170(B)0 (A}

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or B of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part i1, If the organization

fails to quelify under the tests listed below, please complete Part [il.)

Section A. Public Support

(b} 2015 {c} 2016 {d} 2017 (e} 2018

Calendar year {or fisgal year beginning in) B> {a) 2014

{f) Total

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.®)

2 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization’s benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

4 Total, Add lines 1 threugh3

5 The portion of total contributions
by each person {other than &
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included
on line 1 that exceads 2% of the
amount shown on line 11,
column (i)

Public support. Subtsctios 5 bomtined,

Sectmn B. Total Support

(b} 2015 {c} 2016 {d) 2017 {e) 2018

{f Total

Calendar year {or fiscal year beginning in) b {8} 2014
7 Amounts from lined4

B Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securilies loans, rants, royalties,
and income from similor sources

9 Net income from unrelated business
aclivities, whether or not tha
business is regularly carried on

10 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capilal
assets (Expleinin Part VL) ...

11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10

L2

12 Gross raceipts from related activities, etc, (see instructions) .
13 First five years. if tho Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth or fifth tax year as a sectnon 501(c)(3)

organization, check this box and stop here
Bection C. Computation of Fuﬁ(iaic §upport Percentage

14 Public support percentage for 2018 (line 6, column (i) divided by line 11, column{f)y ... .. .. ... 14

15 Public support parcentage from 2017 Schedule A, Part i, line 14 15

16a 33 1/3% support test - 2018, If the orgonization did not check the box on llna 13 and Ilne 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box and
stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization
b 33 1/3% support test - 2017. If the organization did not check a box an fine 13 or 16a and hne 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization
17a 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2018.
and if the organization meets the *facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the organization
meets the “facts-and-circumstances® test. The organization quaslifies as a publicly supparted crganization
b 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2017, If the organization did not check a box on fina 13, 18a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15is 10% or
more, and if the organization meets the *facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the
organization meets the *facts-and-circumstances” test. The organization gualifies as a publicly suppecrted organization .
18 Private foundation. |f the organization did not check a box on line 13, 18a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see inslructlons

If the orgenization did not check o box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 10% or mare,

>
]

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 980-E7) 2018 NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 Page 3
Organizations Described i Section 509(aj(2)

{Compilste only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part { or if the organization falled to qualify under Part Il. If the organization fails to
. ualify under the tests listed below, please complste Part il.)
Section A. Public Support
Galendar year {or fiscal year beginning in) > {a) 2014 {b} 2015 {c} 2016 {d} 2017 {e) 2018 {f} Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any ‘unusual grants.”)

2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services par
formed, or facilities fumished in
any activity that is releted to the
organization's tax-exempl purpose

3 Gross recoipts from activities that
are not an unrelated trade or bus-

iness under section 518

4 Tax revenues levied for the organ
ization's benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

6 Total. Add lines 1 through5

7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and
3 received from disqualified persons

b Amounts inchided on kines 2 and 3 received
kem cthor than disqualified persons that
excoed the greatos of $5,000 or 135 of the
ameunt 2n Ene 13 for tha yoar

cAddlines7aand7b

. Section B. Total Support
Calendar year {or figcal year beginning in) B> {a} 2014 {b) 2015 {c] 2016 {d) 2017 {e} 2018 (f} Total
9 Amountsfromiine & . .
10a Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and inceme from similar sources
b Unrefaled business taxable income
(less section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975

c Add lines 10aand 10b
11 Net income from unrelated busmass
activities not included in line 10b,
whether or not the business is

regularly carriedon . ..
12 Ctherincome. Do not include gam

or loss from tha sale of capital

assets (Explain in Part V1) ...
13 Total support. (Add sines 9, 10c, 11,and 12}

14 First five years. If the Form 890 is lor the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) organization,

Check this DOX 8NG 10D I o o s ieiiiiiieii hiiiiiieniiieiiiis e | [:]
Section C. Computation of Pubhc Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2018 (line B, column (f), divided by lina 13, column () T I i) %
16 Public support percentage from 2017 Schedule A Partlib line 15 . ST 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2018 (line 10c, column {f), divided by fine 13, column {f)) .. . .. .. . . 17 %
18 Investment income percantage from 2017 Schedule A, Part Il ine 17 18 %

19a 33 1/3% support tests - 2018. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 is not

more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ... . ... .. - g E’
b 33 /3% support tests - 2017. [ the organization did not check & box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualiliss as a publicly supported corganization - g E]
. 20_Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions ... B 1
832023 10-11-18 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 890-£7) 2018 NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 Pages

Supporting Organizations

(Compilete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part |. If you checked 12a of Part |, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked 12b of Part |, complete Sections A and C., If you checked 12c¢ of Part I, complete
Sections A, D, and E. I you checked 12d of Part |. complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)

Section A. All Supporting Organizations

3a

4a

5a

9a

832024 10-1110

12160813 132842 54144.0002

Are all of the organization’s supported crganizations listed by name in the organization’s governing
decuments? 17 *No," describe in Part V] how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation, If historic and continuing relationship, explain.

Did the organization have any supported organizalicn that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 508(a)(1) or (2)? If *Yes,” explaln in Part Vi how the organization determined that the supported
organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2).

Did the organization have a supported organization described in soction 501(c){4), (5), or (6)? If "Yes," answer
(b) and (c) below.

Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(), (5), or (€) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 50a)2)? /f *Yes,* describe in Part Vi when and how the
organization made the determination.

Did the organization ensure that all suppoert 1o such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2}(B)
purposes? /f "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use.

Was any supported organization not organized in the United States {*foreign supported organization®)? /f
*Yos," and if you chacked 12a or 12b in Part |, answer (b) and (c) below.

Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supportad organization? j7 *Yas,” describa in Part ¥l how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connoction with its supported organizations.

Did the crganization support any faraign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 50Ha)(1) or (2}? Jf *Yes,* explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all suppor to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170{ci2)(B)
PUIPOSOS.

Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? /ff "Yes,”
answer (b) and (c) below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part V), including (7} the names and EIN
numbars of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ij) the reasons for each such action,
(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (jv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).

Type 1 or Type Il only. Was any added cr substituted supported organization part of a class already
designated in the organization's organizing decurment?

Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event bayond the organization’s controf?

Did the organization provide suppart (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than () its supported organizations, (i)} individuals that are pant of the charitable class

benefited by one or mare of its supported organizations, or (i) other supparting organizations that also
support or bensfit ons or more of the filing crganization’s supported organizations? 7 *Yas, " provide detail in
Part V1.

Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4858(c)(3)(C)), a femily member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with
regard to a substantial contributor? jf "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L {Form 990 or 990-E2).

Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 77
If “Yes," complete Fart i of Schedule L (Form $90 or S90-EZ).

Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons as defined in section 4346 (other than foundation managers and organizations described
in section 509(a)(1) or 2))? /f *Yes, " provide detail in Part VI,

Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which
the supporting organization had an interest? Jf *Yes," provide detail in Part Vi

Did a disqualified person (as dafined in line 9a) have an cwnership interest in, or derive any personal benefit
from, assets in which the supporting organization alsc had an interest? /f “Yes," provide detail in Part Vi,
Was the organization subject to ths excess business holdings nules of section 4843 becausa of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type |l supporting organizations, and all Type lil non-functionally integrated
supporting organizations)? f *Yes, " answer 10b below.

Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to

izati i ings.)

16
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| Supporting Organizations wontinued)

&

Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a Aperson who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (b) and (c}

bealow, ithe govermning body of a supported organization? 11a
b A family member of a person described in (a) above? ib
c__A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (2) or (b) above? if *Yes” to a. b, or ¢, provide defail in Part V1. 1ic

Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

1 Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to
reguiarly appoint or elect at least a majerity of the crganization’s directcrs or trustess at all times during the
tax year? i "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or
controlled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported organization,
describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove directors or trustees were allocated among the supporied
organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year.

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supporied organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? jf "Yes," expfain in
Part VI how providing such benslit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,

ion,

sed P E .
Section C. Type |l Supporting Organizations

1 Were a majority of the organization's direciors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization's supported organization(s)? If "No, * describe in Part VI how controf
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed

ization{sl

——the supported organizal
Section D. All Type {ll Supporting Organizations

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization’s tax year, (i) a written notica describing the typs and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 890 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (i} copies of the
organization’s governing documents in effect on the dete of notification, 1o the extent not previcusly provided?

2  Waere any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trusteas elther () appointed or slected by the supportad
organization(s) or {ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? f "No,* explain in Part VI how
the organizatlon maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s).

3 By reason of the relaticnship described in {2}, did the crganization's supported organizations have a
significant voice in the organization’s investment policias and in directing the use of the organization’s
income or assets at all times during the tax year? /f "Yes,* describe in Part V1 the role the organization's

o o .
Section E. Type lll Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations

1
a
b

Check the box next to the method thal the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).
D The organization salisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.
D The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Compfete line 3 below.

¢ [_] The organization supported a govermental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supparted a government entity (see instructions)
2 Activities Test. Answer (a) and (b) below.

a Did substantially all of the organization’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
tha supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? /f "Yes,* then in Part Vi identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined

that theso activities constituted substantially all of its activities.
b Did the activities described in (a) constitute activities that, but for the organization’s involvement, one or more

of the organization’s supported organization{s) would have been engaged in? /f *Yas," explain in PartVl the
reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization{s) would have engaged in these
activities but for the organization’s involvemnent.
3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer (a) and (b) beiow.
a Did the organization hava the power to regularly appoint or elect a majerity of the officers, directors, or
trustees of each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Part V1.
' b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, end activities of each

of its supported organizations? if "Yeg,  describe in Part VI the role piaved by the organization in this regard.
Schedule A {Form 990 or $50-EZ) 2018
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 980-£7) 2018 NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION ~ SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 Pages
| _Type Ill Non-Functionally integrated 509(a){3) Supporting Organizations

1 [:] Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI.) See instructions. All
. other Type Hll nonfunctionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A - Adjusted Net Income {A) Prior Year ® Eil.’;rtrizr;ta;)fear

1__Net shortterm capital gain
Recoveries of prior-year distributions

2

3 Other gross income {see instructions)
4 Addlines 1 through 3
5
6

[H RSN (A | S BEN

Depreciation and depletion
Potrtion of operating expenses paid or incurred for preduction or
collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or
maintenance of property held for production of income (see instructions)
7 __ Other expenses {see instructions)
8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from linge 4) 8

iz

-

Ci t
Section B - Minimum Asset Amount (A) Prior Year ®) (O\;r;rizr:m;ear

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (sea

instructions for short tax year or assets hald for par of year):
a__Average monthly value of securities
b Average monthly cash balances
¢_Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets
d Total (add lines 1a. 1b, and 1c)
e Discount claimed for biockage or other
factors {explain in detail in Part Vi):
2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use { 2
3 Subtract line 2 from line 1d 3
4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 {for greater amount,
see instructions) 4
. 5 Net value of non-exempt-usa assets {subtract line 4 from line 3) 5
6 Multiply line 5 by .035 6
7 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 7
8 Minimum Asset Amount (add lina 7 to line 6} 8
Section C - Distributable Amount Current Year
1 Adjusted net income for prior year {from Section A line 8, Column A) 1
2 Enter 85% of line 1 2
3 Minimum assat amount for prior year {(from Section B, line 8, Column A) 3
4 Enter greaterofline2 orline 3 4
§ Income tax imposed in prior year 5
6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions) [+]
7 D Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type [l supporting organization (see
instructions).
Schedule A {Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018
. 832026 10-11-18
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Schedule A {Form 990 or 990-€7) 2018 NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 Paga7

Type 1l Non-Functionally Integrated 508(a}(3) Supporting Organizations ontinued)

Current Year

. Sectmn D - Distributions
k|

Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes

2

Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported

organizations, in excess of income from activity

Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations

Ampunts paid 10 acquire exempl-use assels

Qualified set-aside amounts {prior IRS approval required)

Other distributions {describe in Part VI). Ses instructions,

@ {0 K | [t

Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6.

Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive

{provide details in Part Vi). Ses instructions.

Distributable amount for 2018 from Section C, line 6

10

Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount

Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions)

(i)

Excess Distributions

(i) (i)
Underdistributions
Pre-2018

Distributable
Amount for 2018

1__Distributable amount for 2018 from Section C, line 6

2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2018 (reason-
able cause required- explain in Part Vi). See instructions.

3 Excess distributions carrvover, if any, to 2018

a_ From 2013
b _From 2014
¢ From 2015
d _From 2016
e From 2017
1 Total of lines 3athrough e
q Applied to underdistributions of prior years
h Applied 1o 2018 distributable amount
. i Carryover from 2013 not applied {see instructions)
i Remainder. Subtract lines 3g. 3h, and 8i from 3f.

4 Distributions for 2018 from Section D,

ling 7: 3
a_Applied to underdistributions of prior years
b _Applied 1o 2018 distributable amount
¢ _Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4.

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2018, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater
than zero, explain in Part V1. See instructions.

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2018. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For resuit greater than zero, explain in
Part Vi. See instructions.

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2019, Add lines 3j
and 4c.

8 Breakdownolline 7:

a Excess from 2014
b _Excess from 2015
¢ _Excess from 2016
d_Excess from 2017
e Excess from 2018

832027 10-1%-16
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Schedule A (Form 920 or 990-E) 2018 NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 pages
Supplemental Information. provide the explanations required by Part #, line 10; Part II, lina 17a or 17b; Part Iil, line 12;

Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9¢, 11a, 11b, and 11¢; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C,
. ling 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b, 3a, and 3b; Part V, lina 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V,

Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also comgplete this part for any additional information.
{See instructions.)

832028 10-11-18 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018
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Schedule B Schedule of Contributors OMB No, 15450047

{(Form 980, 990-EZ, P> Attach to Form 890, Form $90-EZ, or Form 990-PF. 2 0 1 8

m‘:‘?m Troasiry P> Go to www.irs.gov/Formg90 for the Iatest information.

intarnat Revenue Servico
Name of the organization Emplover identification number

NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364
Organization type (check one):

Filers of: Section:

Form 980 or 990-EZ 501(c) 3 ) (enter number) organization
] 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable tnist not treated as a private foundation
D 527 political organization

Form 980-PF (] 501(c)(3) exempt private foundation
[:] 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation

(1 s01 {c){3) taxabia private foundation

Check il your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule.
Note: Only a section 501(c)(7). {8), or (10) organization can check boxes for both tha General Rule and a Special Rule. See instructions.

General Rule

For an organization filing Form 980, 980-EZ, or 990-PF that recaived, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000 or more (in money or
proparty) from any ona contributor, Complate Parts | and }l. See instructions for detarmining a contributor's total contributions.

Special Rules

(] Foran organization described in section 501(c)3) filing Form 930 or 890-EZ that met the 33 1/3% support test of tha regulations under
sections 509(a)(1) and 170(B)(1)(AXvi), that checked Schedule A (Form 890 or 980-E2), Part I, line 13, 16a, or 16b, and that received from
any one contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of {1) $5,000; or {2) 2% of the amount on () Form 980, Part Vi, tine 1h;
or (i) Form 920-EZ, lins 1. Complete Parts | and Jl.

[:] For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 980 or 80-EZ that received from any ona contributor, during the
year, total contributions of more than $1,000 excfusiveiy for religious, charitable, scientific, literary, or aducational purposes, or for the
prevention of cruelty to children or animals, Complete Parts | (entering "N/A” in column (b) instead of the contributor name and address),
1, and |11,

D For an organization describad in section 501{c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 980 or 390-EZ that received from any ons contributor, during the
year, contributions exclusively for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such contributions totaled more than $1,000. If this box
is checked, enter here the total contributions that ware recaived during the year for an exciusively religicus, charitable, etc.,
purpose. Don't complete any of the parts unless the General Rule applies to this organization because it received nonexclusively
raligious, charitable, etc., contributions totaling $5,000 or more during theyear P 3

Caution: An organization that isnt covared by the General Rule and/or the Spacial Rules doesn't file Schedule B (Form 990, 980-EZ, or S30-PF),
but it must answer "No* on Part iV, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line H of its Form 920-EZ or on its Form 990-PF, Part |, line 2, to
certify that it doasn’t meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 830, 990-EZ, or 980-PF).

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, goo tho instructions for Form 920, 990-EZ, or 890-PF. Schedule B {(Form 880, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) {2018}
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Schedule B {(Form 990, 990-EZ, or 980-PF) (2018) Page 2
Nama of crganization Employer identification number

. NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORTAL 23-7314364

Contributors (see instructions), Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional space is neaded.

(a) {b) (c) (d)

No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
1 | EQUIVALENT TRUST Person
Payroll ]
7700 FORSYTH BLVD SUITE 1100 STREET 8 15,288. Noncash [ ]
{Complete Part Hl for
ST. LOUIS, MO 63105 noncash cantributions.)
(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
Person |:]
Payroll 1
3 Noncash [_]

{Complete Part il for
noncash contributions.)

{a) (b) (c) (d}
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution

Person |:]
Payrofi ]
$ Noncash [ ]

. {Complete Part |} for
noncash contributions.)

(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution

Person |:]
Payroll 1
[ Noncash [ |

(Comptete Part ii for
noncash contributions.)

{a) {b) (e} (d}

No. Wame, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
Person ]
Payroll l:l
3 Noncash [ |

{Complete Part {| for
noncash contributions.)

(a) ib) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
Person |:]
Payrol 1
$ Noncash [ ]
{Complete Part Il for
. noncash contributions.)
623452 13-08-18 Sehedulo B (Form £90, 090-EZ, or 990-PF) {2018)
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Scheduis B (Form 890, 990-EZ, or 980-PF) (2018) Page 3
Name of organization Employer identification number

23-7314364

. NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION -~ SAGE MEMORIAL

Noncash Property (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part Il if additional space is neaded.

a)
lflo. (b) © (d)

L . FMV {or estimate) R
from Description of noncash property given (See instructions.) Date received
Part | -

(a)
(c)
No. e b) . FMV {or estimate) (d) N
from Description of noncash property given (See instructions.) Date received
Parti .
(a)
(¢}
:0:1 D R ' (o) h . FMV (or estimate) Dat (d wed
. escription of noncash property given (See instructions.) ate receive
art |
(a)
(c}
:0?1.1 L (b) h ) FMV (or estimate) Dat (@ wed
Description of noncash property given (See instructions.) ate receiv
Parti
(2)
{c)
:0:1 D ot ' (b) h . FMV (or estimate) Dat :d) wved
escription of noncash property given (See instructions.) ate receive
Part !
(a)
(c)
No. . (b FMV (or estimate) (d) .
from Description of noncash property given (See instructions.) Date received
Part | .

823451 110816

12160813 132842 54144.0002
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Schedule B (Form 930, 890-EZ, or 880-PF) {(2018) Page 4
Employer identification number

Name of organization

. NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION -~ SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364
rar Exclusively religlous, charitable, ste., contributions to organizations described in section 501{c)7), {8}, or {10} that total more than $1,000 for the year

fram any one centributor. Complote columns {a) through {e) and tha follvwing lina entry. For organizations
comploting Part 1, entar the fota! of oxclusively religious, charilabts, ste., cantribions of $9,000 or fess for tho yaar. {Enter this info. oree ) | &3

Use duplicate copies of Part lll if additional space is nesded.

(d) Description of how gift is held

{a} No.
g:r';‘l {b) Purpose of gift (¢} Use of gift
{e) Transfer of gift
Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
{a) No.
‘f’faorT‘ (b) Purpose of gift {c) Use of gift {d) Description of how gift is heid
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
{a) No.
g:r‘t“l (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift {d) Description of how gift is held
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of fransferor to transferee
(a) No.
g:rT. (b} Purpose of gift {c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gitt is heid
{e) Transfer of gift
Transferee's name, address and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
823454 11.00-18 Schodulo B {Form 990, 830-EZ, or 880-PF) (2018)
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SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements e 1500
(Form 990) P Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, 20 1 8
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8,9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b. ’
. Dopartmant of tha Traasury P Attach to Form 930. bl
Internal Rovonus Servics P-Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. ¢ :
Name of the organization Employer identification number
NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364

Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete if the
organization answered “Yes* on Form 880, Part iV, line 6.

{a) Donor advised funds {b) Funds and other accounts

1 Totalnumberatendofyear
2 Aggregate value of contributions to (dunng year) ...
3 Aggregate value of grants from (during yeat)
4 Aggrogate vaiue at end of year
5 Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds

are the organization's property, subject to the organization’s exclusive legal control? . .. . .. ... |:] Yes |:] No
6 Did the organization inform all granteas, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only

{for chantable purposes and not for the beneflit of the donor or donor adviser, or for any other purpose conferring
|mpermxsslble private benefit? ... . [:I Yes D No
1l | Conservation Easements. Comp!ete lf the organ zatlon answered 'Yes on Form 990 Pan v, hne 7
1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization {check all that apply).

|:] Preservation of land for public use (e.g., recreation or education) |:] Preservaticn of a historically important land area

|:] Protection of natural habitat |:] Preservation of a certified historic structure

|:] Preservation of open space
2 Complets ines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation sasament on the last
Held at the End of the Tax Year

day of the tax year.
Total number of conservation easements
Total acreage restricted by conservation easements
Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in(®) ... .
Number of consarvation easements included in (c) acquired after 7/25/06, and not on a historic structure
listed in the National Register = 2d
. 3 Number of conservation easements modlfed tmnsferred released ex‘nngutshed or termmated by lhe crgamzahon during the tax
year p-

4 Number of states where property subject to conservation easemant is located p-

5 Does tho organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of

oo oo

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? . . .. I |:] Yes |:] No
& Staff and voluntaer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of viclations, and enforcing conservation easaments during the yaar

| S —
7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

» s

8 Does sach conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requiremants of section 170(h){4)(8)()
and section T70MNNBIIN? ... L lves [ Ino
9 In Pan XIil, describa how the organization repons conservation easements in its revenue and expense stalement, and balance sheet, and
includa, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the orgeanization's financial statements that describes the organization’s accounting for

consaryation easements.
‘Partill| Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Compilete if the organization answered *Yas" on Form 880, Part IV, iine 8.
1a If the organization elected, es permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheat works of art,
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or rasaarch in furtherance of public service, provide, in Part Xiil,
the taxt of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.
b Ifthe crganization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 {ASC 958), to report in its roevenue statement and balance sheet works of art, historical
treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public sarvice, provide the following amounts

relating to these items:
(i) Revenusincluded on Form 990, PantVill,ling1 . ... »s
(i) Assetsincluded in Form 990, PartX T
2 If the organization received or held works of ant, hrstoncal treasures. or other sm;lnr asse:s for financial gain, provide
the following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 {ASC 958) relating to these items:
a Revenue inciuded on Form 890, Part VIH, line 1 P s
. b Assets includad in Form 990, Part X P 3

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 930. Schedule D (Form 990} 2018
832051 10-20-18
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Schadu\e D {Form 990) 2018 NAVAJO BEALTH FOUNDATION -~ SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 p age 2
Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets onimi00)

Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other recards, check any of the following that are & significant use of its collection items

{check all that apply):
a [:] Public exhibition d [:] Loan or exchange programs
b [] Scholary research e [:] Cther
c Preservation for future generations
4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpaosa in Part Xlil.
5 During the year, did the organization salicit or receive donatlons of art, historical treasures, or cther similar assats

to be sold to raise funds rather than to ba maintained as part of the organization’s collection? i [:] Yes

Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered *Yes® on Form 980, Pan IV, line 8, or
reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21,

DNO

1a s the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or ather assets not included
an Form 990, Part X7?
b H *Yes,” explain the amangsment in Part Xll} and complsts the following table:

c
d
e
f
23
b

DNO

Beginning balance SOOI PO . 1c
Additions during the year
Distributions during the year . o
Ending balance | 1f
Did the orgamzat;on |nclude an amount on Form 990 Part X llne 21 for escrow ar custod;a! account Imbmty?
|f *Yes,* explain the arangement in Part Xl Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part Xl
Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered "Yes® on Form 890, Part IV, line 10.
{b) Prior year {e) Two years back | (d) Three vears back
803,062, 792,938, 769,772,

{e} Four years back
767,958,

{a} Current year
809,175,

q1a Beginning of year balance
Contributions ... ...
Net investment earnings, gnins and lossas
Grants or scholarships ...
Cther expanditures for {acilities
and programs
Administrative expensas
End of year balance 836,672,
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current yaar end balance {line 1g, col
a Board designated or quasi-endowment B> %
b Permanant endowment B 72.00 %
¢ Temporarily restricted endowment 3 28,00 %
Tha percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢ should equal 100%46.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the organization
by: Yes
| 3ali)
3alii)
3b

27,497, 6,113, 10,124, 23,166, 1,814,

oo 00T

0w -

809,175. 769,772,

fumn {a)) held as;

803,062, 792,938,

{i) unrelated organizations
{ii) related orgenizations
b f "Yes" an line 3a(i), are the related orgamzat:ons listed as required on Schedu!e R? .
4 Descrbe in Part Xill the intended uses of the crganization’s endowment funds.
‘Part V! | Land, Buildings, and Equipment.
Compiete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 980, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 980, Part X, line 1Q.

ez

Deascription of property {a) Cost or other {b) Cost or other {c) Accumulated {d} Book value
basis (investment) basis (other) dapreciation
1a Land 26,000. 26,000.
b Buildings 14,887,142.] 9,550,872.1 5,286,270.
¢ Leasehold improvements
d Equipment 11,829,305.] 9,657,793.] 2,171,512.
e Other _ .
Total. Add lines 1a through 1o, chmmn @ must m“ag Form 890, Part X_column (Bl jine 10¢.) ———eo | 7,493,782,
Schedule D (Form 990) 2018
. 832052 10.20-18
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Schedule D {Form 990) 2018 NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION -~ SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 page3
Part Investments - Other Securities.

. Complete if the organizaﬂoh answered "Yes" on Form 890, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 980, Part X, line 12,

{a) Description of security or cateqory (including name of secunity) {b) Bock value {c) Msthod of valuation: Cost or and-of-year market value

R —

{2) Closely-held equity interasts

{3) Cther
A)
{8)

<

Comp!ela if the organization answered *Yes* on Form 890, Part IV, line 11¢. See Form 980, Part X, line 13.
{a) Description of invastmant {b} Book value {c} Method of valuation: Cost or and-of-year market velue

Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 13.) B>
| Other Assets.
Compilete if the organization answered "Yes® on Form 980, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(a} Description {b) Book value

eq o2 15) >
Other Ltabllmes
Complete if the organization answered "Yes* on Form 820, Parl IV, line 11e or 11{. See Form 880, Part X, line 25.
1. {a) Description of liability {b) Book value
{1) Federal income taxes
{2y HOUSING DEPOSITS 21,697.
3 OTHER LIABILITIES 95,800.
C)]
(5)
(6)
@
8)
9
Total. (Column (b} must equal Form 990. Part X, col (Bl line 25) .. B 117,497,

2, Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part Xlli, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the
organization's liability for uncertain 1ax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740). Check hera if the text of the footnote has bean provided in Part Xill
. Schedule D (Form 990) 2018

832053 1D-20-16
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Schedute D {Form 990) 2018 NAVAJQ HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL,  23-7314364 pPage4d
Pa Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.

Complate if the organization answered "Yes® on Form 880, Part IV, line 12a.
‘ 1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements
Amecunts included on {ine 1 but not on Form 990, Part Vill, line 12:
a Net unrealized geins (losses) on investments

b Donated services and use of facilities
¢ Recoveries of prior year grants
d
e

140,324,914,

Other (Describe in Part XIlL.)
Add lines 2a threugh 2d
3 Subtract line 2e fromline1
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Pan Vlll hne 12 but not on hne 1
a Investment expenses not included on Form 930, Pert Vill, line 7b
b Other (Describe in Part XHL)
¢ Add lines 4a end 4b

-414,587.
40,739,501.

1,576,756.
42,316,257.

. Comp!ete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 880, Part IV, ling 12a.

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 37,441,646,
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:
Donated services and use of facilities
Prior yoar adjustments.

a
¢ Otherlosses . ...
d
e

Other (Describe in Part X!i1.)
Add lines 2athrough2d
3 Subtractline 2e fromline1
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Pan iX ina 25 bul not on lme 1
a Investment expansas not included on Form 990, Part Vil line7b . . . . .. 4a
b Cther(Describein Part XHLY . s 4b
¢ AJGIiNes4aand 4D e 414,586.
5 Total expenses, Add lines 3 and 4c¢. T S T 37,856,232.
‘Part Xlll} Supplemental Information.
Provide tha descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part ill, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 2; Part Xi,
lines 2d and 4b; and Part Xil, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

0.
37,441,646,

PART III, LINE 4:

HUBBELL'S TRADING POST MANAGES ALL COLLECTIONS, OBJECTS AND ARTIFACTS IN

ACCORDANCE WITH PROPER MUSEUM STANDARDS AND CONDITIONS.

PART V, LINE 4:

THE ENDOWMENT CONSISTS OF SCANDLING MEMORIAL SCHOLARSHIP FUNDS ESTABLISHED

TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL SCHOLARSHTIP OPPORTUNITIES FOR FULL-TIME NAVAJO

COLLEGE STUDENTS IN THE FIELD QOF NURSING.

PART X, LINE 2:

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOOTNOTE 1 PAGE 15 - THE HOSPITAL BELIEVES THAT IT IS

. IN SUBSTANTIAL COMPLIANCE WITH ALL IRS TAX REGULATIONS AS OF SEPTEMBER 30,
832054 10-29.18 Schedule D (Form 890) 2018
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Schedule D (Form 890) 2018 NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 pages
Yart XIlT| Ssupplemental Information onrinueq)

. 2019, AND THEREFORE HAS NOT RECORDED ANY UNRECOGNIZED TAX BENEFIT OR

LIABILITIES FOR INCOME TAXES. 1IN THE 2017 FORM 990 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR

ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018, THE HOSPITAL DISCLOSED AN EXCESS BENEFIT

TRANSACTION THAT IS ALSO THE SUBJECT OF ONGOING LITIGATION ALLEGING FRAUD,

RACKETEERING, CONSPIRACY AND UNLAWFUL TAKRKING OF $10.8 MILLION AS DESCRIBED

MORE THOROUGHLY IN SCHEDULE O TQO THE 2017 FORM 990. THE $10.8M IS

INCLUDED IN THE $15,996,804 LISTED ON 2018 FORM 990 PART VII PAGE 8

SECTION B AS THIS AMOUNT IS BASED ON THE CALENDAR YEAR FORMS 1099 FOR 2018

AND NOT THE FISCAL YEAR. THE AMOUNTS WERE ALI, PAID IN THE PRIOR FISCAL

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018.

PART XI, LINE 2D - OTHER ADJUSTMENTS:

BAD DEBT EXPENSE CLASSIFIED AS REDUCTION OF INCOME ON

FINANCIAL STATEMENT ~-485,802,
. RENTAL EXPENSE REPORTED AS EXPENSE ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT 71,216.
ROUNDING DIFFERENCES -1,
TOTAL TO SCHEDULE D, PART XI, LINE 2D -414,587. j

PART XI, LINE 4B -~ OTHER ADJUSTMENTS:

INVESTMENT INCOME INCLUDED AS OTHER INCOME ON FINANCIAL

STATEMENT 1,526,059.
TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED INCOME 50,697.
TOTAL TQ SCHEDULE D, PART XTI, LINE 4B 1,576,756.

PART XII, LINE 4B - OTHER ADJUSTMENTS:

BAD DERT EXPENSE CLASSIFIED AS REDUCTION OF INCOME ON

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 485,802.
RENTAL EXPENSE REPORTED AS EXPENSE ON FINANCTAL STATEMENT -71,216.
. Schedule D {Form 990) 2018
832055 10-29-18
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Schedule D (Form 920) 2018 NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 pages
Part X1l | Supplemental Information_onginyeq)

. TOTAL TO SCHEDULE D, PART XTI, LINE 4B 414,586.

. Schedule D (Form 990) 2018
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SCHEDULEH - GME No. 1545.0047
(Form 990) Hospitals .
P> Camplete if the crganization answered "Yes" on Farm 990, Part IV, question 20. 20 1 8
Department of the Troasury P> Attach to Form 880, L
Intornal Rovorua Sorvics P> Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. ;
Name of the arganization Emplayer identification number

NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364
Financial Assistance and Gertain Other Community Benefits at Gost

Yes | No
1a Did the crganization have a financial assistance policy during the tax year? If "No,” skip to question6a . 13 | X
b If "Yes,” was it a written po!ic{? e et et ettt e e one et e ez b | X
i the of ganitaticn had mubipta hoepiul Tocditizs, ndicate which of he {eliowing best Gos ivos application of the financial agsistance pobey to i1s viwious hospital e prev P

2 tacitios theing the Lax yoear.
] Applied uniformly to all hospital facilities ] Applied uniformly to most hospilal facilities
[__] Generally tailored to individua! hospital facilities
3 Anawor tho following based on tha financial ossistanco sligiility oriterio thal applind (o the largest numb of the orpanization’s patients duwring o tax yoar,
a Cid the organization use Federal Poverty Guidelines (FPG) as a factor in determining eligibility for providing freg care?
It “Yes," indicate which of the following was the FPG family income limit for eligibility for free care: . ...
(1 100% (Jiwsow [ 200 [ ] Cther %
b Did the organization use FPG as a factor in determining eligibility for providing djscounted care? If *Yes," indicate which
of the following was the family income limit for eligibility for discounted care: . i
(1 200% (J2sow [ Jsoow [ laso% [ laoos [ Other %

¢ i the organization used factors other than FPG in determining eligibility, describe in Part V1 the critenia used for determining
eligibility for free or discounted cara. Include in the description whether the organization used an asset test or other
threshold, regardless of income, as a factor in datermining eligibility for free or discounted care.

4  Didthe oganization’s financial assislance policy that opplied Lo the largost ourmber of its pationts dung the dax year provide foc oo of discounied cve o the
BT T T U 0 P P

5a Did the orpanization hudpet amounts for free or discounted care provided under its hnanclal ass:slance policy dunng the !ax year?
b If *Yes,” did ihe organization’s financial assisiance sxponses exceed the budgeted amount? . .. ...
c If *Yes® to line 5b, as a result of budgat considerations, was the organization unable to provide free or discounted
care to a patient who was aligible for {ree or discounted care?
6a Did the organization prepare a community benafit report during the tax year?
. b i "Yes,” did the organization make it available to the public? .
Comptats the following tabls using the workshoals provided in the Schoduie Hinstuctons, Do not sebroit thess wirhshoots with thy Sehedale H
7 Financial Assistance and Cenlain Other Community Benefits at Cost
Financial Assistanceand . | (3]mbe ol o) Puserz 1 {€) Toml communty | {d) Deect ot | (€] Napcommuty | U] Pacenn
Means-Tested Government Programs | _FeFams (optenal) {epticaal) wpenie
a Financial Assistance at cost (from
Worksheet 1) ...
b Medicaid (from Worksheat 3,
columna) |
¢ Costs of other means-tested
govarnment programs {from
Worksheet 3, columnb) .
d Total. Financial Assistanco and

Means-Tested Govenment Programs
Other Benefits
e Community heatth
improvement services and
community benefit operations
(from Worksheet4) . ... .
f Heaith professions education
(from Worksheet8) .. ... . .
g Subslidized health servicas
(from Worksheet6) . . .
h Research (from Worksheet 7)
i Cash and in-kind contributions
for community benefit {from
Worksheet 8)
j Total. Other Benefits |
. k Total. Add lines 7d and 7j
a3zoz1 11-00.18  LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule H (Fo;r;\1990) 2018
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H (Form 980) 2018 NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 Page2
| Community Building Activities Complete 1his table if the organization conducted any community building activities during the

tax year, and describe in Part Vi how its community building activitiss promoted the health of the communities it serves.

. {a) Numbor of {b} Porsons {c) Total {d) Direct {e) Net {f) Prcont of
aclivities o progroms &or vod (oplional) community uifsotting revenuo community total sxponse
{opticnal} building expense building oxpensa
1__ Physical improvements and housing
2 __Economic davelopment
3 Community support
4 Environmental improvements
5 Leadership development and
training for community members
6 Coalition building
7 Community health improvement
advocacy
8 Workforce devaelopment
9 Other
10 Total
al | Bad Debt, Medicare, & Collection Practices
Section A. Bad Debt Expense Yes | No
1 Did the organization report bad debt expensa in accordance with Healthcare Financial Management Association
Statement No, 157 . .. )
2 Enter the amount of the organlzallcn S bad dabt expenss Expla]n in F’art Vithe
methodology used by the organization to estimate this amount | e 2 485 , 802
3 Enter the estimated emcunt of the organization’s bad dabt expense aunbutable to
patients aligible under the organization’s financial assistance policy. Explain in Part VI the
methodology used by the organization to estimeate this amount and the rationale, it any,
for including this portion of bad debt as community benefit 3 0.

4 Provide in Part VI the text of the footnote to the organization’s ﬁnancml statements thal dascnbas bad debt
expense or the page number on which this foctnote is contained in the attached financial statements.
Section B, Medicare
. 5 Enter total revenus received from Medicare (inciuding DSH and IME)
6 Enter Medicare aliowable costs of care relating to payments on line 5
7 Subtract line 6 from lina 5. This Is the surplus {or shortfal]) 7
8

5 4,062,781,
6 4,113,352,
-50,571.

Describe in Part VI the extent to which any shortfall reported in line 7 should be treated as community banafit.
Also describe in Parl V] the costing methodology or source used to determine the amount reported on ling 8.
Check the box that describes the method used:
Cost accounting system D Cast to charge ratio D COther
Section C. Collection Practices
9a2 Did the organization have a written dabt collection policy during the tax year? e

b if"¥es," did the organization's collection palicy that applied to the largest number of its patients tmnng lhe 1ax year comam prowszons on lhe

collection practices 1o be followed for patients who are known to qualify for financial assistance? Describe in Part Vi . Sbh

9a X

aft Wl Management Companies and Joint Ventures {ownod 105 or morw by ollicers, deoclers, bustnes, koy smployeas, and physicians - svo instructions)
(a) Name of entity {b) Description of primary {c) Organization’s |{d) Officers, direct-| (e} Physicians’
activity of entity profit % or stock ﬁfs. "'UBT'BBS- or profit % or
ey employees
ownership % profit % or stock s1c>clf ,
ownership % ownership %
832092 11-09-18 Schedule H (Form 9380} 2018
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Schedule H {Form 990) 2018 NAVAJO HEALTH FQUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 Pagea
Facility Information

. Section A. Hospital Facilities

(list in order of size, from largest to smallest)
How many hospital facilities did the organization operate
during the tax year?

Name, address, primary website address, and state license numbaer
(and il a group retum, the name and EIN of the subordinate hospital
organization that operates the hospital facility)
1l NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION/SAGE MEMORIAL
P.0. BOX 457
GANADO, AZ 86505
WWW . SAGEMEMORIAL.ORG DENTAL AND
XX X X OPTOMOLOGY

Facility
reparting
woup

ben, medical & surgical
hildren's hospital
Jeaching hospital
ritical access hospital
Research facility
ER-24 hours
R-other

Licensed hospital

Other (describe)

\
”
L,
L]

Schedule H {(Form 9380) 2018
273

832033 11-09-16
33

12160813 132842 54144.0002 2018.06010 NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION 54144.01




Schedule H (Form 990) 2018 NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION ~ SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 Pageo
‘PartV | Facility Information ;ontinved

. Section D. Other Health Care Facilities That Are Not Licensed, Registered, or Similarly Recognized as a Hospital Facility
(ist in order of size, from largest to smallest)
How many non-hospital health care facilitios did the crganization operate during the tax year? 4
Name and address Type of Facility (describe)

1 OUTPATIENT CLINIC
P.O. BOX 457 :
GANADO, AZ 86505 QUTPATIENT SERVICES

2 SPECIALITY CLINIC
P.O. BOX 457
GANADO, AZ 86505 CARDIOLOGY AND ECHO

3 DENTAL CLINIC
P.0O. BOX 457
GANADO, AZ 86505 DENTAL SERVICES

4 GREASEWOOD CLINIC
P.O, BOX 457
GANADO, AZ 86505 DENTAL AND OUTPATIENT SERVICES

Schedule H {(Form 990} 2018
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Schedule H (Form 990) 2018 NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL  23-7314364 Page 10
‘PartVl | Supplemental information

. Provide the following information.

1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3¢, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Pert lll, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and ‘
9b. |

2 Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the heaith care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any
CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

3 Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persans who may be billed
for patient care about their efigibility for assistance under federal, state, or jocal government programs or under the organization's financial

assistance policy. |

4 Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account tha geographic area and demographic i
constituents it serves.

5 Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or other health
care facilities furiher its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community {e.g., open medical staff, community board, use of surplus
funds, etc.).

6 Affiliated health care system. If the organization s part of an affiliated health care system, describa the respective roles of the organization
and its affiliates in promoting the heaith of the communities served.

7 State filing of community benefit report. !f applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
community benefit report.

PART I, LINE 3C:

THE ORGANIZATION PRIMARILY SERVICES MEMBERS OF THE NAVAJO NATION. UNDER

AGREEMENTS WITH INDIAN HEALTH SERVICES, IF TRIBAL MEMBERS DO NOT HAVE

. INSURANCE AND/OR ARE NOT ELTIGIBELE FOR MEDICARE OR MEDICAID, THE HOSPITAL

BEARS THE COST OF PROVIDING MEDICAL: SERVICES. PRIOR TO COVERING THE

COSTS, THE HOSPITAL VERIFIES ALL ALTERNATIVE INSURANCE OPTIONS HAVE BEEN

APPLIED FOR AND OBTAINS PROOF OF INDIZN HERITAGE.

PART III, LINE 4:

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOOTNOTE 1 PAGE 11 - THE CARRYING AMOUNT OF PATIENT

RECEIVABLES IS REDUCED BY A VALUATION ALLOWANCE THAT REFLECTS MANAGEMENT'S

BEST ESTIMATE OF AMOUNTS THAT WILL NOT BE COLLECTED FROM PATIENTS AND

THIRD-PARTY PAYORS. MANAGEMENT REVIEWS PATIENT RECEIVABLES BY PAYOR CLASS

AND APPLIES PERCENTAGES TO DETERMINE ESTIMATED AMOUNTS THAT WILL NOT EE

COLLECTED FROM THIRD PARTIES UNDER CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENTS AND AMOUNTS THAT

WILL NOT BE COLLECTED FROM PATIENTS DUE TO BAD DEBTS. MANAGEMENT

REGULARLY REVIEWS DATA ABOUT THESE MAJOR PAYOR CLASSES OF REVENUE IN

. EVALUATING THE SUFFICIENCY OF THE ALLOWANCE. MANAGEMENT CONSIDERS
B32100 11-09-18 Schedule H {(Form 980) 2018
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chedule H (Form 930 NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL
Supplemental Information continuation)

s 23-7314364 page 10

. HISTORICAL WRITE OFF AND RECOVERY INFORMATION IN DETERMINING THE ESTIMATED

BAD DEBT PROVISION. THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNTS BILLED AND THE

AMOUNTS ACTUALLY COLLECTED AFTER ALL REASONABLE COLLECTION EFFORTS HAVE

BEEN EXHAUSTED IS CHARGED OFF AGAINST THE VALUATION ALLOWANCE.

PART III, LINE 8:

IT IS A COMMUNITY BENEFIT FOR THE HOSPITAL TO PROVIDE SERVICES REGARDLESS

OF MEDICARE SURPLUS OR SHORTFALL. THE SOURCE USED IS MEDICARE'S COST

REPORT COMPLETED BY THE HOSPITAL FOR FISCAL YEAR END 2018§.

PART VI, LINE 2:

THE HOSPITAL CONDUCTED ITS MOST RECENT COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT

DURING THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 (TAX YEAR 2018).

. PART VI, LINE 3:

UPON ADMITTANCE, PATIENTS ARE INFORMED OF THE POLICIES, EDUCATED ON THE

VARIQUS ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS AVAILABLE AND THEY ARE GIVEN FORMS TO ASSIST

IN COMPLETING FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PAPERWORK. THE EMPLOYEES IN ADMITTING

HAVE A CHECKLIST OF INFORMATION AND FORMS THEY ARE TO PROVIDE TO THE

PATIENTS.

PART VI, LINE 4:

THE ORGANIZATION PRIMARILY SERVICES THE NAVAJO NATION COMMUNITIES AND ,

CHAPTERS OF CORNFIELDS, GANADO, KINLICHEE, KLAGETOH, GREASEWOOD SPRINGS,

STEAMBOAT, WIDE RUINS, AND THE PORTION OF NAZLINI THAT INCLUDES

COMMUNITIES SOUTH OF ROUTE 26. THE REGION IS PREDOMINANTLY PART OF THE

APACHE COUNTY OF ARIZONA, WITH SOME OVERLAP INTO NAVAJO COUNTY.

. Schedute H (Form 990}
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Schedula H (Form 990) 2018 NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 Pages
Facility Information isntinueq

Section B. Facility Policies and Practices
. (complete a separate Section B for each of the hospital facilities or facility reporting groups listed in Part V, Section A)

Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group SAGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

Line number of hospital facility, or line numbers of hospital
facilities in a facility reporting group {from Part V, Section A} 1

Yes | No

Community Heaith Needs Assessment
1 Was the hospital facility first icensed, registered, or similarly recognized by a state as a hospital facility in the

current tax year or the immediately preceding tax year? | e 1 X
2 Was the hospital facility acquired or placed into service as a mx-exempt ho.vpata! in 1he current tax year or
the immediataly preceding tax year? i “Yes," provide details of the acquisition in SectionC | . ... ... ; 2 X

3 During the tax year or either of the two immediately preceding tax years, did the hospital facility conduct a
community health needs assessment (CHNAY? If *No," skiptoline12 | . .. . .. . ...
It *Yes,” indicate what the CHNA report describes (check all that apply):
a A definition of the community served by the hospital facility

b Demographics of the community

c Existing health cara facilities and resources within the community thal are avaliable o respond to the health needs
of the community

d How deta was obtained

e The significant heaith neads of the community

Primary and chronic diseasa needs and cther health issues of uninsured persons, low-income persons, and minority
groups
The process for identifying and prioritizing community health needs and services to meet the community heaith needs
The process for consuiting with persans representing the community’s interests
The impact of any actions teken to address the significant health needs identified in the hospital facility’s prior CHNA(s)
Other (describe in Section C)
. . 4 Indicate the tex year the hospital focility last conducted a CHNA: 20 ”_l._g_
5 In conducting its most recent CHNA, did the hospital facility take into account input from persons who represent the broad
interests of the community served by the hospital facility, including those with special knowledge of or expertise in public
heaith? If *Yes," describe in Section C how the hospital facility took into account input from persons who reprasent the

(bbb B

community, and identify the persons the hospital facility consulted e 5 X
6a Was the hospital facility’'s CHNA conducted with one or mora other hospital facuimes? If *Yes,” lisl tha oiher
hospital facilities N SECUON C | | . i oo e et oo e 6a X

b Was the hospital facility’'s CHNA conducted with one or more orgamzauons othar than hospital facnhhes” If 'Yas
list the other organizations in SectionC |
7 Did the hospital facility make its CHNA report wndaly avmlab ) to the pub ;c? .
If *Yes,” indicate how the CHNA report was made widely available (check all thm apply)
a [:] Hospital facility’s website (list url):
b [:] Other website {list ur);
m Made a paper copy available {or public inspection without charge at the hospital facility
d [XI other (describe in Section C)
8 Did the hospital facility adopt an implementation strategy to meet the significant community health needs
identilied through its most racently conducted CHNA? H "No,” skip to line 11
9 Indicate the tax year the hospital facility last adopted an implementation strategy; 20__ 18
10 Is the hospital facility’s most recently adopted implementation strategy posted on a website?
alf*Yes” (isturl): SAGEMEMORIAL.COM
b If "No," is tha hospital facility's most recently adopted implemeantation strategy attached to this return?
11 Describe in Section C how the hospital facility is addressing the significant needs identified in its most
recently conducted CHNA and any such needs that are not baing addressed together with the reasons why
such needs are not being addressed.

12a Did the organization incur an excise tax under section 4959 for the hospital facility's failure to conduct a
CHNA as required by section 501{r)(3)7

b If *Yes® to line 12a, did the organizaticn file Form 4720 to report the section 4859 excise tax?

c i “Yas* to line 12b, what is the 1otal amount of section 4959 excise tax the organization reported on Form 4720
. for all of its hospital facilities? $ .
832094 110018 Schedute H (Form 990) 2018
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Schedule H {Form 820) 2018 NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 Pages
Facility Information {continued)
. Financial Assistance Policy (FAP}

Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group SAGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a written financial assistance policy that:
13 Explained eligibility criteria for financial assistance, and whether such assistance included free or discounted care?
If *Yes,” indicate the eligibility criteria explained in the FAP:

a D Federa! poverty guidelines (FPG), with FPG family income limit for eligibility for free care of %
and FPG family income fimit for eligibility for discounted care of %
Income level other than FPG (describe in Section C)
Assat jevel

Medical indigency
Insurance status
Underinsuranca status
Residency
X | Other (describe in Section C)
14 Explainad the basis for calculnting amounts charged to patients?
15 Explained the method for applying for financial assistance? e
If “Yes," indicate how the hospital facility’s FAP or FAP application form (ncludmg accompanying instruchons)
explained the method for applying for financial assistance (check all that apply):
a D Described the information the hospital facility may require an individual to provide as part of his or her application
b D Described the supporting documentation the hospita! facility may require an individual to submit as part of his
or her application
c Provided the centact information of hospital facility staff who can provide an individual with information
about the FAP and FAP application process
d D Provided the contact information of nonprofit crganizations or govemment agencies that may be sources
of assistance with FAP applications
e [ Other (describe in Section C)
. 16 Was widely publicized within the community served by the hespital facility?
if *Yes," indicate how the hospital facility publicized the policy (check all that apply);
The FAP was widely available on a websits {list url);
Tha FAP application form was widely available on a website {list url):
A plain language summary of the FAP was widely available on a website (list uri):
The FAP was available upon request and without charge {in public lccations in the hospital facility and by mail)
The FAP epplication form was available upon request and without charge (in public locations in the hospital
facility and by mail)
A plain language summary of the FAP was available upon request and without charge {in public locations in
the hospital facility and by mail)
Individuals were notilied aboul the FAP by being offered a paper copy of tha plain language summary of the FAP,
by recaliving a conspicuous written notice about the FAP on their billing statements, and via conspicuous public
displays or other measures raasonably calculated 1o attract patients’ attention

HOOO000

b
c
d
e
f
g
h

® a 060 oo

0 0 U000

Notified members of the community who are most likely to require financial assistance about availability of the FAP
The FAP, FAP application form, and plain language summary of the FAP were translatad inte the primary language(s)
spoken by Limited English Proliciency (LEP) populations

Other (describe in Section C)

[ 0
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Schedule H (Form 990) 2018 NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 Pages
Facility Information ,ontinued)

Blllmg and Collections
. Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group _ SAGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

Yes | No

17 Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a separate billing and collections policy, or a written financial
assistance policy (FAP) that explained all of the actions the hospital facility or other authorized party may take upon
nonpayment?

18 Check all of the following actions against an individua! that were permitted underth= hosgital faczhty s policies dunng the
tax year before making reasonabile efforts 10 detemmine the individuel’s eligibility under the facility’s FAP:

a [:] Reporting to credit agency(ies)

b [:] Selling an individual's debt to another party

[ [:] Deferring, denying, or requiring a payment before providing medically necessary care due to nonpayment of a
previous bill for care covered under the hospital facility’s FAP

Actions that require a legal or judicial process

Cther similar actions {describe in Section C)

None of these actions or other similar actions were pemitted

19 Did the hospital facility or other authorized party perform any of the following actions during the tax year bafore making
reasonable efforts to dstermina the individual’s eligibility under the facility's FAP?
If *Yes," check all actions in which the hospital facility or a third party engaged:

Reporting to credit agency(ies)

b [:] Selling an individual's debt to another party

c [:] Deferring, denying, or requiring a payment befare providing medically necessary care due to nonpayment of a
previous bill for care covered under the hospital facility’s FAP

d [:] Actions that require a legal or judicial process

e [ Other similar actions (dascribe in Section C)

20 Indicate which efforls the hospital facility or other authorized party made before initiating any of the actions listed (whether or
not checked) in line 19 (check all that appiy):

Provided a written notice about upcoming ECAs (Extraordinary Collection Action) and a plain language summary of the

FAP at least 30 days before Initiating those ECAs (if not, describa (n Section C)

Made a reasonable sffort to orally notify individuals about the FAP and FAP application process (if not, describe in Section C)

Procassed incomplate and complete FAP applications (if not, dascribe in Section C)

Made presumptive eligibility determinations (if not, describe in Section C)

Cther (describe in Section C)

1 None of these efforis were made

Policy Relating to Emergency Medical Care

21 Did the hospital facllity have in place during the tax year a written policy relating to emergency medical care

that required the hospital facility to provide, without discrimination, care for emargency medical conditions to

Individuals regardless of their eligibility under the hospital facility’s financial assistance policy?

if *No," Indicate why:

] The hospital facility did not provide care for any emergency medical conditions

[:| The hospital facility's policy was not in writing

] The hospital facility limited who was eligible to receive care for emergency medical conditions (dasctibe in Section C)
[ _other (describe in Section C)

oo

a

o o0 v

0000 O

o 0O oo
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Schedulo H (Form 990) 2018 NAVAJO HEALTH FOQUNDATION -~ SAGE MEMORIAL 23~7314364 Page7
. Facility information (cantinued)

I Charges to Individuals Eligible for Assistance Under the FAP (FAP-Eligible Individuals)

Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group SAGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

22 Indicate how the hospital facility determined, during the tax year, the maximum amounts that can be charged to FAP-eligible
individuals for emergency or other medically necessary care.
a [:] The hospita! facility used a look-back method based on claims allowed by Medicare {ee-for-service during a prior
12-month period
b [:] The hospital facility used a look-back method based on claims allowad by Medicare fee-for-service and all private
health insurers that pay claims to the hospital facility during a prior 12-month period
c [:] The hospital facility used a lcok-back methed based on claims allowed by Medicaid, either alone or in combination
with Medicare fee-for-service and all private health insurers that pay claims to tha hospital facility during a prior
12-month period
d [:] The hospital facility used a prospectiva Medicara or Medicaid method
23 During the tax year, did the hospital facility charge any FAP-eligible individual to whom the hospital facility provided
emergency or other medically necessary services more than the amounts generally billed to individuals who had
insurance covering such care?
if *Yes," explain in Sectlon C.
24 During the tax year, did the hospital facility charge any FAP-eligible individual an amount equal to the gross charge for any
service provided to that Individual? e
i *Yes,” explain In Section C. | L
Schedule H {Form 980) 2018
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Schedulo H (Form 930) 2018 NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 Pages
Pa Facility Information sninusd;
. Section C. Suppiemental information for Part V, Section B, Provide descriptions reguired for Part V, Section B, lines

2, 3], 5, 62, 6b, 7d, 11, 13b, 13h, 15e, 16€j, 18e, 150, 20a, 20b; 20c, 20d, 208, 21¢, 21d, 23, and 24. Ifapphcabla provsda |
separat- descnptxcns Yor each hospnal facility ina fﬂc:hty repomng group das:gnated by facility reporting group letter
and hospital facility line number from Part V, Section A (A, 1, A, 4,” "B, 2,” "B, 3,” etc.) and name of hospital facility,

SAGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL:

PART V, SECTION B, LINE 5: SAGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL (”"SMH") ASSEMBLED AN

ASSESSMENT TEAM CONSISTING OF HOSPITAL ADMINISTRATION AND EXECUTIVE

LEADERSHIP, PUBLIC HEALTH PROFESSIONALS, AND CLINICAL STAFF. THE TEAM

CONDUCTED SURVEYS WITH COMMUNITY MEMBERS AND FOCUS GROUPS AND RESEARCHED

SECONDARY DATA SOURCES TO OBTAIN RELEVANT COMMUNITY HEALTH INFORMATION.

THIS INFORMATION WAS THEN ANALYZED AND CROSS-REFERENCED TO PUBLIC

DATABASES TO IDENTIFY THE TOP HEALTH CARE NEEDS OF THE COMMUNITY.

THE TEAM TOOK A COMPREHENSIVE APPROACH TO ASSESSING THE NEEDS. FIRST THEY

ENGAGED WITH THE COMMUNITY TO CAPTURE INPUT ABOUT HEALTH NEEDS AND FACTORS

. AFFECTING THE ACCESS AND DELIVERY OF HEALTH CARE SERVICES IN THE REGION.

THE ASSESSMENT TEAM INDENTIFIED 2 GROUPS TO REPRESENT THE COMMUNITY'S

HEALTH INTEREST. (1) INDIVIDUAL MEMBERS OF THE COMMUNITY AND (2) SAGE'S

BOARD OF DIRECTORS WHO ALSC RESIDE WITHIN THE COMMUNITIES OF THE NAVAJO

NATION. THESE GROUPS PARTICIPATED IN SURVEYS AND FOCUS GROUPS COORDINATED

BY ASSESSMENT TEAM MEMBERS WITH PUBLIC HEALTH EXPERTISE. THE TEAM ALSO

RESEARCHED SECONDARY DATA SOURCES TO BETTER UNDERSTAND THE DEMOGRAPHICS OF

THE COMMUNITY AND ASSOCIATED HEALTH ISSUES. THE RESULTS WERE ANALYZED AND

REVIEWED WITH THE SMH EXECUTIVE TEAM, MEDICAL STAFF AND PUBLIC HEALTH

EXPERTS IN ORDER TQO IDENTIFY AND PRIORITZE THE CCOMMUNITY'S HEALTH NEEDS.

SAGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL: ‘

PART V, SECTION B, LINE 7D: PAMPHLETS DISTRIBUTED IN THE LOCAL COMMUNITY.

832690 11-00.10 Schedule H {Form 990} 2018
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Schedu!e H (Form 980) 2018 NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 Pages
Facility Information ;oniinued;

Secnnn C. Supplemental information for Part V, Section B. Provide descriptions required for Pant V, Section B, lines
. 2,3}, 5, 6a, 6b, 7d, 11, 13b, 13h, 158, 16j, 188, 199 20a, 20b, 20c, 204, 2Qe, 21c, 21d, 23, and 24. If applicable prowde

separate descnplmns for each hospital facility in a facxhty repor‘ung grcup des;gnmed by famlrty reporting group latter
and hospital facility line number from Part V, Section A (*A, 1,” "B, 2," "B, 3,” etc.) and name of hospital facility.

SAGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL:

PART V, SECTION B, LINE 1l: THE HOSPITAIL HAS IDENTIFIED AND PRIORITIZED

THE TOP 5 SIGNIFICANT NEEDS OF THE COMMUNITY AND IS ADDRESSING THOSE NEEDS

AS FOLLOWS: (1) BEHAVIORAL HEALTH - THE HOSPITAL IS EXPANDING BEHAVIORAL

HEALTH SERVICES AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE REHABILITATION PROGRAMS, INCLUDING

IMPLEMENTING AN OUTREACH PROGRAM AND COLLABORATING WITH SCHOOLS AND

IMPLEMENTING TELEMEDICINE; (2) PEDIATRIC CARE - THE HOSITAL IS EXPANDING |

PUBLIC IMMUNIZATION PROGRAMS, NUTRITIONAL EDUCATION OUTREACH PROGRAMS,

RECRUITMENT AND RETENTION OF BOARD-CERTIFIED PEDIATRICIANS AND EXPANDING

CAPACITY FOR PEDIATRIC SERVICES; (3) OBESITY PREVENTION - THE HOSPITAL

PLANS TO FACILITATE ADDITIONAL COMMUNITY OUTREACH ACTIVITIES SUCH AS

. EXERCISE AND PHYSICAL FITNESS GROUP ACTIVITIES, EDUCATION ABOUT HEALTHY

LIFESTYLES AND THE DEVELOPMENT OF A RECREATIONAL FACILITY; (4) ACCESSABLE

HEALTH CARE SERVICES - THE HOSPITAL PLANS TO EXPAND SERVICES WITHIN

CHAPTER COMMUNITIES WITH THE PURCHASE OF A MOBILE HEALTH RV, REVIEW

VIABILITY OF TELEMEDICINE PROGRAMS, COORDINATE PATIENT HOME VISITS AND

COLLABORATE WITH THE COMMUNITY HEALTH REPRESENTATIVES: AND (5) DIABETES

CARE AND PREVENTION - THE HOSPITAL WILL CONTINUE TO EDUCATE COMMUNITY

ABOUT DIABETES AND INCREASE COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES THAT ENCOURAGE HEALTHY

LIFESTYLE HABITS, RECRUIT AND RETAIN A NURSE CARE MANAGER FOR THE DIABETES

PROGRAM, DEVELOP AND SUPPORT THE NATIVE DIABETES WELLNESS PROGRAM,

CONTINUE TO EXPAND THE SAGE COMMUNITY GARDEN TO INCREASE AWARENESS AND

SUPPLEMENT NUTRIONAL RESQURCES AND EXPAND HEALTH SCREENINGS. LONG TERM

PLANS INCLUDE AN OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER AND NEW HOSPITAL.

832098 11-00-10 Schedule H (Forrg 990) 2018
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Schedule H {Form 990} 2018 NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION -~ SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364 Pages
Part Facility Information opsinued;

. Section C. ggp?lemental Information for Part V, Section B, Provide doscriptions required for Part V, Section B, lines
2,3}, 5, 6a, 6b,

d, 11, 13b, 13h, 158, 16j, 18e, 19a, 20a, 20b, 20c, 20d, 208, 21c, 21d, 23, and 24. If applicable, provide
separate descriptions for each hospital facility in a fucilily reporting group, designated by facility reporting group letter
and hospital facility line number from Part V, Section A (*A, 1," "A, 4," "B, 2," "B, 3," etc.) and namse of hospital facllity.

SAGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL:

PART V, SECTION B, LINE 13H: THE HOSPITAL USES THE FEDERAL PROVERTY LEVEL

AS DETERMINED ANNUALLY BY THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT ON A SLIDING SCALE WITH 0

TQ 100% OF FEDERAL POVERTY LEVEL RECEIVING A 50% DISCOUNT, WITH A

REDUCTION IN THE DISCOUNT AS THE INCOME LEVEL INCREASES IN RELATION TO THE

POVERTY LEVEL.

832008 11.00-18 Schedule H {(Form 990} 2018
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SCHEDULE J
(Form 980)

Degartmont af thoe Treasury
Intornal Rovaenuo Servico

Compensation Information

For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
Compensated Employees

b~ Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 23,

P> Attach to Form 990,
P Go to www.irs.gov/FormS90 for instructions and the latest information.

I OMH No. 1545.0047

2018

Name of the organization

NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION

SAGE MEMORIAL

Employer identification number

23-7314364

[Part

| Questions Regarding Compensation

1a Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed on Form 990,
Part VII, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part [l to provide any relevant information regarding these items.
[:] First-class or charter travel Housing allowance or residence for personal use
(] Travet for companions [ Payments for business use of personal residence
[:] Tax indemnification and gross-up payments [:] Health or social club dues or initiation fees
[:] Discretionary spending account [:] Parsonal services (such as maid, chauffeur, chef)

b If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written pelicy regarding payment or

reimbursement or provision of all of the expanses described above? If "No,” compiete Part lil to explain ... .. .. .
2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expanses incurred by all directors,

trustees, and officers, including the CEQ/Executive Director, regarding the items checked on fine1a? . . .
3 Indicate which, if any, of the following the filing organization used 1o establish the campensation of the organization's

CEO/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods used by a related crganization to

establish compensation of the CEO/Executive Diractor, bul explain in Part lii.

[:] Compensation committea [:] Written employment contract

[:] Independent compensation consultant Compensation survey or study

[:] Form 890 of other organizations Approvai by the board or compensation committee

4 During the year, did any person listed on Form 930, Parl ViI, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing
organization or a related organization:
Receive a ssverance payment or change-of-control payment? e
Participate in, or receive payment from, 8 supplemental nongualifiad retlrement plan? e
¢ Panicipate in, or receive payment from, an equity-based compensation arrangement? .

if "Yes* to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amcunts for each ttem in Pan HI

&
>l

Only section 501(c}{3}, 501(c}{4}, and 501(c)}{29) organizations must complete lines 5-9.
5 For persons listed on Form 990, Part Vi, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the revanues of:
a The organization?
b Any related organization? |
If *Yes" on line 52 or Sb, descnba in Pan HI
6 For persons listed on Forrn 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the net eamings of:
8 The organizZalionT | e e ke e e
b Any related organization? |
if "Yes” on line Ba or €b, descnbe in Pan ll
7 For persons listed on Form 880, Part VIi, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any nonfixed payments
not described on lines 5 and 67 If *Yes,” describeinPartit ... . e
8 Were any amounts reported on Form 980, Part Vi, paid or accrued pursuant to a con‘lract thul was subjw to the
initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(g)(3)7 If "Yes,” deseribe in Part 1li
9 |f "Yes” on Hine 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in
Regulations section §3.49586(c)? .. ...
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the lnstructlons for Form 990

Schedule J (Form 890} 2018
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OME No_ 1545-D047

SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ2

{Form 980 or 990-EZ} Camplete to provide information for responses 1o specific questions on 20 1 8
Form 890 or 990-EZ or 10 provide any additional information.

Department of tho Troatury P> Attach to Form 950 or 980-EZ.

Intornal Ravorue Seivico P Go to www.irs.qov/Form890 for the latest information. inspectio!

Name of the organization Employer identification number

NAVAJQO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION A, LINE 8B:

THE BOARD DID NOT HAVE FORMAL COMMITTEE'S WITH AUTHORITY TO ACT ON BEHALF

OF THE GOVERNING BODY.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINF 11B:

A SUBSTANTIALLY REVISED DRAFT VERSION OF FORM 990 IS PROVIDED TO THE ENTIRE

BOARD PRIOR TO THE FILING OF FORM 990. SUBSEQUENT ADDITIONAL DUE DILIGENCE

WITH HOSPITAL LEGAL AND TAX ADVISORS ARE UNDERTAKEN BY THE CFO AND HOSPITAL

MANAGEMENT IN ORDER TO COMPLETE AND SUBMIT THE FINAL 990.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 12:

QUESTION 12A - BOARD OF DIRECTORS ARE REQUIRED TO COMPLY WITH THE

. HOSPITAL'S BYLAWS THAT INCLUDE A CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY. HOWEVER,

PRIOR TO NOVEMBER 2019, QUESTION 12B, THE OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, TRUSTEES AND

KEY EMPLOYEES DID NOT ANNUALLY DISCLOSE THE CONFLICTS AND QUESTION 12C THE

POLICY WAS NOT CONSISTENTLY ENFORCED. IN NOVEMBER 2019, THE POLICY WAS

MONITORED AND ENFORCED AND ANNUAL DISCLOSURES WERE REQUIRED.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 15:

REMUNERATION OF KEY EXECUTIVES AND OFFICERS WERE COMMENSURATE WITH THE

MARKET, ROLE, APPLICANT'S EDUCATION-EXPERIENCE-SKILLS AND WERE SUBJECT TO

APPROVAL AND ACCEPTANCE BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C, LINE 18:

DOCUMENTS ARE AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST

. LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 980-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ} (2018)
B32211 10-10-10
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Schedule O {(Form 980 or 990-E7) (2018) Page 2
Name of the organization Employer identification number

NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364

I FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C, LINE 19:

DOCUMENTS ARE AVATLABLE UPON REQUEST

FORM 990, PART IX, LINE 11G, OTHER FEES:

CONSULTANTS AND AGENCY PERSONNEL :

PROGRAM SERVICE EXPENSES 9,637,769,
MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL EXPENSES 15,112.
FUNDRAISING EXPENSES 0.
TOTAL EXPENSES 9,652,881,
TOTAL OTHER FEES ON FORM 990, PART IX, LINE 11G, COL A 9,652,881,

FORM 990, PART XII, LINE 2C:

THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, ALONG WITH FINDINGS NOTED DURING THE

. AUDIT, ARE PRESENTED TO THE BOARD BY THE INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTING FIRM.

832212 1D-10-18 Schedule O {Form 9380 ar 990-EZ} (2018)
288
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Form 8868 Application for Automatic Extension of Time To File an

Rev. January 2019 i i
{Rev. January 2019) Exempt Organization Return OMB No. 15451709
. Dopatmant of tha Traasury P File a separate application for each return.

Inteenal Rovorno Sorvico P Go to www.irs.gov/FormB8B68 for the latest information,

Electronic filing (e-file). You can electronically {ile Form 8868 to request a 6-month automatic extension of tima to file any of the
forms listed below with the exception of Form 8870, Information Retum for Transfers Associated With Certain Personal Benafit
Contracts, for which an extension requast must ba sent to the IRS in paper format (see instructions). For more details on the electronic
filing of this form, visit www.irs.gov/e-file-providers/e-fila-for-charities-and-non-profits.

Automatic 6-Month Extension of Time. Oniy submit original {no copies needed).

All corporations required to fila an income tax retum other than Form 880.T (including 1120-C filers), partnerships, REMICs, and trusts
must use Form 7004 to reguest an extension of time to file income tax retums.

Enter filer’s identifying number

Type or Narne of exempt organization or other filer, see instructions. Employaer identification number (EIN) or
print
Fioby o NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION -~ SAGE MEMORIAL 23-7314364
duo datofor | Number, street, and room or suite no. If a P.O. box, see sns1rucuons Social security number (SSN)
mwywu | PO, BOX 457
msvuctions. | City, town or pos? office, state, and ZIP code, For a foreign address, see instructions.
GANADO, AZ 86505
Enter the Retum Code for the retumn that this application is for {file a separate application foreachreturn) | g{1]
Application Return | Application Return
Is For GCode_}]lsFor Code
Form 980 or Form 990-EZ 01 Form 990-T {corporation) 07
Form 980-BL 02 Form 1041-A 08
Form 4720 (individual) 03 Form 4720 (other than individual) 08
Form 890-PF 04 Form 5227 10
Form 980-T {sec. 401(a} or 408(a) trust) 05 Form 6069 1
Form 980-T {trust other than above) 08 Form 8870 12
. MICHAEL KATIGBAK, INTERIM CFO
® Thebooksareinthecarsof p 2.0. BOX 457 - GANADQO, AZ 86505
Telephone No, (928)755‘4500 Fax No. p
® |f the organization does not have an office or place of business in the United States, check thisbox ... ... ... ... .. .. | 4 [___]

® |f this is for a Group Return, enter the organization’s four digit Group Exemption Number (GEN) i lhlS is for the whale group, check this
box P [_].Ifitis for part of the group, check this box P D and attach a list with the names and E!Ns of all membars the axtansion is for.

1 Irequest an automatic B-month extension of tima untif AUGUST 15, 2020 , 1o file the exermnpt organization retum for
the organization named above. The extension is for the organization’s retum for:
| 4 L—_] calendar year of
p[X] tax yoar beginning _OCT 1, 2018 andending SEP 30, 2019

2  If the tax year entered inline 1 is for less than 12 months, check reason: L—_] Initial return ] Final retum

L—_] Change in accounting period

3a |f this application is for Forms 930-BL, 980-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter the tentative tax, less
any nonrafundable credits. See instructions. 3a] 8 0.
b If this application is for Forms 990-PF, 980-T, 4720, or 6069, anter any rafundable credits and
estimated tax payments mads. Include any prior year overpayment allowed as a credit. 3b ]S 0.
¢ Balance due. Subtract line 3b from line 3a. Include your payment with this form, If required, by
using EFTPS (Electronic Federal Tax Payment System). See instructions. 3c | 8 0.
Caution: }f you are going to make an electronic funds withdrawal (direct debit) with this Form 88£8, sea Form 8453-EQ and Form 8879-EQ for payment
instructions.
LHA  For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions. Form 8888 (Rev, 1-2019)

023041 12-18-18
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CJN-35-05

RESOLUTION OF THE
NAVAJC NATION COUNCIL

20" NAVAJO NATION COUNCIL - Third Yeaxr, 2005
AN ACTION
RELATING TO EEALTH, AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS;

AMENDING RESCLUTION CAP-35-02, APPROVING TBE
REAUTHORIZATION OF THE EXISTING HEALTH CARE 638

CONTRACTORS, AND ESTABLISHING A PROCEDURS FOR THE EXPANSION.

OF HEARLTH CARE 638 CONTRACTS AND AUTHORIZATION OF
ADDITIONAY, HEALTH CARE 638 CONTRACTORS, BEGINNING OCTOBER
1, 2005 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

BE IT ENACTED:

1. The WNavajo Nation Council hereby amends Resolution
CAP-35-02, attached hereto as Exhibit “A", by removing
the “pilot project” status of the Utah Navajo Health
Systems, Inc., the Tuba City Regional Health Care
Corporation, and the Winslow Indian Health Caxe
Center, Inec., and reauthorizing each of these
corporations as tribal organizations for the purpose
of managing and operating contracts with the Indian
Health Service under Public Law 93~638 for a fifteen-
year period beginning October 1, 2005 and ending
September 30, 2020, for all programs, functions,
services and activities (PFSAs) which those tribal
organizations currently contract under Public Law
53~638.

2. The Navajo Nation Council hereby authorizes the Sage
Memorial Hospital, Inc. as a tribal organization fox
the purpose of managing and operating contracts with
the Indian Health Service under Public Law 93-638 for
a fifteen-year period beginning Qctobar 1, 2005 and
ending September 30, 2020, for all programs,
functions, services and activities (PFSAs) which those
tribal organizaticns currently contracts under Public
Law 93-638.
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CJN-35-05

The Navajo Nation Council hereby specifically
delegates to the Intergovernmental Relations Committee
the authority to consider the expansion of the PFSAs
which each of the above-refexenced. tribal
organizations manage and operata under a Public Law
$3-638 contract, upon a2 reccmmendation for approval by
the Health and Social Services Committee, and each of
the Navajo Nation chapters which will be served by the
existing and expanded PFSAs; provided, that no
expansicn of the PFSAs which the above-referenced
tribal organizations manage and operate under a Public
Law 93-638 contract shall be approved in the absence
of a recommendation for approval by the Health and
Social Services Committea, and each of the Navajo
Nation chapters which will be served by the existing
and expanded PFSAs,

The Navajo Nation Council hereby specifically approves
the authorization by the Intergovernmental Relations
Committee of additional tribal oxrganizations to manage
and operate Public law 93-638 contracts with the
Indian'Health Service for the provision of health care
and related services to Navajos and other eligible
recipients, upon a recommendation for approval by the
Health and Social Services Committee, and each of the
Navajo Nation chapters which will be served by the
additional tribal organizations; provided, that no
additional tribal organizations shall be authorized to
manage and opearate Public Law 93-638 contracts for the
provision of health care and related serviges ‘to
Navajos and other eligible recipients in the absence
of a recommendation for approval by the Health and
Social Services Committee, and each of the Navajo
Nation chapters which will be served under such Public
Law 93-638 contract.

The Navajo Nation Council further conditions the
reauthorizations, authorization, authorities for
expansion of PFSAs, and additicnal of tribal
organizations herxein set forth upon the complate and
continuing compliance of the tribal organizations-with
all conditions set forth on Exhibit “A%, hereto
attached. o
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CIN-35-05

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was
duly considered by the ¥Navajo Nation Couneil at a duly
called meating in Window Rock, Navajo Nation (Arizona) at
which a quorum was present and that the same was passed by
a vote of 65 in favor and 13 opposed, this 3™ day of June
2005,

Motion: Larry Noble
Second: Mel R. Begay
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NAZLINI CHAPTER GOVERNMENT
(LERVHSVATER * OSMOGMANJA - JoANNDED) T

» -REEALLEN BEGAY.

NAZLINI CHAPTER RESOLUTION
NAZL-JULY-20-054

WHEREAS:

. 1, Pursuant 1o N.N.C., Title 26, Section 101, end the Navajo Nation Council Resources
and Development Commitiee Legislution #RDCF-0052-15 dated February 17, 2015,
Nezlini Chiapter Government wis micagnized as an LGA Certified Chspter and
‘deleynted with the respongibitity and suthority to make decisions over local chapler
matters; AND '

2. 'The Navajo Health Foundation — Sage Memorial Hospital provides health care o
€ight (8) service areas of Comficlds, Gansdo, Greasewoud Springs, Kinliches,
Klagetoh, Nazlini, Steamboat.and Wide Ruins Chapters; AND

3. The Navajo Health Foundation —Sage Memorial Hospital®s Navajo Nation tribal
designation will expire on September 30, 2020; AND

4. The Navajo Health Foundation — Sage Memorial Hospital is une of the primary
employers of the eight (8) chapter service areas and will employ sdditional
community mexibers'once a new hospital i constructed; AND

5. The-Nazlini Chaprer is not represented on the Navajo Health Foundation — Sage
Memorial Hospitnl Board of Directors.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. The Nazlini Chamer hereby supports Navajo Health Foundation— Sage Memorial |

. Hogpilta) tis obtain 520 Year Tribél Designation Status from the Navajo Nation 1
Council for the purposes of coniracting under the Indian Self-Determination and |

Education Assistance Act Public Law93-638: AND 299 ‘




Page Two
NAZI~JULY-20-054
July 10, 2020

CERTIFICATION

We hereby centify that the foregoing resolution was duly considered ‘and moved for adoption by
9521 Ay JY, seconded by Trvin Thirley -and passed by a votc’ of
5 infavor._ | opposed, |  sbstuined, this | Oth-day of July 2020.

e
ﬂﬁv, Bigwatety Presifent Juseph Dedman JgzWics President
“(a""\y - - . "'\,,.:’:: ’”’\
:;»::‘:'.? ¢ LN . v 5
JoArm Dédma#l, Secyrctary/Tregsurer Kee Allen Bepay Jr., Council Delegate
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Wilio Tracey, Jr, Chapisr Manager

CindyLJ pcimiistative ASSS: Walter Jones, Vice-President

Lormy Tsosic ' R?N:fwwm
Projects Sur ’ ince mes, Counct Delegaie

E sther Kirk, Offica Assistent

Post Office Box 188 Ganado, Arizona 86505  Telephone: (928) 755-5920  Facsimile: (928) 755-5927  Email: punudu@uavujuchuptenars

Resolution No. GAN-229-2020

RESOLUTION OF THE GANADO CHAPTER

Res uesting the 24 Navajo Nation Council to ignate the Navajo Health
Foundation, Sage Memorial Hi Inc. for a Twen ear Tribal Designation
Status for the Pu of Contra Under the Indian Self-Determination and

Education Assistance Act, P.L. 93-639
WHEREAS;

1. The Ganado Chapter is a duly certified local governing entity recognized by the
Navajo Nation Council through 11 N.N.C. § 10(A), to advocate and address the needs and
development of the local people to interact with other departments of the Navajo Nation, federal
and local agencies which serve and affect the Navajo Nation; and

2. The Ganado Chapter is a Governance Certified Chapter of the Navajo Nation vested
authority under 26 NN.C. § 101 et. seq; and

3. Ganado Chapter pursuant to Navajo Nation central governing policies and
procedures, has direct responsibility and authority to promote, protect and preserve the interest and
general welfare of its community, memberships, programs and property; and

4, Ganado Chapter has been apprised that Navajo Health Foundation (NHF), Sage
Memorial Hospital’s (SMH) tribal designation will expire on September 30, 2020; and

5. Ganado Chapter is aware that NHF SMH provides health care to eight (8) service
areas, which includes Ganado, Cornfields, Greasewood Springs, Steamboat, Klagetoh, Wide
Ruins, Nazlini and Kinlichee Chapter; and

6. Ganado Chapter is cognizant that NHF SMH is a primary employer of the eight-
chapter service areas and will continue to employ additional community members during the
construction of the new facilities; and

7. Ganado Chapter was informed that NHF SMH is in the process of designing and
developing a 40-bed new replacement hospital, Medical Offices Building and additional Staff
Heusing with an anticipation completion an December 2021; and
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Resolution No. GAN-229-2020
Page 2

8. QGanado Chapter respectfully supports NHF SMH in seeking a 50-year bond
financing option to the proposed new facility which will promote and provide necessary
professional healthcare services.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT;

1. Ganado Chapter is hereby respectfully requesting the 24% Navajo Nation Council
to designate the Navajo Health Foundation, Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc. for a Twenty (20) Year
tribal designation status for the primary purposes of contracting under the Indian Self-
Determination and Education Assistance Act, P.L. 93-638; and

2. Ganado Chapter is furthering requesting the Navajo Nation Govemment exccute
all necessary best practices for a 20-year tribal designation.

CERTIFICATION
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly considered by the Ganado
Chapter at a duly called meeting at Ganado, Navajo Nation, Arizona, at which a quorum was
present and that same passed by avote of [l infavor, { opposedand { abstained on this
_21% dayof July ,2020.
—
MOTION by: _ (Walt Tomes

SECOND by:_Richie ez, S~

N O

Marcarlo Roanhorse, Chapter Preside:g_
GANADO CHAPTER

A T:

Fo KL}/
ichie Nez Sk Secretary/Treasurer
NADO CHAPTER

(0l
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KIN DAH LICHII’ CHAPTER

Larry Curlis Vince James
. PRESIDENT COUNCIL DELEGATFE
Rrunclia Yozzie
VICE PRESIDENT

Theresa Watchman
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT

Terry Kelewood
GRAZING QFFICIAL

Mike Tsosie
SECRETARY/TREASURER

Minifred Lilly

Kerric Begaye
OFFICE ASSISTANT

CHAPTER MANAGER

KDLC 07-039-2020
RESOLUTION OF THE KINDAHLICHII CHAPTER

Supperting the Navajo Health Foundation ~ Sage Memorial Hospital. Inc.. Ganado
Arizona to Obtain a 20 ~ Year Tribal Designation Status from the Navajo Nation Council
for Purposes of Contracting under the Indian Self-Determination and Education
Assistance Act P.L. 93-638,

WHEREAS:

1. Kindahlichii Chapter is povernment certified pursuant to 26 N.N.C., Section 102(B)
which permits the Kindahlichii Chapter to exercise local govermnance authorities
contained within 26 N.N.C., Section 103: and

I

The Kindahlichii Chapter pursuant to 26 N.N.C., Section | (B) is vested with the
. authority to review all matters affecting the community and to make appropriate
decisions when necessary and make recommendation to the Navajo Nation and other
local agencies for appropriate actions; and

3. The Navajo Health Foundation — Sage Memorial Hospital’s Navajo Nation tribal
designation will expire September 30, 2020; and

4. The Navajo Health Foundation — Sage Memorial Hospital provides health care to the
eight service areas which include Ganado, Comnfields, Greasewood Springs,
Steamboat, Klagetoh, Wide Ruins, Nazlini, and Kindahlichii Chapters; and

5. The Navajo Health Foundation — Sage Memorial Hospital provides for the health care
needs of the community; and

6. The Navajo Health Foundation — Sage Memorial Hospital is the primary employer of’
the eight chapters service areas and will employ additional community members with
the construction of the new facilities; and

7. The Navajo Health Foundation — Sage Memorial Hospital is in the process of
designing and developing a 40-bed new replacement Hospital, Medical Offices
Building and additional Staff Housing. The anticipated completion of the new
replacement Hospital, medical offices building and staff housing is December 2021;
and
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. Page 2 - KDLC 07-039-2020
August 10, 2020

8. The Navajo Health Foundation — Sage Memorial Hospital is seeking the resolution of
support from the Kindahlichii Chapter for the purpose of obtaining a 50-year bond
financing option to construct the new facility, medical offices building and additional
staff housing.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. The Kindahlichii Chapter respectfully supports and recommends the approval of a 20-
year tribal designation status from the Navajo Nation Council for purposes of
contracting under the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act P.L.

03-638.

2. The Kindahlichii Chapter further requests the Navajo Nation do all things necessary
10 support and approve the 20-year tribal designation for Navajo Health Foundation —
Sage Memorial Hospital, Ganado, Arizona.

3. The Kindahlichii Chapter requests to be represented on the Ganado Sage Hospital
Board, to receive reports and activities happening at the Hospital. and (o have a voice
to the Board on local community needs.

. 4. The Kindahlichii Chapter requests the Ganado Sage Hospital Board ta update their
policies and bylaws to address selection of representatives to the Hospital Board to
allow participation of Chapters in its service area.

CERTIFICATION:

We hereby centify the foregoing resolution was duly considered by the Kindahlichii
Chapter at a duly called Chapter Meeting at which a quorum was present and that same
was approved by a vote of 2_in favor, -0- opposed, and _| abstained on this 10th day of

August 2020.

MOTION: Brunella Yazzie SECOND: Mike Tsosie
”
P Greenlle! UYepzie.
Larry Curtis, President Brunella Yazzie, Viee-Fptsident
W /2’2 3
N L i NOT PRESENT
Mike Tsosie, Secretary/Treasurer Terry Kelewood, Grazing Official
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S, : JONATHAN NEZ, PRESIDENT
Fi e KLAGETOH CHAPTER MYRON LIZER, VICE-PRESIDENT
#‘3}“ Unit 42 HC 58 Box 90, Ganado, AZ 86505
g PHONE: (928) 652-2700 FAX: (928} 652-2701

Ernest Benally, President Leon Jackson, V. President Genevieve Mitchall, Secretary/Treasurer Frank Begay, Ir. Geating Officer, Rsymond Smith Jr., Council Delegate, Edward
Clark, Ir., C5C

RESOLUTION OF THE KLAGETOH CHAPTER
RESOLUTION KLA-2074-08/2020

THE KLAGETOH CHAPTER SUPPORTS THE NAVAJO HEALTH FOUNDATION - THE SAGE MEMORIAL
HOSPITAL, INC, GANADO, AZ,, TO OBTAIN A 20 YEAR TRIBAL DESIGNATION STATUS FROM THE
NAVAJO NATION COUNCIL FOR PURPOSES OF CONTRACTING UNDER THE INDIAN SELF-
DETERMINATION AND EDUCATION ASSISTANCE ACT P.L. 93-638

WHEREAS:

1. Pursuant 1o 26 N.N.C, Section 3 (A) the Klagetoh Chapter is duly recognized certified chapter of the
Navajo Nation Government, as lisled as 11 N.N.C,, Part 1, Section 10, and

2. Pursuant to Title 26 N.N.C., Section 1 {B) the Klagetoh Chapter Is vested with the authority 10 review all
matters affecting the community and to make appropriale correction when necessary and make
recommendation to the Navajo Nation and other Iocal agencies for appropriate actions, and

3. The Navajo Health Foundation — Sage Memorial Hospital's Navajo Nation Iribal designation will expire
on September 30%, 2020, and

4. The Navajo Health Foundation — Sage Memorial Hospital provides health care to the eight (8) services
areas, including: Ganado, Cornfields, Greasewood Springs, Steamboat, Klagetoh, Wide Rulns, Nazlini,
and Kinlichee Chapter, and

5. The Navajo Health Foundation — Sage Memorial Hospital provides for the heaith care needs of the
communities, and .

6. The Navaje Health Foundation ~ Sage Memorial Hospital is in the process of designing and developing
a 40-bed new replacement hospital, medlcal offices building, and additional staff housing. The
anticipated completion of the new replacement hospital medical offices building, and staff housing is
December 2021, and

7. The Navajo Health Foundation — Sage Memorial Hospital is seeking support for the purpose of
cbtaining a 50-year bond financing option to construct the new facitity, medical offices building and
additional staff housing.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT:
1. The Kilagetoh Chapter respectfully supports and recommends the approval of a 20-year tribal
designation status from the Navajo Nation Council for purposes of contracting under the Indian
Self Determination and Education Assistance Act P.L.. 93-638
2. The Klagetoh Chapter further requests that the Navajo nation do all things necessary to support
and approve the 20-year tribal deslgnation for the Navajo Health Foundation — Sage Memorial
Hospital, Ganado, Arizona.

CERTIFICATION
We hereby certify that the foregolng resolution was duly considered by the Klagetoh Chapter
government at the duly cali Special Meeting at Klagetoh Chapter, Navajo Nation, Arizona at which a
quorum was present; and the same was passed by a vote of 4 in favor, 0 opposed, 1 abstained, on this
11 day of August, 2020,

Motion by: Leon Jackon  Second by: Jean Payton

Ernest Benally Jr., Chapter President
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Wide Ruins Community Chapter

Ceeit Hubbell, Sr., President Post Ofhice Box 208

Louise ). Nelson, Vice-President Chambiers, Anizona 86502

Bernice Wilson, Sccretary/Treasurer Phone: 928652-3223

Shawnevan Dale, Grazing Officer Fax: 928-652.3253

Vemita Tsosie, Community Services Coordinator Emuail: widervins@navajochaplers.org

WDR 08-023-20

RESOLUTION OF THE WIDE RUINS CHAPTER

SUPPORTING THE NAVAIO HEALTH FOUNDATION-SAGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL, INC., GANADOQ,
ARIZONA TO OBTAIN A 20-YEAR DESIGNATION STATUS FROM THE NAVAIO NATION COUNCIL
FOR _THE PURPOSE OF CONTRACTING UNDER THE INDIAN SELF-DETERMINATION AND
EDUCATION ASSISTANCE P.L. 93-638

WHEREAS:

1. The Wide Ruins Community Chapter is a certified Navajo Nation Chapter
Government, and pursuant to Navajo Nation Council CS5-6002 is delegated a
governmental authority with respect to local matters consistent with the Navajo laws,
including customs, traditions and fiscal matters; and

2. Pursuant to Chapter 1, Subchapter I, Section 131(1), (2) of the same
“Act”, the Wide Ruins Chapter has the responsibility and authority to promote, protect
and preserve the interest and general welfare including the safety and health of its
community people, programs, properly and

3. The Navajo Health Foundation-Sage Memerial Hospital's Navajo Nation
tribal designation will expire on September 30 2020, and

4. The Navajo Health Foundation-Sage Memorial Hospital provides heaith
care to the eight service areas, which includes Ganado, Cornfields, Greasewood Springs,
Steamboat, Kiagetoh, Wide Ruins, Nazlini, and Kinlichee Chapter; and

5. The Navajo Health Foundation-Sage Memorial Hospital provides for the
health care needs of the community; and

6 The Navajo Health Foundation-Sage Memorial Hospital is the primary
employer of the eight-chapter services areas and will employ additional community
members with the construction of the new facilities; and

7. The Navajo Health Foundation-Sage Memorial Hospital is in the process
of designing and developing a 40-bed new replacement hospital, medical offices building
and additional staff housing. The anticipated completion of the new replacement
hospital, medical offices building, and staff housing is December 2021; and

8. The Wide Ruins Chapter supporis the Navajo Health Foundation- Sage
Memorial Hospital in their quest of obtaining a 50-year bond financing option to
construct the new facility, medical offices building and additional staff housing.
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RESOLUTION OF THE WIDE RUINS CHAPTER
WDR 08-023-20
Page 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. The Wide Ruins Chapter respectfully supports and recommends the approval of a 20
year tribal designation status from the Navajo Nation Council for purposes of contracting
under the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act P.:L. 93-638,

2. The Wide Ruins Chapter further requests that the Navajo Nation make all necessary
efforts to support and approve the 20-year tribal designation for the Navajo Health
Foundation-Sage Memorial Hospital, Ganado, Arizona,

CERTIFICATION

I, hereby centify that the foregoing resolution was considered by the Wide Ruins
Community Chapter at a duly called teleconference meeting at Wide Ruins, Navajo
Nation (Arizona), at which a quorum was present and that same was passed by a vote of
11 in favor, 0 opposed and _6 abstained, this 12th day of August 2020,

MOTIONED BY: MATILDA HUBBELL
SECONDED BY: BERNICE WILSON

Mr. Cecil Hubbell, Sr., President
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CERTIFICATION

I Hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly considered by Steamboat
Chapter at a duly called meeting at éipxubag—i, Navajo Nation, Arizona which a

quorum was present and that the same passed by a vote of _¢f _in favor, /

opposed and _ O _ abstained onthis |7 day of P:uf\’u;'r , 2020.

Motion by:T H. > “4’7
Second by: mﬁ@‘/ N
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DI7C-08-020-FY 20

RESOLUTION OF THE DISTRICT 17 COUNCIL

Respeetfully Reguesting the 242 Navojo Nation Council to Designate the Navajo Health
Foundetion, Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc. for a Twenty {20} Year Tribal Designution
Status for the Primarv Purposes of Contracting Under the Indlan Self-Determination and
Education Assistance Act, P.L, 93-639

WHEREAS;

L The District 17 Council Chapter’s are all duly cenified local goverming enlities
recognized by the Navajo Nation Council through 11 N.N.C. § 10{A), to advoeate und address
the needs and development of the focal people to interact with other departments of the Navajo
Nation, federal and local agencies which serve and affect the Navajo Nation; and

2, The District 17 Council Chapter's comprise of a Govemance Centified and Non-
Governance Cenificd Chapiers of the Navajo Nation. Comfields Chapter, Ganado Chapter,
Greasewood Springs Chapter Kinlichee Chapter, Klagetoh Chapler, Steamboat Chapter and
Wide Ruins Chapter whom are all vested authority under 26 N.N.C. § 101 et. seq; and

3. The District 17 Council Chapter’s are all vested with the suthority 1o review all
matiers affecting the community while making appropriate delicate decisions as deem necessary
and to make recommendation to the Navajo Nation and other local agencies for appropriatc
actions; and ‘

4, District 17 Council has been apprised that Navajo Heslth Foundation (NHF), Sage
Memorial Hospital's (SMH) tribal designation will expire on September 30, 2020; and

5. District 17 Council is aware that NHF SMH provides health care 1o eight (8)
service areas, which includes Ganado, Comficlds, Greasewood Springs, Steamboat, Klagetoh,
Wide Ruins, Nuzlini and Kinlichee Chapter; and

6. District 17 Council is cognizant that NHF SMH is a primary employer of the
cight-chapter service arcas and will continue to employ additional community members during
the construction of" the new lacilitics; and

7. Dastrict 17 Council was informed that NHF SMH is in the process of designing
and developing o 40-bed new replacement hospital. Medical Offices Building and additional
Staff Housing with an anticipation completion on December 2021; and

8. District 17 Council respectfully suppons NHF SMH in secking a 50-year bond
financing option to the proposed new facility which will promote and provide neccessary
professional healthcare services.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT;

The Dislﬁcl 17 Council is hereby respectfully requesting the 24 Navajo Nation
Council 1o designate the Novajo Health Foundation, Sage Memorial Hospital, Inc. for a twenty
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(20) ycar triba) designatir

on siatus for the primary purposes of contracting under the Indian Seif

Determination and Education Assistance Act, P.L. 93-639.

I hereby ¢
17 Council at a duly cal
which a quorum was pre;

Z—abstained on this

CERTIFICATION

certify that the foregoing resolution was duly considered by the District
lcd meeting via teleconference and onlipe, Navajo Natign, Arizona, ol

senand that e passed by a vote of ‘ﬁ_ in favor, opposed and
[8 %y of_%mt 2020,

MOTION by: :)/éﬂ’wm «M

SECOND by: ﬂf/f(,zf Al el

g@z@’/?

DISTRICT 17 COUNCIL

Wit Do

Mike Tsosic, Secretary/Treasurer
DISTRICT 17 COUNCIL
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